Kino South Sports Complex Supporting Worksheets – GLHN

PAGE 2 OF 2

BILLING RATE: PC STANDARD Billing Rates

PROJECT: Kino South Sports Complex - McGann and Associates DATE: December 5, 2017 DISCIPLINE ALL

DISCIPLINE ALL	TASK HOURS BY	STREE MOD	TASK HOURS BY SAFE TH	05					WSK HOURS BYS	1411 1401					Tak or university over their											
		MANAGEMENT			MECHANICA	AL/PLUMBING					ELECTRICAL	97				CIVIL				TOTAL HOURS BY	TOTAL \$ BY					
		Project	Project	Project	Eng. Constru	Destando and		CADD chnician II Clenc	Private	oject Project	Constru	Destas Destas	CADD		Project Project				CADD	TASK	TASK	Coonsultant		Total		
TASK# TASKS	Manage r (PE)	Manage Clerical r (AIA)	al Manag er PE	3 Engine er II	Eng Design sr II Signer I Constru	ril ri	Intern Ter	chnician II Cleric	cal al Ma	oject Ptoject anag Engine r PE et II oph	Il signer I Admin	erli erl	Intern Technic ian #	l	a Princip al Project Project Engine I and En	igner II signer I Admin	esign Desig er II er I	Intern	Technic Ian II			Film	Cost	GLHN	Consultant	Foe
1.0 General Administrative Tasks				OUVDEX.00											TBE											
1.0.a Kick-Off, Public, Stakeholder Mtgs.	1				6					6	6				9	9				37	\$4,255.00	Solutions 13	\$380.00	\$4,255.00	\$380.00	\$4,635.00
1.0.b Progress Mtgs. / Scheduling 1.0.c CMAR Coordination (Void)	8				15					15	15				36					125	\$14,525.00 \$0.00	Solutions 13		\$14,525.00 \$0.00	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$14,525.00 \$0.00
1.0.c LEED and Envision Assessment / Coordination 2.0 Design Tacks - Ste / Civil / Electrical (On-Ste)			4	30				3		8	28		8		12				6	123	\$13,435.00	Solutions 13	\$380.00	\$13,435.00	\$380.00	\$13,815.00
2.0 Design Tasks - Site / Civil / Electrical (On-Site) 2.0.a Site Plan Update																10	15		15	40	\$3,475.00	Solutions 13	\$760.00	\$3,475.00	\$760.00	\$4,235.00
2.0.b Pre-Design Cost Estimate 2.0.c Project Site Hydrology Report															2	20			20	42	\$4,040.00			\$4,040.00	\$0.00	\$4,040.00
2.0.d Julian Wash Hydraulic Analysis 2.0.e Geotechncial Investigations and Report									_																	
2.0.e Geotechnical Investigations and Report 2.0.1 LEED - Envision Reviews / Coordination (Moved to Task 1.0.C)																					\$0.00	Solutions 13		\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
2.1 50% Design Electrical - Ste										80	360		160	4						604	\$57,780.00					
IT - Site Horizontal Layout Control									_						Excluded					0	\$0.00 \$0.00	Solutions 13	\$760.00			
Paving Grading															Excluded 20	90	200		159.99	0 469.98667	\$0.00 \$40,749.00					
Utilities																										
Potable Water Sanitary Sewer															16	8	50 20		10 10	126	\$12,420.00 \$3,750.00					
Other Utilities Outline Specifications															8	24	20		10 4	62	\$6,070.00 \$1,800.00					
Review Cost estimate															2	16		-		18	\$2,080.00			610F F10 07	67/0.00	\$126,279.00
QC/QA 2.2 90% design Electrical - Site IT - Site	6	2																		8	\$870.00			\$125,519.00	\$760.00	\$126,279.00
Electrical - Site	+ -									20	230		120	4						374	\$34,580.00 \$0.00	Solutions 13	\$190.00			
Horizontal Layout Control Paving															Excluded			-		0	\$0.00 \$0.00					
Grading															Excluded 4	40	120		60	0 224	\$0.00 \$19,180.00					
Potable Water															8	30	50		10	98	\$9,160.00					
Sanitary Sewer															2	8	20 20	-	10	40	\$3,510.00 \$3,970.00					
Specifications															1	6		1	4	11	\$990.00					
Review Cost estimate QC/QA	6	2													4	8				12 8	\$1,400.00 \$870.00			\$73,660.00	\$190.00	\$73,850.00
2.3 100% PS&E										20	115		70	4						209	\$19,330.00					
IT - Ste										20	112		10	-						0	\$0.00	Solutions 13	\$190.00			
Horizontal Layout Control Paving															Excluded Excluded					0	\$0.00 \$0.00					
Grading															4	24	60		50	138	\$11,790.00	Hawkeye	\$3,600,00			
Potable Water															2	15	26		6	49	\$4,495.00					
Sanitary Sower Other Utilities															2	6	24 10		5	35	\$2,995.00 \$2,360.00					
Specifications Review Cost estimate									_						1 2	4			4	9	\$760.00 \$700.00					
OC/OA 2.4 Design Tasks - Site / Civil (Off-Site)	8	2																		10	\$1,130.00			\$43,560.00	\$3,790.00	\$47,350.00
2.4.a 50% PS&E Rec. Water Extension			1		2			4		43	117		84		18 110		160		250	789	\$71,285.00			\$71,285.00	\$0.00	\$71,285.00
2.4.b 90% PS&E Rec. Water Extension & Permitting 2.4.c 100% PS&E Rec. Water Extension			1		4 2			6 2	_	18	49 29		35		10 40 5 28		80 40	_	120 80	363 219	\$32,410.00 \$19,630.00			\$32,410.00 \$19,630.00	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$32,410.00 \$19,630.00
2.4.d Traffic Analysis / Report																										
2.4.e 50% Off-Site / Roadway Improvements 2.4.f 90% Off-Site / Roadway Improvements & Permitting																										
2.4.g 100% Off-Site Roadway Improvements							_		_									_								
3.0 Design Tasks - Concession Building																								\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
3.0.a LEED / Envision Reviews / Coordination (Moved to Task 1.0.C) 3.1 Programming and Schematic Design																								\$0.00	30.00	50.00
3.2 Design Development (50% CD's) Mechanical				20				40	_											60	\$5,400.00					
Plumbing / Fire Protection				20				40		8	60		50							60 118	\$5,400.00 \$10,710.00					
IT										°										0	\$0.00	Solutions 13	\$855.00			
Outline Specifications Review Cost estimate																		_		0	\$0.00 \$0.00					
3.3 Construction Documents (90% CD's)	4	1																		5	\$565.00			\$22,075.00	\$855.00	\$22,930.00
Mechanical				10				20												30	\$2,700.00					
Plumbing / Fire Protection Electrical				10				20		6	40		40							30 86	\$2,700.00 \$7,720.00					
П											+			-						0	\$0.00 \$0.00	Solutions 13	\$380.00			
Review Cost estimate	4																			0	\$0.00 \$0.00			\$13.685.00	\$380.00	\$14,065.00
QC/QA 3.4 Construction Documents (100% CD's) and permitting	4	1																		5	\$565.00			\$13,685.00	\$380.00	\$14,065.00
Mechanical Plumbing / Fire Protection	$+ \neg$			5				10	-		+ $-$			-						15	\$1,350.00 \$1,350.00					
Electrical										4	20		20							44	\$3,980.00					
IT Specifications										8				12						0 20	\$0.00 \$1,500.00	Solutions 13	\$190.00			
Review Cost estimate QC/QA	6	2		$+ \neg$		-+				2 4	4		4	-						2 20	\$240.00 \$2,050.00					
4.0 Post Design Services - Site / Civil / Electrical (On-Site)																				0	\$0.00			\$10,470.00	\$190.00	\$10,660.00
4.1 Assist During GMP Negotiations										3					4 10		4			21 176	\$2,480.00	Solutions 13	\$95.00	\$2,480.00	\$95.00	\$2,575.00
4.2 Construction Administration 4.3 As-Built and Closeout Documentation	+			+		-+				12	12		24	4	4 35	 	85 18	+		176	\$16,220.00 \$2,870.00	Solutions 13 Solutions 13	\$380.00 \$380.00	\$16,220.00 \$2,870.00	\$380.00 \$380.00	\$2,575.00 \$16,600.00 \$3,250.00
4.4 As-Needed Design Services (TBA)																		-		0	\$0.00					
4.5 Post-Design Services - Site / Civil (Off-Site)							_																			
4.5.a Evaluation of Proposed GMP - Rec. Water Ext. 4.5.b Construction Administration - Rec. Water Ext.			1		4			2		4					2 8 6 20		90			21 116	\$2,405.00 \$10,500.00			\$2,405.00 \$10,500.00	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$2,405.00 \$10,500.00 \$1,350.00
4.5.c As-Bult & Close-Out Documentation - Rec. Water Ext. 4.5.d Evaluation of Proposed GMP - Off-Site Roads															1 6		6			13	\$1,350.00			\$1,350.00	\$0.00	\$1,350.00
4.5.c. As-Buff & Cloxe-Out Documentation - Rec. Water Ext. 4.5.d. Evaluation of Proposed GMP - Off Site Roadway 4.5.e. Construction Administration - Off Site Roadway 4.5.f. As-Buff & Cloxe-Out Documentation - Off Site Rdwy.																										
5.0 Post Design Services - Concession Building 5.1 Evaluation of Proposed GMP																										
5.1 Evaluation of Proposed GMP Mechanical / Plumbing / Fire Protection	1			4																4	\$480.00	1				

																												Solutions I3 Hawkeye	\$4,940.0 \$ 3,600.0			
al Amount by Discipline (\$)	\$6,040.00	\$32,63	20.00							\$195,3	\$5.00							\$263	,189.00							\$496,214.00						
al Hours by Discipline	53	335								2,079								2,88								5,354						
un bired by Emporoyae Type (5)	30,090.001 30.00	3430.00 37003	00 3000.00 ##	*** *****	1444 30.00	30.00 3	50.00 30.1	00 \$12,3	/5.00 39	0.00 50.00	30.00	2000 201	0 00000	30.00 3	0.00 30.0	00 30.00		0000 30	00 0000		## \$0.00	30.00 ###	## 30.00	50.00 00000	\$540.00			1	30,540.00	3490,214.00	38,540.00	30
g Rate by Employee Type unt Billed by Empoloyee Type (\$)	130 130 \$5,590.00 \$0.00	45 175	00 \$600.00 ##	120 115	100 115	S0.00 S	/U 40			45 175		120 11						45 17	5 150	120 11	5 100	115 80	70	40 75	45			-	\$9,540,00	\$496.214.00	\$8,540.00	\$5
atal Hours by Staff Type	43 0	10 4	4 7	127 21	12 0	0	0 0 70 40	1	5	2 0	0	285 0	1,103	0	0 0	0 0 40	669 75	32 0	52	403 46	0 0	0 1,11	0 81	0 842 40 75	12	5,354	\$496,214.00					
County Open End rates																												L				
																												1				
																												1				
																												1				
b As-Built & Close-Out Documentation																																
a Construction Administration											+ +		_															1				
c 100% PS&E								_			+ +																	1				
50% PS&E 90% PS&E and Permitting		<u> </u>						_			+ +		_							+ +	_							-				
								_					_			_			_		_							-				
0 Additional Services - Julian Wash South Bridge					_					_			_		_			_														
As-Built & Close-Out Documentation																																
Construction Administration]				
100% PS&E]				
90% PS&E and Permitting																												1				
a 50% PS&E																												1				
6.0 Additional Services - Julian Wash South Bridge																																
(A permitted benginatives (tory)							_	_	_			_	_		_	_	_						_					1				
5.4 As-Needed Design Services (TBA)							_	_	_	_		4	_		_		12		_		_					16	\$1,380.00			\$2,490.00	20.00	
Mechanical / Plumbing / Fire Protection Electrical / IT				3				-	0		+ +	4	-		_	_	12	_			-		_			13	\$1,110.00	-		\$2.490.00	\$0.00	
3 As-Built and Closeout Documentation			_	3				-	0				_						_							13	\$1.110.00	-				
Electrical / IT		<u> </u>										5	16				5	4				<u> </u>				30	\$2,755.00	-		\$5,155.00	\$0.00	
Mechanical / Plumbing / Fire Protection				20														_	_							20	\$2,400.00	-				_
5.2 Construction Administration																		_														
Electrical / IT												2														2	\$240.00			\$720.00	\$0.00	



BILLING RATE: CONSULTANTS

PROJECT: Kino South Sports Complex - McGann and Associates DATE: December 5, 2017

DISCIPLINE: CONSULTANTS

CONSULTANT TYPE	CONSULTANT COMPANY	CONSULTANT HOURS	RATE	TOTAL AMOUNT (\$)
Survey/Easements	Hawkeye Land Surveying	30	\$120.00	\$3,600.00
nerena karan k In T	Solutions 13			\$4,940.00
		· 0	\$0.00	\$0.00
an a		0	\$0.00	\$0.00
		0	\$0.00	\$0.00
an di sa man tining munime sun aparta anno anno de aj kolengen se mina da (permenin agres strenas este este es		0	\$0.00	\$0.00
		0	\$0.00	\$0.00

SUBTOTALS 30

\$8,540.00

BILLING RATE: GLHN STANDARD Billing Rates

PER DIEM						
# Man Days	0	@	\$85.00	per day	=	\$0.00
OPOLIDITOM AND UD ADMINICO		NERGIA				
GROUP TRANSP./PARKING						
Auto Rental (#Days)	0	@	\$55.00	per day	=	\$0.00
Fuel (# Trips)	0	0	\$3.00	each		\$0.00
mileage	0	@	\$0.58	each	=	\$0.00
PRINTING/SHIPPING/PHONE/FAX						
Printing (# Sets)	0	0	\$50.00	each	=	\$0.00
Shipping (# Packages)	0	0	\$20.00	each	=	\$0.00
Phone/Fax (# Calls)	0	@	\$2.00	each		\$0.00
MISCELLANEOUS						
Load Loggering (If Requred)	0	0	\$0.00	each	=	\$0.00

TOTAL DIRECT EXPENSES \$0,00

Kino South Sports Complex Supporting Worksheets – SCE Engineering

Kino South Sports Complex

Scope of Work Kino South Ports Complex Pima County

The tasks listed in the Scope of Work align with the tasks in the Master Scope of Work being prepared for the project, and reflect only those tasks for which SCE Engineering will be performing a portion of the overall task.

Task 1.0 General Administrative Tasks

Subtask 1.0.a Kick-off, Public, Stakeholder Mtgs. SCE will attend on kick-off meeting with Stakeholders and one with Pima County Staff, each being approximately 2.0 hours long.

Subtask 1.0.b Progress Mtgs./ Scheduling. SCE will attend no more than 20 bi-weekly meetings, each being approximately 1.5 hours long.

Subtask 1.0.c CMAR Coordination. SCE will attend no more than 12 Monthly /Coordination meetings with the Pima County Staff and the CMAR, each being approximately 3.0 hours long.

Task 2.0 Design Tasks – Site/Civil/Electrical (on-site)

Subtask 2.0.c. Project Site Hydrology Report. SCE will perform hydrologic analysis for the site drainage based on the site layout and grading plans provided by others. On-site watersheds will be determined based on concentration points/points of interest provided by others. The hydrologic analyses will be performed using Pima County's PC-Hydro web based program. Retention volumes will be determined using Pima County's "Design Standards for Stormwater Detention and Retention for Pima County" manual. The required volumes for retention and detention will be provided to the on-site design team for initial basin layout. Design coordination with the on-site design team will be required for the hydraulic design of the basin outfall structure.

Hydraulic design for a maximum of four pipe cross culverts will be performed. A drainage report summarizing the both the hydrologic and hydraulic analyses will be prepared.

The following assumptions have been made:

- The proposed site layout and grading for developing the hydrology will include building locations, limits of proposed paving and stormwater harvesting areas
- It is assumed there will be a second iteration of the site layout requiring updates to the watersheds/concentration points
- A single retention/detention basin will serve the entire site
- A maximum of three iterations is assumed for the design coordination of the basin outfall structure
- A maximum of 4 pipe culvert crossings under entrance roads and new interior roadway
- Regulatory flow of 3365 cfs will be used for Julian Wash (no separate hydrologic analysis will be performed)
- Underground storm drain will not be required.

Subtask 2.0.d Julian Wash Hydraulic Analysis. SCE will perform hydraulic analysis of the Julian Wash to cover the two bridge crossing locations identified by Pima County. The HEC-RAS will be used to develop existing conditions and proposed conditions hydraulics where encroachment occurs at the northern bridge location. A scour analysis will be performed to determine potential for degradation or aggradation of the channel bed. An analysis for potential lateral erosion will also be performed. The results will be documented in the drainage report.

Subtask 2.1 50% On-site P, S & E. SCE will coordinate with GLHN to prepare 50% site civil P, S & E. Refer to GLHN scope and fee.

Subtask 2.1 90% On-site P, S & E. SCE will coordinate with GLHN to prepare 90% site civil P, S & E. Refer to GLHN scope and fee.

Subtask 2.1 100% On-site P, S & E. SCE will coordinate with GLHN to prepare 100% site civil P, S E. Refer to GLHN scope and fee.

Subtask 2.4.d Traffic Analysis/Report. SCE will coordinate with Kittelson Associates to prepare a Traffic Impact Analysis(TIA) in per Pima County's direction, in accordance with City of Tucson Standards. Refer to Kittleson scope and fee. SCE will assure that the TIA incorporates all traffic components for the proposed improvements and will attend no more than 6 meetings with the City of Tucson, ADOT and Pima County Traffic Engineering, each being approximately 1.5 hours long.

Subtask 2.4.e 50% Off-site/Roadway Improvements. Roadway plan and profile sheets for the entrances off Kino Parkway and off Benson Highway will be prepared to a 50% level of completion along with special provisions. It is anticipated that there will be right turn lanes added to Benson Highway and to Kino Parkway at the access points into the site. Relocation of an existing catch basin and associated storm drain extension are anticipated at the Kino Parkway access. In addition, it is anticipated there will be a left turn added to provide access for southeast bound traffic at the Benson Highway access point.

The following assumptions have been made:

Roadway profile limits extend from the existing arterial to the far side bridge abutment Relocation designs for sign structures, light poles, and power poles are not included Retaining wall design is not included.

Subtask 2.4.f 90% Off-site/Roadway Improvements. Roadway plan and profile sheets for the entrances off Kino Parkway and off Benson Highway will be prepared to a 90% level of completion along with special provisions.

Subtask 2.4.g 100% Off-site/Roadway Improvements. Roadway plan and profile sheets for the entrances off Kino Parkway and off Benson Highway will be prepared to a 100% level of completion along with special provisions.

Subtask 4.3 Construction Administration. SCE will attend no more than 2 construction site visits, respond to no more than 2 submittals and respond to no more than 2 RFI's.

Subtask 4.4 As-Built & Close-Out Documentation. SCE will prepare as-built drawings based upon redlines provided by the CMAR/Pima County.

Subtask 4.5.d Evaluation of Proposed GMP-Off-Site Roadway. SCE will evaluate up 3 GMP's (50%, 90% and 100%) for off-site improvements, each being approximately 2.0 hours long,

Subtask 4.5.e Construction Administration- Off-Site Roadway. SCE will attend no more than 5 construction site visits, respond to no more than 5 submittals and respond to no more than 10 RFI's.

Subtask 4.5.f As-Built & Close-Out Documentation-Off Site Roadway. SCE will prepare as-built drawings based upon redlines provided by the CMAR/Pima County

Summary Workhour Estimate by Task

MAIN		Principal	Project	Project	Engineer/	Project		Total Labor	Direct		Adams of the second second
MAIN TASK #	Main TASK Description	Engineer	Manager	Engineer	Designer	Admin	TOTAL	Cost	Cost	Sub Cost	Total Task Cos
				0	0	0		\$664.41			\$664.4
	Kick-Off, Public, Stakeholder Mtgs.	0	4		0	0	12	\$1,993.23			\$1,993.23
	Progress Mtgs. / Scheduling	0	12	0		0	12				\$0.0
1.0.c	CMAR Coordination	0	0	0	0		100	\$0.00			
2.0.c	Project Site Hydrology Report	0	16	44	130	0	190	\$22,656.34			\$22,656.34
2.1	On-Site 50% P,S&E	0	0	0	0	0 .	0	\$0.00		\$42,676.00	\$42,676.00
2.2	On-Site 90% P.S&E	0	0	0	0	0	0	\$0.00		\$26,850.00	
	On-Site 100% P.S&E	0	0	0	0	0	0	\$0.00		\$13,655.00	\$13,655.00
	Julian Wash Hydraulic Analysis	0	13	36	75	0	124	\$15,048.86	\$690.40		\$15,739.2
	Traffic Analysis / Report	0	29	0	8	4	41	\$6,035.05		\$14,958.00	\$20,993.0
	50% Off-Site / Roadway Improvements	8	24	68	132	0	232	\$28,923.93			\$28,923.9
	90% Off-Site / Roadway Improvements & Permitting	6	24	68	132	0	230	\$28,508.67			\$28,508.6
	100% Off-Site Roadway Improvements	4	12	38	50	0	104	\$13,199.59			\$13,199.5
~	Construction Administration	0	18	0	0	0	18	\$2,989.84			\$2,989.8
	As-Built & Close-Out Documentation	0	2	0	4	0	6	\$775.14			\$775.1
	Evaluation of Proposed GMP - Off-Site Roadway	0	12	0	4	0	16	\$2,436.17			\$2,436.1
	Construction Administration - Off-Site Roadway	0	20	0	15	0	35	\$4,983.07	\$13.75		\$4,996.8
	As-Built & Close-Out Documentation - Off-Site Rdwy.	0	4	0	20	0	24	\$2,879.10	\$13.75		\$2,892.8
								\$0.00			\$0.0
								\$0.00			\$0.00
		18	190	254	570	4	1,036	\$131,093.39	\$717.90	\$98,139.00	\$229,950



2 E CONGRESS STREET, SUITE 705 TUCSON, AZ 85701 P 520.544.4067 F 520.544.9616

November 29, 2017

Project #: 22210

William Schlesinger, PE Schlesinger Consulting Engineering 510 E 4th Street Tucson, AZ 85705

RE: Kino South Sport Complex - Revised Scope of Work and Fee Proposal

Dear Bill:

As requested, we have revised our scope of work and fee proposal to prepare a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) to assess the capacity impacts that the subject project is anticipated to have on the adjacent roadway system. Moreover, the TIA will include intersection control and lane configuration recommendations for the development's access points (new intersecting driveways) that will be constructed as part of this project.

Scope of Work

Task 1: Trip Generation

A trip generation estimate will be conducted based on the following improvements planned for the first phase of the subject project:

- Twelve lighted long fields (natural turf)
- One building that will house: concessions, locker room, restrooms and offices,
- Lighted parking lots with solar panels
- Ancillary landscaping /site furnishings

The trip generation estimate will be performed using data from the ITE trip generation manual and other available sources.

Task 2: Trip Distribution

Two trip distributions will be developed for the project based on the following site access scenarios:

- Site Access Scenario 1: Two driveways will provide access to the project site; one driveway will be located on Benson Highway and another on Campbell Avenue.
- Site Access Scenario 2: In addition to the access points on Benson Highway and Campbell Avenue, an underpass on Interstate 10 (I-10) will connect the site to the existing Kino Sport Complex and provide additional access to the north

Task 3: Operational Analysis and Traffic Control Evaluation

A capacity analysis will be conducted for the proposed driveways on Benson Highway and Campbell Avenue. The capacity analysis will be conducted following the methodology set forth in the Highway Capacity Manual for up to two peak hours. The two peak hours to be evaluated will be determined after the trip generation is conducted to select the highest peak volumes that the development is expected to generate. The capacity analysis will be performed for up to three horizon years (opening year, 5 years after opening year and 10 years after opening year). Traffic growth on Benson Highway and Campbell Avenue will be estimated based on PAG travel demand model expected growth for these roadways. A 24hour count will be collected on Benson Highway and another on Campbell Avenue for the purpose of the analysis that will be conducted as part of this project.

A traffic control evaluation will also be included at the proposed access points on Benson Highway and Campbell Avenue to determine the traffic control requirements and provide lane recommendations at the new intersections.

Task 4: Progress and Review Meetings

Up to two meetings will be attending with the project team, Pima County Department of Transportation or City of Tucson Department of Transportation.

Task 5: Traffic Report

A TIA will be prepared per City of Tucson Access Management Guidelines to document the analysis conducted for the project and provide traffic design recommendations for an efficient and safe operations in the adjacent roadways.

Fee Estimate and Schedule

Kittelson is requesting a cost plus fixed fee estimate of \$14,958 to complete this scope of work. A detailed hours and fee estimate is attached. Upon receipt of a notice to proceed, Kittelson should be able to complete the work within 8 weeks.

We look forward to working with you on this project. Please call if you have any questions or require any additional information.

Sincerely, KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Felipe Ladron de Guevara, PhD, PE, PTOE Associate Engineer

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

Fee Estimate - Kino South Sport Complex Traffic Report Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

Task		Pr	rincipal		sociate gineer		Senior ngineer	Er	ngineer		nalyst/ esigner	Seni	or Tech		Tech	А	dmin	Hours	Labor Cost
		\$	73.81	\$	50.41	\$	43.94	\$	34.35	\$	29.79	\$	37.37	\$	28.31	\$	23.42		
Task 1: Trip Generation			et i de la compañía d																a state of the
	Task #001 - Subtotal	and the second sec	0		4		0		0		8		0		0		0	. 12	\$440
Task 2: Trip Distribution	And the second									(). 									
	Task #002 - Subtotal		0		4	gina di Solution	0		0		16		0		0		1	21	\$702
Task 3: Operational Analysis and Traf	fic Control Evaluation	1994), (research) 1994	fairs and a star												1.1.4				
Reimbursable Expense - Traffic Counts		the states														a manufacture and			\$400
	Task #003 - Subtotal	n nead	1		8		12		0		_28		0	222.1	0		1	50	\$1,862
Task 4: Meetings			A CARE FOR C			nd													
Reimbursable Expense	(a) which is a first the second state of the second state of the state of the second state of the second state of the state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state							a contrar											\$0
	Task #004 - Subtotal		0		4		0	en-a	0		0		0		0		0	4	\$202
Task 5: Traffic Report				ingen Jarre						i. A	1. and a								
Reimbursable Expense											10 AL			e gali Event					\$25
	Task #005 - Subtotal	State of		e vitt "art	4	1.2	8		0		16		10		0		1	30	\$1,127

Subtotal Labor Cost		4,332
OH @ 204.96%		8,879
Subtotal (Labor+OH)	>	13,212
Fixed Fee @ 10% of Labor + OH	\$	1,321
Subtotal (Labor+OH+Fee)	\$	14,533
Directs	Ş	425
Grand Total	\$	14,958

H:\22\22210 - Kino South Sports Complex Traffic Study\admin\p\22210 Fee Estimate_v3.xlsx



Kino South Sports Complex Supporting Worksheets – Swaim Associates



Tee Froposal Dieakuowii								
	Project Principal	Project Manager	Project Architect	Architect	CADD	Clerical / Admin.	Consultant	
Hourly Rates	\$135.00	\$104.00	\$94.00	\$80.00	\$75.00	\$58.00		
General Administrative Tas	ks (Additio	nal Servic	e)					
Kick-off, Public, Stakeholder	8		8]	
Progress Meeting (12)@2.5	30		30		18			
CMAR Meetings (12)@3	0		0		0			
SUBTOTAL	\$5,130.00	\$0.00	\$3,572.00	\$0.00	\$1,350.00	\$0.00		\$10,052.00
Site Plan Update (Additional Meetings and coordination	al Service)		. 25					
Documentation			4		6			
SUBTOTAL	\$2,025.00	\$0.00	\$2,726.00	\$0.00	\$450.00	\$0.00		\$5,201.00
Programing and Concept D	esign				· · ·	· ·		
Programming meetings	5		10					
Programming Docs			20		20	5		
Design	15		30		5			
Drawings	2		15	X	30			

r rogrammig and concept i	Jeangin							
Programming meetings	5		10					
Programming Docs			20		20	5		
Design	15		30		5			
Drawings	2		15		30			
Specs	0		0		0			
Meetings	6		6					
Coordination	2		32					
Cost review	0		0					
Schneider Structural							2300	
Arizona Restaurant Supply							2600	
SUBTOTAL	\$4,050.00	\$0.00	\$10,622.00	\$0.00	\$4,125.00	\$290.00	\$4,900.00	\$23,987.0

Design Development / 50% Construction Documents

SUBTOTAL	\$7,830.00	\$0.00	\$19,928.00	\$0.00	\$14,100.00	\$1,160.00	\$6,000.00	\$49,018.00
Arizona Restaurant Supply							2600	
Schneider Structural							3400	
Cost review	4		6					
Coordination	10		60		. 10			
Meetings	18		28		10			
Specs	10		8		3	20		
Drawings	4		90		160		ж. 	
Design	12		20		5		-	

90% Construction Documents

Drawings	6		90		150			
Specs	10		12		an a	10	1	
Meetings	5		10					
Coordination	8		40		4			
Schneider Structural							8500	
Arizona Restaurant Supply							975	
SUBTOTAL	\$3,915.00	\$0.00	\$14,288.00	\$0.00	\$11,550.00	\$580.00	\$9,475.00	\$39,808.00

100% Construction Documents

Drawings	3		40		80			
Specs	3		. 7			2		
Meetings	- 3		6					
Coordination	2		15		. 1			
Schneider Structural							2200	
Arizona Restaurant Supply							325	
SUBTOTAL	\$1,485.00	\$0.00	\$6,392.00	\$0.00	\$6,075.00	\$116.00	\$2,525.00	\$16,593.00

Bidding and Permitting

Bidding	5		15			· ·		
Permitting			1		4			
Schneider Structural							1000	
SUBTOTAL	\$675.00	\$0.00	\$1,504.00	\$0.00	\$300.00	\$0.00	\$1,000.00	\$3,479.00

LEED and Envision (Additional Service)

Meetings	5		15		8			
Documentation	5		10		15			
Specs	2		1			4		
Calculations			3		12			
SUBTOTAL	\$1,620.00	\$0.00	\$2,726.00	\$0.00	\$2,625.00	\$232.00	\$0.00	\$7,203.00

Evaluation of GMP

Meetings	4		4					
Coordination	4		10					
SUBTOTAL	\$1,080.00	\$0.00	\$1,316.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$2,396.00

Construction Administration

Meetings	20		192		20			
Coordination, RFIs	6		80		10			· · · · · · · · ·
Drawings	2		25		15			
Submittal Review, Docs	2		45		15			
Schneider Structural							2500	
SUBTOTAL	\$4,050.00	\$0.00	\$32,148.00	\$0.00	\$4,500.00	\$0.00	\$2,500.00	\$43,198.00

As Builts and Closeouts (Additional Service)

Review and drawings	2		12		30	1		
Schneider Structural						•	1000	
SUBTOTAL	\$270.00	\$0.00	\$1,128.00	\$0.00	\$2,250.00	\$58.00	\$1,000.00	\$4,706.00

BASIC SERVICES TOTAL	\$178,479.00
ADDITIONAL SERVICES TOTAL	\$27,162.00
TOTAL FEE	\$205,641.00

Kino South Sports Complex Supporting Worksheets – Structural Grace



November 29, 2017

Mr. Don McGann, RLA McGann and Associates 6814 N. Oracle Rd, #210 Tucson, AZ 85704

Re: Kino South Sports Complex Scope and Fee

Dear Don,

Please find attached our Fee Summary worksheet for the subject project. This fee is based on the following:

1) General Administration Tasks include:

- a) Kick Off Meetings (1)
- b) Design Phase Monthly Meetings with Pima County and CMAR (4 max)
- c) Construction Phase On-Site Meetings (4 max)

Bridges

The following bridges will be designed for this project:

6) Julian Wash South Bridge includes:

Design and Construction plans for the south entry off of Benson Highway over the Julian Wash Bridge is assumed to be 60 ft in length with a roadway width of approximately 46 ft. to accommodate 2-12 ft. vehicle lanes, 2-5 ft. bike lanes, 2 5 ft. sidewalks and barrier.

7) Julian Wash West Bridge includes:

Design and Construction documents for the west entry off of Kino Pkwy over the Julian Wash Bridge is assumed to be identical to South Bridge off of Benson Hwy

Assumptions:

1. Bridges are assumed to be identical therefore only one (1) bridge design is needed.

2. A structure memo will be produced prior to 50% (approx. 30%) to determine the most efficient structure type for both crossings. This memo will include parameters such as constructability, cost and aesthetics and will be reviewed by CMAR for input into cost and constructability. A plan and elevation drawing will be attached for the recommended bridge type only. A maximum of three structure types will be evaluated. All structures evaluated will be able to be constructed without affecting the Julian Wash. These structure types include (a) Steel Plate Girders (b) Precast-Prestressed Concrete Girders or Voided Slabs and (c) Prefabricated Steel Truss.

3. A Steel Plate Girder bridge is assumed for the design estimate for this crossing.

4. No retaining walls (only wingwalls).

5. Electronic base files provided by others including all topo files, etc.

6. Geotechnical engineer will provide preliminary report and recommendations at 50% submittal.

7. Hydraulic Engineer will provide Water Surface Elevation (WSE) and free board requirements.

1430 E. Ft. Lowell Rd, Suite 200	808 N. First Street
Tucson, Arizona 85719	Phoenix, Arizona 85004
(520) 320-0156	602) 437-2551
Fax (520) 320-0157	Fax (602) 437-7244
www.structuralgrace.com	

Unique Approach - Unique Solution

Kino South Sports Complex Scope November 29, 2017

8. All cost estimates and quantities preformed by others.

9. After 50% design, no substantial changes to bridge design (i.e., no change in structure type or bridge geometrics)

10. A maximum of 14 plan sheets for both bridges

11. No special provisions required.

Construction Administration:

This phase includes the review of shop drawings and answering field RFI's and site visits.

Assumptions:

Shop Drawings

Only one set of each shop drawing indicated below for both bridges- i.e., there will only be one shop drawing for Stay in Place forms and they are applicable to both the west and south bridges.

Shop Drawing Review to include a maximum of one resubmittal for the following shop drawings:

- 1. Stay In Place Forms
- 2. Top deck reinforcing steel (rebar)
- 3. Steel Girders
- 4. Railing
- 5. Abutment/Wingwall Rebar
- 6. Drilled Shaft Rebar
- 7. Bearings

<u>Request for Information (RFI)</u> A maximum of 5 RFI's Site Visits

A maximum of 2 site visits

As-Builts

CMAR to provide field change redlines to SGI to incorporate into as-builts. SGI to incorporate RFI changes and shop drawing changes into as-builts.

As-builts will be provided for a maximum of 15 plan sheets.

SGI to incorporate as-builts into bridge plans set and provide sealed as-builts to submit to County.

Proposed Fee:

Proposed fee is shown on attached spreadsheet (Kino-South-Fee-Summary-worksheet-combined-SGI-Rev1) and is based on two identical bridges. If one bridge is deleted from the scope the fee cannot be reduced by half and a new fee proposal will be required.

Please feel free to contact me if you need any additional information.

Sincerely, Structural Grace, Inc.

Claudia & Parchenelle

Claudia Perchinelli, PE, SE President/Bridge Engineer

Unique Approach - Unique Solution

	Structural Grace, Pac	Client: Owner: Project:		McGann &				Date: SGI N	o.: al Estimate:	x	29-Nov-1 P201704 CO#:	7
	- Shace, the	Toject.		Killo South	prots comple				arestimate:		- ""	
			Principal	Project	Sr. Project	Project	Project		Project			
	atutu	NUMBER OF STREET	Engineer	Manager	Engineer	Engineer	Architect	Engineer	Designer	Clerical	-	
ask	Description	Hourly Rate -	\$190.00	\$185.00	\$175.00	\$160.00	\$135.00	\$115.00	\$105.00	\$65.00	Total Hours	Total Cost
1	General Administrative Tasks											
	a) Kick-off Meetings (1 max)		0.00	4.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	4.00	\$740.0
	b) Design Phase Meetings (4 max)		0.00	8.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	8.00	\$1,480.0
2	Julian Wash Bridge(s) - South Entrance (Benson Hwy)	& West Entrance (King										
	Struture Selection Memo	or these contained point	0.00	8.00	8.00	24.00	24.00	0.00	24.00	0.00	88.00	\$12,480.0
	Design											
	Deck Design		0.00	2.00	4.00	0.00	0.00	4.00	v 0.00	0.00	10.00	\$1,530.0
	Steel Girder Design		0.00	2.00	4.00	16.00	0.00	16.00	0.00	0.00	38.00	\$5,470.0
	Abutment/Wingwall Design		0.00	2.00	4.00	0.00	8.00	24.00	0.00	0.0D	38.D0	\$4,910.0
	Foundation Design (Drilled Shafts) Quantities		0.00 0.00	2.00 0.00	4.00 0.00	0.00	0.00	24.00	0.00	0.00	30.00	\$3,830.0
	dominies.		0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0:00	0.00	0.00	0.09	0:00	\$9.6
3	Plans	no of sheets										
	Cover Sheet, LocationPlan, Index	1	0.00	2.00	4.00	0.00	0.00	8.00	8.00	0.00	22.00	\$2,830.0
	General Plan and Elevation (Benson Hwy and Kino Pky	vy) 2	0.00	4.00	8.00	0.00	0.00	8.00	24.00	0.00	44.00	\$5,580.0
	General Notes & Quantities	1	0.00	2.00	4.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	8.00	0.00	14.00	\$1,910.0
	Bridge Architecture	1	0.00	2.00	4.00	0.00	16.00	0.00	12.00	0.00	34.00	\$4,490.0
	Foundaiton Plan & DS Details	1	0.00	2.00	4.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	12.00	0.00	18.00	\$2,330.0
	Abutment Plan and Elevation	1 .	0.00	2.00	4.00	0.00	12.00	0.00	12.00	0.00	30.00	\$3,950.0
	Wingwall Elevation and Details Framing Plan and Girder Elev	1	0.00	2.00	4.00	0.00	12.00	0.00	12.00	0.00	30.00	\$3,950.0
	Framing Plan and Girder Elev Bearing Details and Camber	2	0.00	2.00	4.00	20.00	0.00	0.00	24.00	0.00	50.00	\$6,790.0
	Deck Plan and Typical Section	1	0.00	2.00	4,00	16.00	0.00	0.00	14.00	0.00	35.00 30.00	\$5,100.0 \$4,250.0
	Deck Details	1	0.00	2.00	4.00	0.00	0.00	16.0D	12.00	0.00	30.00	\$4,250.0
	Bridge Railing Elevation	1	0.00	2.00	4.00	0.00	12.00	24.0D	15.00	0.00	58.00	\$7,130.0
	Miscell Details	θ	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	\$0.0
4	Construction Administration Construction Phase Meetings (4 max)		0.00	12.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00		
	Shop Drawing Review & RFI		0.00	12.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	12.00	\$2,220.0
	Stay in Place forms		0.00	1.00	0.00	4.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	5.00	\$825.0
	Top Deck Rebar		0.00	1.00	0.00	4.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	5.00	\$825.0
	Steel Girders		0.00	2.00	4.00	8.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	14.00	\$2,350.0
	Railings		0.00	1.00	0.00	0.00	4.00	6.00	12.00	0.00	23.00	\$2,675.0
	Abumtnet/Wingwall Rebar		0.00	1.00	4.00	8.00	8.00	8.00	0.00	0.00	29.00	\$4,165.0
	Drilled shaft rebar		0.00	1.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	4.00	0.00	5.00	\$605.0
	Bearings		0.00	1.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	4.00	0.00	0.00	5.00	\$645.0
	Miscell Details RFI (5 max)		0.00	0.00 2.00	0:00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	50.0
	Construction Site Visits		0.00	2.00	10.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	16.00	0.00	28.00	\$3,800.0
	Site Visit (2 max)		0.00	5.00	5.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	16.00	0.00	26.00	\$3,480.0
			0.00	3.00	5.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	10.00	0.00	20.00	\$3,480.0
5	As-Builts											
	As-Built plans for 15 plan sheets		0.00	5.00	10.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	20.00	0.00	35.00	\$4,775.0
	Total Hours		0.00	86.00	109.00	112.00	96.00	142.00	258.00	0.00	803.00	\$109,285.0
	Total Labor Cost		\$0.00	\$15.910.00	\$19,075.00	\$17,920.00	\$12,960.00	\$16,330.00	\$27,090.00	\$0.00		\$109,285.0
	Estimated Direct Expenses	Quantity	Rate		Total							
	Mileage @ \$0.54-Mile	120.00	\$0.540	Per Mile	\$64.80							
	Reference Material	0.00	\$0.00	Each	\$0.00							
	Total Direct Expenses				\$64.80							\$64.8
					1.100							¥04.0
	Subconsultants None											
	Total Subconsultants											\$0.0
											SPORTS OF	
											Emiliante Calculation	en de la Califica

1430 E. Ft. Lowell Road, Suite 200, Tucson, AZ 85719 (520) 320-0156 | 808 N. First Street, Phoenix, AZ 85004 (602) 437-2551 | www.structuralgrace.com

Kino South Sports Complex Supporting Worksheets – Rider-Levett-Bucknall

RLB Rider Levett Bucknall

JB::FP: KINO December 4 2017

Mr. Don McGann McGann & Associates 6815 N Oracle Road #210 Tucson AZ 85704

Dear Don:

<u>RE:</u> <u>PIMA COUNTY – KINO SOUTH SPORTS COMPLEX</u> <u>REV 3FEE PROPOSAL FOR COST CONSULTANCY SERVICES</u>

Thank you very much for including Rider Levett Bucknall (RLB) on your team to provide Cost Consultancy Services for the proposed Kino South Sports Complex in Tucson Arizona.

Brief Project Description

The elements of the Master Plan to be initially constructed in this first phase of improvements will include all scope as described within the Pima County Notice of Solicitation for Qualification No 272886. Our fee is calculated based on the aforementioned solicitation and the assumption of a construction budget of approx. \$12 million.

Design Development

• preparation of one cost estimate which will then be reconciled with the team. We will reissue one estimate further to final reconciliation.

Description	Rate	Hours	Total
Associate	\$162.17	24	\$3,892.08
Senior Cost Manager	\$151.36	60	\$9,081.60
Cost Estimator	\$124.33	60	\$7,459.80

Construction Documents

 preparation of one cost estimate which will then be reconciled with the team. We will reissue one estimate further to final reconciliation.

Description	Rate	Hours	Total
Associate	\$162.17	24	\$3,892.08
Senior Cost Manager	\$151.36	60	\$9,081.60
Cost Estimator	\$124.33	40	\$4,973.20

33 South Fifth Avenue Tucson, Arizona 85701

T: +520 777 7581 F: +520 202 7379 Don McGann McGann & Associates Page 2

GMP Review

 peer review of the CM@R proposed GMP including reconciliation and assistance in agreeing final GMP

Description	Rate	Hours	Total
Associate	\$162.17	24	\$5,189.44

Miscellaneous

If any additional Cost Consultancy Services are requested then those services will be reimbursed in accordance with our current hourly rates as per our Pima County on-call contract as follows:

Associate	\$162.17
Senior Cost Manager	\$151.36
Cost Estimator	\$124.33

Please note that our fees generally exclude out-of-pocket expenses (such as; airfares and travel outside the Greater Tucson area; color photocopying; reproduction costs associated with other consultants' documents), which are to be reimbursed at the actual cost to us.

Additionally please carefully note that our proposed fees specifically do <u>not</u> include the following:

- detailed labor, material and equipment build-ups for any unit rates included within RLB's cost estimate(s)
- preparation of new cost estimates or amendments to our cost estimate necessitated by changes in the design or by further redesigns beyond the milestone exercise included within this proposal

Enclosed is a copy of our standard **Conditions of Engagement and Payment of Accounts** which will apply to this project.

In the meantime, if you have any questions, or would like to discuss some aspect of this proposal, please feel free to contact me.

RLB | Rider Levett Bucknall

Don McGann McGann & Associates Page 3

Yours faithfully,

RIDER LEVETT BUCKNALL LTD.

Joel D Brown Associate Principal | Resident Manager

Kino South Sports Complex Supporting Worksheets – Ninyo & Moore



November 17, 2017 Proposal No. 12TUC02-00508

Mr. Don McGann McGann and Associates 6814 North Oracle Road, Suite 210 Tucson, Arizona 85704

Subject: Proposal to Provide Geotechnical Services Kino South Sports Complex Tucson, Arizona

Dear Mr. McGann:

In accordance with your request, Ninyo & Moore is pleased to submit this proposal to provide geotechnical services for the Kino South Sports Complex new facilities in Tucson, Arizona. This proposal outlines our scope of geotechnical services, project assumptions, anticipated schedule, and estimated fees for the work associated with this project.

SITE/PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Based on the Conceptual Site Plan provided by your office and later communication, the project site is located just south of Interstate 10 between Kino Parkway to the west and Country Club Road to the east.

In general, the project will include construction of the following improvements:

- Two bridge structures across the Julian Wash;
- On-site drives and parking lots (including rigid pavements, flexible pavements, and stabilized gravel pavements for parking lots);
- Hardscape improvements;
- Buildings: one concession building and two restrooms. The concession building will be a single story structure with 8,000 square feet plan area, 18 feet height and concrete masonry unit (CMU) walls;
- Twelve turf grass fields;
- Poles for field lighting;

1991 East Ajo Way, Suite 145| Tucson, Arizona 85713 | p. 520.577.7600 | www.ninyoandmoore.com

- On-site storm water management basins/water harvesting areas; and
- Utilities.

We further understand that the new structures will be supported on shallow foundations with floating slabs-on-grade. However, the lighting poles are anticipated to be supported on drilled piers. In addition, use of a post-tensioned slab is considered at this phase of the project. Below-grade basement structures are not anticipated.

Grading plans for the proposed improvements were not available at this time. However, we understand that the new construction will not involve any significant grading operations, except for storm water management basins/water harvesting areas. In addition, structural data including anticipated loads was not available at this time.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Ninyo & Moore will perform the following tasks as part of this project:

- Conduct a field trip to the project area to mark out field test locations.
- Contact Arizona 811 to evaluate utility locations prior to the field work.
- Drill up to 48 borings in accordance with the following schedule:
 - Four borings for the proposed bridge structures across the Julian Wash that will extend up to 30 feet below existing grade (bgs);
 - Ten borings for the proposed driveways and parking areas that will extend up to 5 feet bgs;
 - Three borings for the proposed concession building (including the restrooms) that will extend 10 to 20 feet bgs;
 - Twenty-one borings for the proposed poles for field lighting that will extend up to 25 feet bgs; and
 - Ten borings within the proposed storm water management basins/water harvesting areas that will extend up to 10 feet bgs.

The borings are proposed to be advanced with a two-wheel drive, truck-mounted drill rig equipped with hollow-stem augers. The borings will be will be terminated at the target depth or refusal on very dense/cemented deposits, whichever comes first.

Collect bulk soils samples in the borings for laboratory testing and analysis. Ninyo & Moore
personnel will log the borings in general accordance with the Unified Soil Classification System
(USCS) and American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) D 2488 by observing cuttings
and samples. Soil samples will be placed in large plastic bags and will be transported to a
Ninyo & Moore laboratory for testing.

- Collect 10 shallow depth bulk samples within the proposed turf grass fields for horticultural testing.
- Conduct eight double ring infiltration tests within the proposed storm water management basins/water harvesting areas. The tests will be conducted at a depth of 3 feet bgs.
- Conduct laboratory testing on subgrade soil samples that will generally include in-situ moisture and density, grain-size analysis, consolidation (response-to-wetting), direct shear, Atterberg limits, corrosivity (including sulfate and chloride contents, pH, and laboratory electrical resistivity), R-value and horticultural nutrient testing.
- Prepare a geotechnical evaluation report to include classifications of the exploratory samples, boring logs and results of the laboratory testing. The reports will include a cover letter sealed by a Professional Engineer licensed in the State of Arizona. The reports will also include the following:
 - o Description of work scope, laboratory, and field procedures;
 - Description of regional and site geology and geologic hazards;
 - o Subsurface soil and groundwater conditions;
 - Maps and boring plans;
 - Description of the excavation characteristics of on-site soils;
 - Discussion of potential earthwork issues;
 - Evaluation of potential for re-use of on-site soils;
 - Subgrade preparation measures for foundations, flatwork and pavements;
 - Seismic design parameters in accordance with IBC;
 - Recommended soil allowable bearing pressures for spread footings and lateral passive resistance for foundation design;
 - Recommended geotechnical design parameters for drilled pier foundations, including soil properties for lateral drilled pier analysis;
 - Anticipated foundation settlements;
 - o Recommended lateral resistance and end bearing pressure for drilled piers,
 - Recommended lateral earth pressures for retaining walls;
 - Recommendations for site drainage;
 - Stabilized infiltration rates;
 - Recommended AC an PCC pavement sections; and
 - Soil corrosivity discussion and corrosion protection recommendations.

ASSUMPTIONS

The following assumptions were made when developing the work scope:

- Clearing the site from vegetation to provide access to the drilling locations will be needed.
- Ninyo & Moore will not be needed to obtain any environmental/cultural clearances permits.

- The work will be performed during normal work hours and there will be one mobilization for both the Shops Project and the Office Project.
- The borings will be terminated at the target depth or refusal on very dense/cemented deposits and backfilled with drill cuttings.

SCHEDULE

We are prepared to initiate this project immediately upon receiving your authorization to proceed. We anticipate that the fieldwork will take about 10 days and will be performed within two to three weeks after a notice to proceed. The report will be submitted within three weeks following the fieldwork. Preliminary recommendations will be provided within one week after of the field work.

FEE ESTIMATE

We propose to perform the above scope of geotechnical services, for a lump sum fee of \$37,900 (Thirty Seven Thousand Nine Hundred Dollars). This estimated fee is based on the scope of services presented above and our understanding of the project. Any additional services not included in the aforementioned scope will be charged on a time and materials basis in accordance with the current schedule of fees.

If this proposal meets your expectations, please provide formal authorization in the form of a subconsultant agreement. We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal and look forward to working with you on this project.

Respectfully submitted, NINYO & MOORE

out Kanta

Marek J. Kasztalski, PE, LEED AP Senior Geotechnical Engineer

MJK/FFN/hmf

Distribution: (1) Addressee (via e-mail)

Fred Narcaroti Tucson Office Manager

4

Kino South Sports Complex Preliminary Project Schedule

Kino South Sports Complex Preliminary Schedule for Project Design and Engineering

Provided on the following page is a preliminary schedule for the design and engineering of the Kino South Sports Complex.

This schedule is preliminary and subject to review and revision based on discussions with the Pima County and with the Construction Manager at Risk to be selected for this project.

Task Name	Duration	Start Finish	Predecessors	2018
NTP	0 days	Mon 1/1/18 Mon 1/1/	18	Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Ap
Project Initiation	10 days	Mon 1/1/18 Fri 1/12/		
Kick-off Workshop with Pima County and CMAR	10 days	Mon 1/1/18 Fri 1/12/1		
Cost Control/Pima County & CMAR Coordination	315 days	Mon 1/1/18 Fri 3/15/1		
Construction Package 1 (NPPP, Preliminary Grading)	85 days	Mon 1/1/18 Fri 4/27/:		
Design, QC Review/Independent Cost Review/ GMP	55 days	Mon 1/1/18 Fri 3/16/1	·····	
Contract/CMP Preparation (Pima County)	10 days	Mon 3/19/18 Fri 3/30/1		
Construction	20 days	Mon 4/2/18 Fri 4/27/1		
Preliminary Site Investigations	20 days	Mon 1/1/18 Fri 1/26/1		8///02/52/2
Assessment of Existing Utility Services	20 days	Mon 1/1/18 Fri 1/26/1		
Survey (by Pima County)	20 days	Mon 1/1/18 Fri 1/26/1		
Geotechnical Investigations	20 days 20 days	Mon 1/1/18 Fri 1/26/1		
Dreinege Investigations				
Budget Breakdown/Schedule Evaluation	20 days	Mon 1/1/18 Fri 1/26/1	CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR	
Programming and Site Design	10 days	Mon 1/15/18 Fri 1/26/1		
	25 days	Mon 1/15/18 Fri 2/16/1		
Facility Programming - Concession Building, Site Features Preliminary Site Plan / Alternatives Development	15 days	Mon 1/15/18 Fri 2/2/18	······	
	15 days	Mon 1/15/18 Fri 2/2/18		Kasa .
Order-of-Magnitude Cost Estimate	10 days	Mon 1/22/18 Fri 2/2/18		
Pima County Review and Confirmation of Site Plan / Program Schematic Design	10 days	Mon 2/5/18 Fri 2/16/1		
	30 days	Mon 2/19/18 Fri 3/30/1	.8	1
Preliminary Coordination with Utility Companies Schematic Design -	20 days	Mon 2/19/18 Fri 3/16/1	8 19	K ernen
	20 days	Mon 2/19/18 Fri 3/16/1	8 19	ESTENT-
Q.C Review/Independent Cost Estimate/GMP	10 days	Mon 3/5/18 Fri 3/16/1	8 22FF	
Pima County Review	10 days	Mon 3/19/18 Fri 3/30/1	8 23	tan -
Construction Package 2 (Entry Road and Bridge)	120 days	Mon 2/5/18 Fri 7/20/1	8	
Design	40 days	Mon 2/5/18 Fri 3/30/1	8 24FF,12,13	
Q.C Review/Independent Cost Estimate/GMP	15 days	Mon 3/12/18 Fri 3/30/1	8 26FF	
Pima County Review	10 days	Mon 4/2/18 Fri 4/13/1	8 27	
Permitting	10 days	Mon 4/16/18 Fri 4/27/1	8 28	
Bridge Fabrication	40 days	Mon 4/30/18 Fri 6/22/1	8 29	
Construction and Bridge Placement	60 days	Mon 4/30/18 Fri 7/20/1	8 29	
Construction Package 3 (Grading/Utilities)	210 days	Mon 4/2/18 Fri 1/18/1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Design (Grading/Utilities)	50 days	Mon 4/2/18 Fri 6/8/18		processor (
Comment Resolution Workshop	5 days	Mon 4/2/18 Fri 4/6/18	B. 1111	
Follow-up Coordination with Utility Companies	10 days	Mon 4/2/18 Fri 4/13/1		
100% CD - Site Civil (Grading, Utilities)	40 days	Mon 4/2/18 Fri 5/25/1	and a second	
Q.C Review/Independent Cost Estimate/GMP	25 days	Mon 4/23/18 Fri 5/25/1		
Pima County Review	5 days	Mon 5/28/18 Fri 6/1/18		
Pre-Submittal Meeting with Development Services	5 days	Mon 6/4/18 Fri 6/8/18		
Permitting (Grading/Utilities)				
	10 days	Mon 6/11/18 Fri 6/22/1		
Permitting / Development Services Review/Bidding Grading/Utilities Construction	10 days	Mon 6/11/18 Fri 6/22/1		(000 -
	90 days	Mon 6/25/18 Fri 10/26/	N. W	
	90 days	Mon 6/25/18 Fri 10/26/		
Construction Package 4 (Reclaimed Water Line Extension) Coordination Meeting with Tucson Water	210 days	Mon 4/2/18 Fri 1/18/1		
Coordination Meeting with Tucson Water	10 days	Mon 4/2/18 Fri 4/13/1	8 20	2010 ·

Task Name	Duration	Start	Finish .	Predecessors
16 Preliminary Routing Plan / Alternatives	20 days	Mon 4/16/1	8 Fri 5/11/18	45
47 Pima County Review and Decision	10 days	Mon 5/14/1	8 Fri 5/25/18	46
18 Design	60 days	Mon 5/28/1	8 Fri 8/17/18	47
49 Q.C Review/Independent Cost Estimate/GMP	15 days	Mon 7/30/1	8 Fri 8/17/18	48FF
50 Pima County Review	30 days	Mon 8/20/1	8 Fri 9/28/18	49
51 Construction	80 days	Mon 10/1/1	8 Fri 1/18/19	50
2 Construction Package 5 (Final Construction)	290 days	Mon 4/2/18	Fri 5/10/19	
3 Design Development(Final Construction)	35 days	Mon 4/2/18	Fri 5/18/18	de de 18
4 Comment Resolution Workshop	5 days	Mon 4/2/18	Fri 4/6/18	24
55 DD - (Site Civil, Building, Fields, Irrigation, Landscape, Lighting, Buildings) 30 days	Mon 4/2/18	Fri 5/11/18	24
6 Q.C Review/Independent Cost Estimate/GMP	20 days	Mon 4/16/1	8 Fri 5/11/18	55FF
7 Pima County Review	5 days	Mon 5/14/1	B Fri 5/18/18	56
8 50% Construction Documents (Final Construction)	40 days	Mon 5/21/1	8 Fri 7/13/18	
9 Comment Resolution Workshop	5 days	Mon 5/21/1	8 Fri 5/25/18	57
60 Follow-up Coordination with Utility Companies	30 days	Mon 5/28/1	B Fri 7/6/18	59
1 50% CD -(Site Civil, Fields, Irrigation, Landscape, Lighting, Buildings)	30 days	Mon 5/28/1	B Fri 7/6/18	59
2 Q.C Review/Independent Cost Estimate/GMP	20 days	Mon 6/11/1	8 Fri 7/6/18	61FF
3 Pima County Review	5 days	Mon 7/9/18	Fri 7/13/18	62
100% Construction Documents(Final Construction)	45 days	Mon 7/16/1	8 Fri 9/14/18	
5 Comment Resolution Workshop	5 days	Mon 7/16/1	8 Fri 7/20/18	63
6 Follow-up Coordination with Utility Companies	5 days	Mon 7/23/1	8 Fri 7/27/18	65
7 100% CD - (Site Civil, Fields, Irrigation, Landscape, Lighting, Buildings)	30 days	Mon 7/23/1	8 Fri 8/31/18	65
Q.C Review/Independent Cost Estimate/GMP	20 days	Mon 8/6/18	Fri 8/31/18	67FF
9 Pima County Review	5 days	Mon 9/3/18	Fri 9/7/18	68
O Pre-Submittal Meeting with Development Services	5 days	Mon 9/10/18	B Fri 9/14/18	69
71 Permitting/Bidding (Final Construction)	10 days	Mon 9/17/1	8 Fri 9/28/18	
72 Permitting / Development Services Review/Bidding	10 days	CONTRACTOR AND A CONTRACT OF A CONTRACT OF A DECISION OF A CONTRACT OF A DECISION OF A DECISIONO OF A DECISIONO OF	3 Fri 9/28/18	70
73 Final Construction	160 days	Mon 10/1/1	8 Fri 5/10/19	
74 Construction	160 days	Mon 10/1/18	3 Fri 5/10/19	72

EXHIBIT "C" – GENERAL CONDITIONS (49 pages)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1 - GENRAL ARTICLES

- 1.1 Mutual Obligations
- 1.2 Basic Definitions
- 1.3 Contract General Conditions

ARTICLE 2 - CMAR'S SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIEIS

- 2.1 General Services
- 2.2 Pre-construction Services
- 2.3 Legal Requirements
- 2.4 Government Approvals and Permits
- 2.5 CMAR's Construction Phase Services
- 2.7 CMAR's Responsibility for Project Safety
- 2.8 Warranty
- 2.9 Correction of Defective Work

ARTICLE 3 – DP'S SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

ARTICLE 4 - COUNTY'S SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

ARTICLE 5 - HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS AND UNFORESEEN PROJECT SITE CONDITIONS

- 5.1 Hazardous Materials
- 5.2 Unforeseen Project Site Conditions

ARTICLE 6 – RESERVED

ARTICLE 7 - PAYMENT

- 7.1 Guaranteed Maximum Price; Savings
- 7.2 Schedule of Values
- 7.3 Applications for Progress Payments
- 7.4 Payments and Retainage
- 7.5 Early Release of Subcontractor Retainage
- 7.6 Payment for On-Site and Off-Site Materials
- 7.7 Ownership of Construction Work
- 7.8 Substantial Completion
- 7.9 Final Completion and Final Payment
- 7.10 Allowances
- 7.11 Contingencies

ARTICLE 8 - INDEMNIFICATION

- 8.1 Proprietary Rights, Patent and Copyright Infringement
- 8.2 General Indemnity

ARTICLE 9 - TIME AND DELAY

ARTICLE 10 - CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT PRICE AND TIME

- 10.1 Changes
- 10.2 Minor Changes in the Work
- 10.3 Price, Time, or Scope of Work Adjustment
- 10.4 Emergencies

ARTICLE 11 - STOP WORK AND TERMINATION11.1COUNTY's Right to Stop Work or Terminate for Convenience11.2COUNTY's Right to Perform and Terminate for Cause11.3CMAR's Right to Stop Work and Terminate for Cause
ARTICLE 1 - GENERAL ARTICLES

1.1 MUTUAL OBLIGATIONS

COUNTY, Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR), and Design Professional (DP) commit, at all times, to cooperate fully with each other, and proceed on the basis of trust, confidence, and good faith to permit each party to realize the benefits expected and afforded under the Contract Documents, which benefits include the satisfactory and timely completion of the Project and performance of all obligations required by or inferable from the Contract Documents.

1.2 BASIC DEFINITIONS

- 1.2.1 "Actual Cost of the Work" is the aggregate amount of CMAR Direct Construction Costs and Indirect Construction Costs properly and actually chargeable to COUNTY when calculated under the provisions of **Appendix "B" of the CMAR Contract** throughout the Project up to the time of Final Completion.
- 1.2.2 "Allowances" are items established by COUNTY in the GMP as estimates for the cost of items of included in the Work. To the extent that the Actual Cost of the Work is lesser or greater than the corresponding estimate, the GMP will be reduced or increased by Change Order with such amount being added to or taken from COUNTY'S Contingency.
- 1.2.3 "Bidding Contingency", or "CMAR Contingency" means that part of the Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) the CMAR may use during the Bidding or Construction Phase as provided in these General Conditions at 7.11, to cover any excess of the amount bid by a subcontractor over the amount for that Work in the GMP, or to cover legitimate unforeseen construction expenses once construction begins. Contingency may not be used to cover the cost of any Work on the Project after issuance of the Certificate of Final Completion.
- 1.2.4 "CMAR Authorization" Chapter 6 of Title 34, Arizona Revised Statutes
- 1.2.5 "CMAR" means the CMAR and all persons and entities identified as members of the CMAR team in the CMAR's response to COUNTY'S SFQ that led to the Contract with all Contract Amendments, and any substitutes permitted under the terms of the Contract, and these General Conditions. The CMAR participates in the Pre-Construction Phase as set forth in Pre-Construction Phase Services Contract by, among other things, developing a cost model and refining it during design to ensure construction costs remain within COUNTY'S budget, doing value engineering and reviewing constructability, preparing schedules, and identifying the life-cycle implications of alternate designs, systems, and materials. **During construction, the CMAR assumes all risk for price and schedule under the Contract and its GMP, except as otherwise provided in the Contract.**
- "Construction General Conditions" include, but are not limited to, the following types of costs during 1.2.6 construction: Project Director costs directly attributable to time expended in execution of the project, whether on- or offsite; payroll costs for project manager or construction manager for work conducted at the site; payroll costs for the superintendent and full-time general foremen; payroll costs for other management personnel resident and working on the site; general support workers not included in direct labor costs (e.g. loading/unloading, clean-up, etc.); onsite administrative office personnel; costs of offices and temporary facilities including office materials, office supplies, office equipment, minor expenses; utilities, fuel, sanitary facilities and telephone services at the site; and fees for licenses. General Conditions specifically exclude, without limitation, the following: Home (off-site) Expenses, Profit & Overhead; Home Office Personnel such as Corporate Executive, Project Executive; Home Office Staff Transportation & Travel Costs; Home Office Accounting & Contract Forms; Legal Expenses; Project Staff Moving Expense; off-site Staff Training & Education; Pre-Mobilization Office Space; off-site Equipment & Supplies; Forms; Estimating & Value/Constructability Analysis; Warranty Coordination; Legal Expenses, Contractor Yard not Dedicated to Project, Contractor Association Fees, Licenses & Memberships; Cost over GMP, Corrective Work, Bonuses, Cost of Living Allowance, marketing expenses, corporate sponsorships and entertainment, and Promotional or Celebratory Expenses the

CMAR incurs while performing and completing the Project. The Parties acknowledge that some portion of the General Conditions represent upfront costs associated with mobilization and startup of construction. These amounts will be deducted from the total amount of General Conditions in the GMP and the balance will be divided by the number of days allowed for performance to arrive at a fixed daily rate for use in estimating the amount, if any, of the adjustment for General Conditions associated with changes in Contract Time or for the number of workdays in any particular month.

- 1.2.7 "Construction Documents" are the plans and specifications prepared by the DP for the Project, approved by COUNTY, and incorporated into the Contract by reference after such approval, to be used to construct the Project. All Contract Amendments, Change Orders, and other modifications to the Construction Documents must be approved by COUNTY prior to incorporation into the Contract.
- 1.2.8 "Construction Phase Fee" includes profit and unallowable costs, and overhead in the case of vertical construction. The Construction Phase Fee will initially be calculated not to exceed five percent (5%) of Direct Construction Cost only, and then will be fixed as a dollar amount as mutually negotiated and agreed to by the Parties. Overhead will be treated as described in 1.2.24.
- 1.2.9 "Contract Float" If the CPM schedule of the Work anticipates early completion of all or any part of the Work. Contract Float is the number of calendar days between CMAR's anticipated date for early completion of all or any such part of the Work and the corresponding specified Contract Time. It is owned jointly by COUNTY and CMAR.
- 1.2.10 "Contract Time" is the time allotted in the Contract Documents for completion of the Work.
- 1.2.11 "Cost of the Work" consists of those items of Work that are paid for by COUNTY to the CMAR consisting of those Direct Construction Costs and Indirect Construction Costs set forth as allowable in Appendix "C" Construction Costing of the CMAR Contract.
- 1.2.12 "Day" as used in these General Conditions refers to a calendar day unless otherwise denoted.
- 1.2.13 "Deliverables" the Work product prepared by the CMAR within the definition of the Scope of Work in the Contract. Some of these deliverables provided by the CMAR during the Pre-Construction Phase are the Cost Model, Project Schedule, Schedule of Values, Evaluations of Alternatives, Procurement Strategies, proposed SBE Utilization, Subcontractor and Supplier bid packages and Contracts.
- 1.2.14 Design Professional ("DP") or Engineer is contracted with COUNTY, and a) is a qualified professional properly licensed in the State of Arizona to furnish applicable design services (and construction administration services, if so designated by COUNTY), and b) is responsible for the review of submittals, responding to CMAR Requests for Information (RFI), , and Substantial Completion, if so designated.
- 1.2.15 "Design Submission Documents" consist of the drawings and specifications submitted at specific milestones in the design effort by the DP and other documents prepared by the CMAR that are submitted for COUNTY'S approval for each milestone in Project design. Because design milestones may vary from project to project, COUNTY will notify CMAR in writing of the milestones applicable to the project covered by this Contract. Such milestones will be as binding as if set forth herein.
- 1.2.16 Direct Construction Cost is the sum of all applicable Construction General Conditions costs, subcontractor costs, costs of self-performed Work (if approved in writing in advance by COUNTY), Allowances and Contingencies. Contingencies specifically include Bidding and Construction Contingency, Design Contingency, and Schedule Contingency, as applicable.
- 1.2.17 "Final Completion" is defined as one hundred percent (100%) completion of all Work described by or reasonably inferred from the Project Criteria and Contract Documents, including but not limited to all punch lists, Close-Out Documents, and COUNTY training/start up activities, if included.

- 1.2.18 "Guaranteed Maximum Price" (GMP) is the dollar amount that the CMAR guarantees to be the maximum amount due from COUNTY to the CMAR under the Contract for Construction Phase services. It is the sum of CMAR's Construction Phase Fee, the Cost of the Work, and Contingencies and Allowances established in accordance with the Contract. The GMP is subject to additions or deductions due to changes in the Scope of Work. All costs, which exceed the GMP and are not authorized by written Change Order, are to be paid by the CMAR and not COUNTY.
- 1.2.19 Governmental Agency is any unit of federal, state, or local government with regulatory authority over any aspect of the Work.
- 1.2.20 "Hazardous Material" means any waste, substance, object, or material deemed hazardous under federal, state, or local law, including "hazardous substance" as defined under CERCLA, "hazardous waste" as defined under RCRA, and "hazardous material" as defined under US DOT regulations (49 CFR 100-180).
- 1.2.21 Indirect Construction Cost is the sum of all applicable insurance costs, bond costs and applicable sales or use taxes, but excludes Construction Phase Fee.
- 1.2.22 "Legal Requirements" include all regulations, policies, procedures, and practices of COUNTY and all applicable rules, laws, codes, ordinances, and regulations of any federal, state, or local government or quasi-governmental entity having jurisdiction over the Work, the practices involved in the Work, or any Work performed.
- 1.2.23 "Open Book Cost" is the Actual Cost of the Work as compiled and recorded in accordance with the provisions of Subsection 2.1.14 of these General Conditions.
- 1.2.24 "Overhead" is generally comprised of those items specifically excluded from General Conditions in paragraph 1.2.6 except for Estimating and Value/Constructability Analysis and profit. If this Contract is for vertical construction, Overhead will be included in the Construction Fee. If this Contract is not for vertical construction, then Overhead will be separately stated in the GMP Summary. Job Overhead will be included in General Conditions.
- 1.2.25 "Partnering or Teaming" is a mutual effort by all parties involved in the Project, principally COUNTY, the DP, and the CMAR, to cooperate and coordinate efforts to achieve the final result intended by the Project criteria. All involved use their expertise for the benefit of all. Partnering requires flexibility and appreciation of the positions of other parties and willingness to make compromises for the benefit of all. COUNTY has the exclusive right to decide whether to use Partnering on the Project and will indicate its decision during the Pre-Construction Phase.
- 1.2.26 "Pre-Construction Phase Fee" includes all direct and indirect costs of CMAR in providing Pre-Construction Phase Services until completion of the Construction Documents and the award of all bid packages, plus associated Overhead and profit.
- 1.2.27 "Project Budget" is the funding available to the COUNTY for the total cost of the Project, including the DP, CMAR's Pre-Construction Phase Fee, the GMP (including CMAR's Construction Phase Fee, Construction Services, and Contingencies), permit fees, and other costs necessary to achieve Final Completion of the Project.
- 1.2.28 "Project Criteria" developed by or for COUNTY describe COUNTY'S program, requirements and objectives for the Project, including (if vertical) use, space, price, time, site, utility, parking, and expandability requirements, as well as all submittal requirements and other requirements affecting CMAR's performance of its Work. The Project Criteria may include conceptual documents, design criteria, performance requirements, and other Project specific technical materials and requirements prepared by or for COUNTY.

- 1.2.29 "Project Manager" refers to the COUNTY Representative that is responsible to COUNTY for the Project completion within COUNTY established Schedule, Budget and Scope. In this document "Project Manager" is the same as "COUNTY"
- 1.2.30 "Punch List" are those minor items of Work identified and listed by COUNTY or DP and agreed to be completed by CMAR after Substantial Completion and prior to Final Completion, which do not prevent the Project from being fully used for the purpose for which it is intended.
- 1.2.31 "Savings" is the difference, if any, between the GMP and the Actual Cost of the Work and will be allocated as set forth in Article 7. Amount of savings is to be determined by COUNTY with such assistance as COUNTY requests of CMAR and is to be based on the GMP in effect on the date of Final Completion of the entire Work.
- 1.2.32 "Site" is the land and other areas on which the Project is located.
- 1.2.33 "Subcontractor" (of any tier) is any entity or person who performs a portion of the Work, on or off site, directly on behalf of the CMAR, including any materials, workers and suppliers, and includes all employees, agents and authorized representatives of such entities or persons.
- 1.2.34 "Substantial Completion" is the date on which CMAR's Work, or an agreed upon portion of the Work, is sufficiently complete, as determined by the DP or COUNTY'S issuance of a Certificate of Substantial Completion, so that COUNTY can fully occupy and utilize the Project, or a portion thereof, for the purposes for which it is intended. In order to achieve substantial completion, all Work must be complete, including all tests and inspections, except for items included on the approved punch list.
- 1.2.35 "Total Float" is the number of calendar days by which the Work or any part of the Work may be delayed without necessarily extending a pertinent Contract Time. Total Float is at least equal to Contract Float.
- 1.2.36 "Value Engineering Proposal" is a modification to the Work proposed by the CMAR after the Effective Date of the Contract for the purpose of reducing the total cost of construction while still delivering a quality and functional Project. Value Engineering is part of the broader goal of obtaining optimum value for each dollar COUNTY spends on the Project.
- 1.2.37 "Work" is comprised of all activities required in order to complete the Project as defined by the Project Criteria and Contract Documents, including procuring and furnishing all materials, equipment, services, and labor reasonably inferable from the Contract Documents, or from prevailing trade usage and custom.

1.3 CONTRACT GENERAL CONDITIONS

These provisions set forth the mutual understanding and agreement of the Parties regarding the Contract general conditions or subjects addressed therein.

- 1.3.1 COUNTY has hired or will hire a DP to design the Project.
- 1.3.2 The design for the Project may not be complete at a) the time the GMP is agreed to; b) the time of execution of the Contract; or c) both a) and b).
- 1.3.3 CMAR will cooperate and interact with and advise the DP in producing a completed design for the Project that is acceptable to COUNTY, all as more fully described in the Contract Documents.
- 1.3.4 When the Design Documents are complete and requisite approvals obtained and are then accepted by COUNTY, they become part of the Contract Documents without further action by the Parties as though they were specifically set forth therein at the time of execution of the Contract.

ARTICLE 2 - CMAR'S SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

2.1 GENERAL SERVICES

- 2.1.1 CMAR's Representative will attend all meetings and assist COUNTY during the Pre-Construction Phase in accordance with these General Conditions. During the Construction Phase, the CMAR's Representative, and Superintendent as necessary, will be at the Site at all times when Work is being performed, and will have the necessary expertise and experience required to properly supervise the Work. CMAR's Representative will communicate regularly with COUNTY and DP and be vested with the authority to act on behalf of CMAR as to all matters. The expectation is that meetings will be collaborative among the COUNTY, DP and CMAR as described below.
 - 2.1.1.1 The CMAR, DP and COUNTY will attend all regular meetings, including rolling design reviews, and such additional meetings that are called as provided below.
 - 2.1.1.2 During the Design Phase all regular meetings will be scheduled by the DP with the agreement of the CMAR and approval of COUNTY. Unless otherwise agreed, meetings will be held weekly for the purpose of tracking design progress and consistency with COUNTY'S requirements. DP will be responsible for tracking and reporting on the design evolution log. CMAR will be responsible at such meetings for cost and scope tracking, early identification of long-lead items, and making recommendations regarding constructability, construction sequencing, materials, and other factors that can have a material impact on cost or schedule. COUNTY will schedule all additional meetings.
 - 2.1.1.3 During the Design Phase, DP will take minutes at each meeting and distribute draft minutes within three (3) business days after each meeting. The CMAR and COUNTY will promptly review the minutes of each meeting and deliver any comments to the DP. The DP will promptly issue final minutes of each meeting, which will be approved by DP, CMAR and COUNTY.
 - 2.1.1.4 At the commencement of the Construction Phase, COUNTY, CMAR, and DP will meet to review cooperation, coordination, and if applicable, partnering during the construction phase and to establish procedures governing, among other matters, submittals and scheduling of site activities.
 - 2.1.1.5 During the Construction Phase there will be weekly progress meetings of the DP, CMAR, and COUNTY. The CMAR will schedule and conduct the progress meetings during the Construction Phase. The weekly progress meetings will be used to discuss jointly such matters as procedures, progress, scheduling, submittals, requests for information (RFI), any Work deficiencies, any other actual problems or potential problems, fixes to and limits on actual problems, and ways to avoid, limit, or fix potential problems. At each meeting, the CMAR will provide and discuss a CPM-based look ahead schedule of construction activities to be accomplished in the next three weeks. Presentation of the look-ahead does not substitute for the twenty-four (24) hour advance notice required in section 2.6.10.8 prior to all special inspections. COUNTY, DP, and CMAR will contribute their good faith efforts in such discussions to find ways (i) to complete the Project within the Contract Time(s) in accordance with the Construction Documents and the other CMAR Contract Documents and within the Guaranteed Maximum Price; (ii) to limit and fix actual problems; (iii) to anticipate and then avoid, limit or fix potential problems; and (iv) to discuss and decide other matters brought up by COUNTY, DP, or CMAR. None of these discussions will affect or impair the respective rights, responsibilities and obligations of DP, COUNTY, and CMAR under the DP Contract or the CMAR Contract.
 - 2.1.1.6 During the Construction Phase, special on-site meetings will be held as requested by COUNTY, DP, or CMAR.

- 2.1.1.7 During the Construction Phase, the CMAR will take minutes at each meeting and distribute draft minutes within three (3) business days after each meeting. The DP and COUNTY will promptly review the minutes of each meeting and deliver any comments to the CMAR. The CMAR will promptly issue final minutes of each meeting, which will be approved by CMAR, DP, and COUNTY.
- 2.1.1.8 CMAR and DP, when requested by COUNTY, will attend, make presentations and participate as may be appropriate in public agency or community meetings related to the Project. DP will provide drawings and illustrations and CMAR will provide schedule diagrams, budget charts and other materials describing the Project when their use is required or appropriate in any such meetings.
- 2.1.2 During both the Pre-Construction and Construction Phases the CMAR will provide COUNTY and DP, on a monthly basis, a written status report detailing the progress of the Work during that month, including whether the Work is proceeding according to Schedule, an updated and current Critical Path Method (CPM) Schedule, an updated and current Work cash flow projection for the duration of the Project, copies of the construction Superintendent's daily site reports, identification of any discrepancies, conflicts, or ambiguities existing in the Construction Documents that require resolution, whether health and safety issues have arisen in connection with performance of the Work, and whether other matters exist that require resolution so as not to jeopardize CMAR's ability to complete the Work for the GMP(s) on schedule and within the Contract Time(s). The CMAR's monthly report will also include a cost tracking report with the updated Cost Model, projected final cost, subcontract amounts and buy-out status and status of contingency and allowance usage.
- 2.1.3 Within thirty (30) days after executing the Contract, CMAR will prepare and submit to COUNTY:
 - 2.1.3.1 A Critical Path Method Master Schedule (CPM Schedule) for the Work including the activities in the Design Phase and the Construction Phase through bid and award. The CPM Schedule must include three (3) weeks of COUNTY review time for Design Submission Documents at each milestone and adequate time for Government Agency and for other regulatory-type reviews and for all other necessary approvals. The CPM Schedule will indicate the dates for the start and completion of the various stages of Work, including the dates when COUNTY information and approvals are required and all necessary shutdowns or suspensions of COUNTY or separate vendor activities on the site (if any). The CPM Schedule must allow for such multiple bid packages and fast-tracked construction as may be required and include any contemplated completion date(s) earlier than those required by the Contract Documents.
 - 2.1.3.2 A Cost Model for construction of the project. The Cost Model must contain <u>all</u> of the costs that will be included in the GMP, including cost of the Work, general conditions, bonds, insurance, permits, taxes, including, without limitation, applicable sales taxes and transaction privilege tax, CMAR's construction fee, contingency, and any other costs in the GMP. As part of the Cost Model, the CMAR will also identify all areas of concern or risk and assign a separate and reasonable contingency to each of them. The COUNTY and DP will review these submissions and may request changes. Final contingency amounts will be as agreed by the Project Team. The statement of areas of concern/risks will be stratified by cost to enable the Project Team to focus in pre-construction on resolving or eliminating the most costly uncertainties. CMAR will update the Cost Model not less than monthly as design progresses and uncertainties are resolved.
- 2.1.4 COUNTY, DP, and CMAR will have an initial meeting promptly after selection of the DP and the CMAR to discuss issues affecting Project administration and to implement procedures to permit COUNTY, DP, and CMAR to perform their respective obligations under the CMAR Contract and the DP Contract. Among other matters to be covered at this meeting will be procedures for efficient interaction during the Design Phase so that each can perform its activities, functions, and obligations in an efficient, cooperative, coordinated, collaborative, and communicative manner. Among other subjects to be covered by the procedures will be:

- 2.1.4.1 Arrangements for collaboration between the DP and CMAR in 1) preparing Design Submission Documents, the DP's Construction Cost Estimates, and the CMAR's Construction Costs Estimates, as required during the development of Preliminary Design, Final Design, and Construction Documents; and 2) submitting each set of Design Submission Documents and the related DP and CMAR Construction Cost Estimates to COUNTY for review and comment by COUNTY and for group discussion among the DP, CMAR, and COUNTY.
- 2.1.4.2 Arrangements that encourage frequent informal interaction, cooperation, coordination, collaboration, and communication among DP, COUNTY, and CMAR during the Design Phase, especially between submissions of Design Submission Documents and Construction Cost Estimates. These will include among other activities, the CMAR offering value engineering and constructability recommendations on the design of the Project and the DP using that information in its design work on the Project.
- 2.1.4.3 A schedule for the activities of the CMAR, COUNTY, and DP during the Design Phase.
- 2.1.4.4 Formal partnering for the Design Phase, at the option of COUNTY. Partnering is a mutual effort by all the parties involved in the Project to cooperate and coordinate efforts in order to achieve the final result. Partnering requires that all parties use their particular expertise for the mutual benefit of all, rather than for the benefit of the one. Partnering requires flexibility, the ability to appreciate the positions of the other parties and to make compromises for the benefit of all. Partnering will be implemented through a formal partnering process developed as described above and presented in a separate workshop attended by CMAR, COUNTY, DP, and their key participants. Follow up sessions will occur every three (3) months or as mutually agreed to ensure that all commitments are updated and being followed by all parties. The cost of this partnering effort during Design Phase will be shared equally by COUNTY, the CMAR, and the DP.
- 2.1.4.5 A responsibility matrix developed with the cooperation and collaboration of COUNTY, CMAR, and DP.
- 2.1.4.6 No action, or attempted action, of cooperation, coordination, collaboration, or communication, and no failure to cooperate, coordinate, collaborate, or communicate, on any matter will affect or impair the respective rights and obligations of COUNTY, DP, and CMAR under the DP or CMAR Contracts. No failure by any one party to perform its obligations under this Section excuses any failure by another party to perform any obligation under other provisions of the Contract Documents, unless the obligation that the first party failed to perform is an essential predicate to performance by the second party. In such case, it is the second party's duty to make all reasonable efforts to perform its obligations.
- 2.1.5 The CMAR will interact and cooperate fully with COUNTY and DP during the design and construction phases so as to keep the Work within COUNTY'S budget and schedule limitations.
- 2.1.6 The CMAR covenants with COUNTY to furnish its best skill and judgment and to cooperate with the DP in furthering the interests of COUNTY. CMAR agrees to furnish efficient business administration and superintendence and to use its best efforts to timely complete the Work in an expeditious and economical manner consistent with the interests of COUNTY.
- 2.1.7 The CMAR, COUNTY, and DP, collectively the "Project Team", will cooperatively work together during all phases of the Work to achieve completion. The CMAR will provide leadership to the Project Team during the Pre-Construction Phase for all cost, schedule, or alternative systems issues, and all matters relating to construction. During the pre-construction phase the CMAR will provide to COUNTY and the DP a written evaluation of COUNTY'S Project Program and Project Budget and Schedule, each in relationship to the other with recommendations on the appropriateness of each.

- 2.1.8 The Contract Documents do not create any contractual relationship between the DP and the CMAR or any separate contractors, consultants, subcontractors of any sub-tier, or suppliers on the Project, nor does anything contained in the Contract Documents give any third party any claim or right of action against COUNTY, the DP, or CMAR which does not otherwise explicitly exist in the Contract Documents.
- 2.1.9 The CMAR's initial Work consists of its services in connection with the Pre-Construction Phase. The CMAR's Services in that phase will be parallel to and coincidental with the DP's Services. CMAR will prepare an itemized systems type cost estimate at the completion of the Schematic/Conceptual Design Phase, and at other times as agreed upon by the Project Team, in a format consistent with that used by DP or in a format otherwise mutually agreed upon prior to the cost estimate preparation. CMAR will prepare Construction Specifications Institute (CSI) Master Formatted cost estimates at each submittal phase after the completion of Schematic/Conceptual Design, to verify that the Project is staying within the applicable portions of COUNTY'S identified budget. CMAR will keep all Deliverables required of it up to date during the Pre-Construction Phase.
- 2.1.10 The CMAR will provide a GMP during the Pre-Construction Phase as called out in Article 3(A) of the CMAR Contract.
- 2.1.11 Subject to the other provisions of these General Conditions, execution of the Contract by the CMAR is a representation that the CMAR has visited the Site, has become familiar with the locale and any specific conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and has correlated CMAR's personal observations with the requirements of COUNTY'S Project criteria.
- 2.1.12 The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Work. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by any one is binding as if required by all. Work not covered in the Contract Documents but that the DP considers necessary for the proper completion of the Work will be required of CMAR unless it is inconsistent with the Contract Documents, or is not reasonably inferable therefrom as being necessary to produce the intended results. Words and abbreviations that have well known technical or trade meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with their recognized meanings.
- 2.1.13 The organization of the Specifications into division, section, and article, and the arrangement of Drawings does not obligate or control the CMAR in dividing performance of the Work among subcontractors, or in establishing the extent of the Work to be performed by any one trade.
- 2.1.14 With respect to all Work performed by CMAR and its Subcontractors and Consultants, CMAR and its Subcontractors and Consultants will keep full and detailed accounts and exercise such cost controls as may be necessary for proper financial management, using accounting and control systems in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and subject to review by COUNTY. During performance of the Work and for five (5) years after Final Payment, the CMAR will retain and will also require all Subcontractors and Consultants to retain for review or audit, or both, by COUNTY all correspondence, meeting minutes, memoranda, electronic media, books, accounts, reports, files, time cards, material invoices, payrolls, and evidence of all communications, direct and indirect costs, and all other matters related to the Work. Upon request by COUNTY, CMAR will produce a legible copy or the original of any or all such records as are described above at any time during or after the Work as COUNTY may request. Upon request, the CMAR will submit to COUNTY copies of all payrolls, reports, estimates, records, Change Order costs and data, and any other data concerning Work performed or to be performed, materials supplied or to be supplied, including Subcontractor or Consultant payment applications or invoices and such Subcontractor's or Consultant's progress payment checks. The requirements of this Section will be provided for in all contracts between the CMAR and its Subcontractors and Consultants. COUNTY may exercise its rights under this Paragraph as often as reasonably necessary in COUNTY'S sole judgment to assure COUNTY has a complete and accurate understanding of all Project costs.

2.2 PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

The CMAR's primary responsibility during pre-construction is to apply its knowledge and experience to keeping the design capable of being constructed within the budget and schedule. CMAR must track costs on an ongoing basis and proactively advise DP and COUNTY of lower cost or more effective means, methods, materials, design aspects, etc., or anytime when construction costs exceed, or threaten to exceed the budget, so the Project Team can take appropriate action.

- 2.2.1 The CMAR will independently develop a Construction Cost Model for the Project for COUNTY'S review and approval. COUNTY will advise the DP and CMAR in writing of the amount of COUNTY'S Construction Budget. DP and CMAR will evaluate COUNTY'S Construction Budget for cost realism and prepare construction cost estimates for the completion of the Work. DP and CMAR's cost estimates must include all of the costs that will be included in the GMP, including labor, materials, general conditions, bonds, taxes, CMAR construction fee, CMAR's contingency, and all other GMP costs. DP, CMAR, and COUNTY will reconcile the differences between COUNTY'S Construction Budget and the DP and CMAR estimates, if any, to develop an agreed estimate for the cost of construction. If the agreed estimate exceeds COUNTY'S Construction Budget, COUNTY, at its sole discretion, may 1) seek additional funding; 2) direct redesign or re-scoping of the Project to bring it within the available funding; or 3) any combination of 1) and 2); or 4) determine not to go forward with this Contract for all or part of the Project. Any adjustment to COUNTY'S budget or scope must be in writing and approved by COUNTY.
- 2.2.2 Unless otherwise agreed by COUNTY and the DP, COUNTY may retain or authorize DP or CMAR to retain surveyors, engineers, or other consultants in connection with the following items, provided such information is specifically requested by the DP or COUNTY:
 - a. A survey of existing site conditions. A complete and accurate survey of the Project site and existing improvements including, but not limited to, grades and lines of streets, pavements, and adjoining properties, contours of the site, and full information as to sewer, water, gas, electrical service, telephone lines, or other utilities.
 - b. A report on subsurface investigations. Professional recommendations regarding local conditions accompanied by test borings, or test pits, soil bearing values, percolation tests, air and water pollution tests, ground corrosion, and resistivity tests including necessary operations for determining subsoil, air and water conditions, and chemical, mechanical, laboratory, or other tests.
 - c. CMAR may recommend such additional geotechnical or investigative tests, such as potholing, as CMAR believes may be necessary to support construction on the site.
 - d. As-built information in possession of COUNTY concerning any existing improvements that will remain on the Site and that will be incorporated into the Project, to which the Project will be attached, or with which the Project will be interconnected.
 - e. Other tests recommended by DP or CMAR and agreed to by COUNTY.

In addition to the above information, the DP is responsible for obtaining information concerning conditions of the Site required by law or typically obtained within the DP's industry to assess conditions for similar projects and will advise COUNTY of any such information so obtained that may be significant to the Project.

COUNTY will deliver to DP a copy of all available surveys, reports, test results, and other information described in this Section 2.2.2. Such items, any other information concerning the Site delivered by COUNTY to DP, and all information DP is obligated to obtain on its own initiative are referred to as the "DP Site Information".

The DP and CMAR will thoroughly acquaint themselves with all DP Site Information.

By making each submission of any Design Submission Documents (including, without limitation, the Construction Documents) the DP represents and warrants to COUNTY that DP has examined and evaluated the DP Site Information and has taken the DP Site Information into account in preparing the Design Submission Documents.

The DP and CMAR have the right to rely upon surveys, soil test reports, other test reports and other information provided by COUNTY, but only to the extent provided in said reports or information. The DP will carefully examine all surveys, soil test reports, other test reports and other information, whether obtained by the DP or COUNTY, and will promptly report to COUNTY any obvious or reasonably suspected errors, omissions, or inadequacies in such surveys, soil test reports, other test reports, and other information of which the DP becomes aware as a result of such examination or otherwise, and of any disagreement the DP may have with the conclusions of such surveys, soil test reports, other test reports, and other information. The DP and the DP's Consultants will make themselves available to the soils engineer and any other person retained by COUNTY to prepare any surveys, soils test reports, other test reports, other test reports, or other information, for the purpose of reconciling such concerns.

The DP will submit to COUNTY and CMAR all required Design Submission Documents to describe the 2.2.3 Project's essential elements. The Design Submission Documents required of the DP will include such drawings, specifications, and other documents as may be necessary to fully identify the Project scope and materials, together with the DP's Construction Cost Estimates. The CMAR will submit to COUNTY detailed Construction Cost Estimates as part of each design submission. At the time of each scheduled submission, CMAR, DP, and COUNTY will meet and confer about the submission. During the meeting, the CMAR and DP will identify, among other things, the evolution of the design and any significant changes or deviations from previously submitted Design Submission Documents and any changes in the CMAR's Construction Cost Estimate or the DP's Construction Cost Estimate. Within three (3) weeks following each design review meeting, COUNTY will approve or reject the Design Submission Documents, CMAR's Construction Cost Estimate, and the DP's Construction Cost Estimate. COUNTY may reject in full or in part any Design Submission Documents or Construction Cost Estimates which do not conform to COUNTY'S Project Criteria or overall Project concepts, which exceed the Construction Budget, or are not within the Guaranteed Maximum Price, or not consistent with the GMP Setting Drawings, Specifications, Assumptions, and Clarifications (unless the inconsistency was approved or requested by COUNTY), or for any other reasonable cause consistent with the intent of the DP Contract Documents or the CMAR Contract Documents, as applicable. In the event of such rejection, the DP or CMAR respectively will bear the costs of redesign or of revising the construction costs estimates, unless the deficiencies upon which rejection is based are attributable to COUNTY-requested changes. All deviations from COUNTY'S Project Criteria, the Construction Budget, the Guaranteed Maximum Price, or the GMP Setting Drawings, Specifications, Assumptions, and Clarifications must be approved in writing by COUNTY.

2.2.4 The CMAR will prepare a Project Management Plan (PMP), which will include:

- a. Project milestone dates and the Project Schedule, including the broad sequencing of the design and construction of the Project,
- b. Required and recommended investigations to be undertaken to ascertain subsurface conditions and physical conditions of existing surface and subsurface facilities and underground utilities,
- c. Alternate strategies for fast-tracking and/or phasing the construction,
- d. Construction management plan,
- e. Permitting strategy,
- f. Safety and training programs,
- g. Construction quality control,
- h. A commissioning program, if required for the Project,
- Cost estimate and basis of the model.
- j. A site security plan,
- k. Defined scope basis,
- Work breakdown structure if required,

m. Organization chart,

n. QA/QC Plan,

- o. Communication plan,
- p. Risk Management plan, and

q. Procurement plan

Until such time as the CMAR has been selected and receives Notice to Proceed, the DP will develop and maintain the Project Schedule on behalf of, and to be used by, the Project Team, based on input from the existing Project Team members. When the CMAR is brought into the Project Team, the CMAR will assume ownership and responsibility for the Project Schedule that will be incorporated into the PMP.

The fundamental purpose of the PMP is to identify, coordinate, and record the tasks and activities to be performed by all of the Project Team members. The Project Team will utilize the PMP as a basis for managing and monitoring all members' compliance with the requirements of the Project. Project Team members are responsible for their compliance with the PMP requirements. A member's failure to complete a task does not excuse a subsequent failure by another member unless the first member's task is a direct prerequisite to the latter's performance provide, however, the latter team member must make reasonable efforts to mitigate impacts of the failure. Resolution of compatibility issues between the different tracking programs that may be used is the responsibility of the CMAR (i.e. The CMAR may choose to re-enter all tracking data provided by the DP in its tracking program). The Project Schedule will be a CPM diagram schedule that shows the sequence of activities, the interdependency of each activity, will indicate the Critical Path including the Design and Construction phases, and will satisfy the requirements in **Section 2.2.5**.

2.2.5 The schedule for performance of the Construction Work will be a CPM schedule with reasonable detail, including a time-scaled network and computer printout in accordance with the following requirements:

The DP and CMAR will use scheduling software acceptable to COUNTY to develop the Project Schedule. The Project Schedule will be presented in graphical and/or tabular reports as agreed upon by the Project Team. If Project phasing, as described below, is required, the Project Schedule will indicate milestone dates for the phases, once determined.

The Project Schedule will provide three (3) weeks for COUNTY to review Design Submission Documents at each sub-phase of the Design Phase and provide adequate time for Government Agency reviews and all other necessary approvals and permits. The schedule will indicate the dates for the start and completion of the various stages of the Project, including, among others, the dates when COUNTY information and approvals are required and all necessary shutdowns or suspensions of COUNTY or separate vendor activities on the Site (if any). CMAR will update and reissue the Project Schedule throughout the Design Phase and the Construction Phase, as necessary and appropriate to reflect adjustments in the schedule. Updates will be subject to approval by COUNTY

The Project Schedule will be in Days (calendar days, unless otherwise directed by COUNTY) and indicate task duration (earliest start/latest completion) for all activities. Float times for all activities will be shown. The CPM diagram will be presented in a time scaled graphical format for the Project as a whole.

The Project Schedule must indicate all relationships between activities.

The activities making up the Project Schedule will be of sufficient detail to assure that adequate planning has been done for proper execution of the Work so that it provides an appropriate basis for monitoring and evaluating progress of the Work.

The activities upon which the Project Schedule is based will coincide with the Schedule of Values.

The Project Schedule will show all submittals associated with each Work activity and the review time for each submittal.

The Project Schedule will show milestones, including milestones for all Project Team members.

The Project Schedule will include anticipated rain delay during the performance of the construction contract. The duration will reflect the average climatic range and conditions prevailing in the locality of the site. Weather data, provided by the CMAR, will be based on information from the National Weather Services or other COUNTY-approved source.

The Project Schedule will consider the Substantial Completion date requirements showing portions of the Project having priority.

Float time will be prescribed as follows: The total Float within the overall schedule is not for the exclusive use of either COUNTY or CMAR, but is jointly owned by both and is a resource available to, and shared by, both parties as needed to meet contract milestones and the Project completion date.

CMAR will not sequester shared Float through such strategies as extending activity duration estimates to consume available Float, using preferential logic, or using extensive crew/resource sequencing, etc. Since Float time within the schedule is jointly owned, no time extensions will be granted, nor delay damages paid, until a delay occurs which extends the Work beyond the Substantial Completion date.

Since Float time within the schedule is jointly owned, COUNTY-caused delays on the Project may be offset by COUNTY-caused time savings (*i.e.*, critical path submittals returned in less time than allowed by the contract, approval of substitution requests and credit changes which result in savings of time to the CMAR, etc.). In such an event, the CMAR is not entitled to receive a time extension or delay damages until all COUNTY-caused time savings are exceeded, and the Substantial Completion date is also exceeded.

Throughout the Design Phase, CMAR will provide updates and/or revisions to the Project Schedule for use by the Project Team, whenever required, but no less often than monthly. The CMAR will add detail to previous version of the Project Schedule to keep it current throughout the Design Phase, so that the Project Schedule is ready for implementation at the start of the construction phase. The update/revisions will include:

- a. A narrative analyzing the progress achieved to-date vs. planned
- b. Any concerns regarding delays or potential delays, and any recommendations regarding mitigating actions
- c. Revisions in Drawings and Specifications
- d. The results of any additional investigative reports of subsurface conditions, drawings of physical conditions of existing surface and subsurface facilities, and documents depicting underground utilities placement and physical condition, whether obtained by COUNTY, DP or the CMAR
- e. Unresolved permitting issues, and significant issues, if any, pertaining to the acquisition of land and right of way
- f. The fast-tracking of any of the construction, or other chosen construction delivery methods
- g. The requisite number of separate bidding documents to be advertised
- h. The status of the procurement of long-lead time equipment and materials
- i. Funding issues (*i.e.*, delays) identified by COUNTY

If phased construction is deemed appropriate and both COUNTY and DP approve, CMAR will review the design and make recommendations regarding the phased issuance of Construction Documents to facilitate phased construction of the Work, with the objective of shortening the Construction Time and/or reducing the Cost of the Work. The CMAR will take into consideration such factors as natural and practical lines of Work severability, sequencing effectiveness, access and availability constraints, total time for completion, construction market conditions, labor and materials availability, effect on traffic or public access, and any other factors pertinent to saving time and cost. The Project Schedule will be adjusted to allow for phased construction or for portions of the Construction Work to be accepted separately by the COUNTY, if required by COUNTY.

2.3 CMAR – DP DESIGN COOPERATION

2.3.1 CMAR will continuously and actively track Project costs throughout the design phase, will proactively advise DP and COUNTY, and will make recommendations relating to construction costs and concerns regarding the feasibility and practicality of any proposed means and methods, selected materials, equipment, building systems, and labor and material availability, and long-lead items. CMAR will further advise COUNTY and DP regarding proposed site improvements, excavation, utility coordination, traffic control and public access, or other issues, as well as any concerns regarding the coordination of drawings and specifications. CMAR will advise COUNTY and DP any time that a design revision results in the CMAR's estimate of the Cost of Construction exceeding the COUNTY'S construction budget.

2.3.2 Conceptual/Schematic Design

- a. The DP will review COUNTY'S Project Criteria to ascertain the basic requirements for the Project. COUNTY will provide such planning and other documents to DP as are available.
- b. The DP will prepare an expanded Project description for review by COUNTY and CMAR and for COUNTY'S approval, which expands and refines the Project Criteria. The description will include all site conditions affecting the Project, including utilities, drainage and flood control implications, and other requirements specified by COUNTY.
- c. The CMAR will work in a collaborative, cooperative, coordinated and communicative manner with the DP in developing items defined in Item (b) above. If agreement by the DP and the CMAR is not attainable with respect to any item, DP and CMAR will promptly refer the matter to COUNTY who will make the final determination on the matter.
- d. The CMAR will develop and submit to COUNTY and DP a conceptual Construction Cost Estimate.
- e. Depending upon the stage of the Project at the inception of this Contract, COUNTY, in its sole discretion, may decide to forgo performance of the activities under this Paragraph 2.3.2 in whole or in part without liability to CMAR or DP.

2.3.3 Preliminary Design

- a. The DP will review the Project description with COUNTY and the CMAR, solicit and receive comments and recommendations from the CMAR and COUNTY, confirm COUNTY'S and CMAR's understanding of the subject matter, determine any additional, modified or alternative requirements, and obtain COUNTY'S approval.
- b. The DP will provide COUNTY with a preliminary evaluation of the requirements of the Project in light of the amount of the Construction Budget.
- c. The DP will review with COUNTY and CMAR alternate methods and approaches to design and construction of the Project, recommend an approach, and jointly decide with COUNTY and CMAR on the method best suited to COUNTY'S requirements and the Project.
- d. Based upon the Project description, discussions with COUNTY and CMAR, the Construction Budget, and the DP Site Information, the DP will prepare Preliminary Design Documents (SDs), which will consist of drawings and other documents depicting the scale and relationship of Project components, for review with COUNTY and CMAR and for COUNTY'S approval.
- e. The DP will work in a collaborative, cooperative, communicative, and coordinated manner with the CMAR in developing items defined in Item (d) above. If agreement by DP and CMAR is not attainable, DP and CMAR will promptly refer the matter to COUNTY who will make the final determination on the matter.

f. The CMAR will develop and submit to COUNTY and DP a Construction Cost Estimate.

g. The DP and CMAR will reconcile each of the DP's Construction Cost Estimate and CMAR's Construction Cost Estimate with the other, and will reconcile both of them with COUNTY'S Construction Budget. DP and CMAR will complete the reconciliation not later than seven (7) days after completion of both estimates. This reconciliation must provide an estimate no greater than COUNTY'S Construction Budget before the Final Design sub-phase under Section 2.3.4 may begin.

2.3.4 Final Design

Based on the SDs and any amendments thereto approved by COUNTY to the Project or the amount of COUNTY'S Construction Budget, the DP will prepare Design Development Documents (DDs) for review with COUNTY and the CMAR and for COUNTY'S approval. The DDs will consist of drawings and other documents to delineate and define the general design of the entire Project.

The DP will work in a collaborative, cooperative, communicative and coordinated manner with the CMAR in developing the DDs defined above. If agreement between DP and CMAR is not attainable, DP and CMAR will promptly refer the matter to COUNTY who will make the final determination on the matter.

The CMAR will develop and submit to COUNTY and DP a Construction Cost Estimate.

The DP and CMAR will reconcile the DP's Construction Cost Estimate and the CMAR's Construction Cost Estimate with each other and will reconcile both of them with the amount within COUNTY'S Construction Budget. DP and CMAR will complete the reconciliation not later than seven (7) days after completion of both estimates. This reconciliation will provide an estimate no greater than the amount within COUNTY'S Construction Budget before the Construction Documents sub-phase under **Section 2.3.5** may begin.

2.3.5 Construction Documents

Based upon the approved Final Design Documents (DDs) and any further amendments thereto of any kind approved by COUNTY, the DP will prepare detailed Construction Documents (CDs) setting forth the requirements for construction of the entire Project, including complete Drawings, Specifications, and a revised Construction Cost Estimate. The DP must be aware of, and conform to, the **order of precedence provisions in Section 2.6.12.3.** The Construction Documents are subject to review by COUNTY and CMAR and to approval by COUNTY.

If the GMP has been agreed by COUNTY and CMAR before completion of the Construction Documents, the Construction Documents will be subject to review by CMAR for conformance with the GMP Drawings, Specifications, Assumptions, and Clarifications as provided in **Section 3.2.5**.

All drawings and specifications included in the Construction Documents must bear the dated signature and seal of the DP. Except as expressly provided in the DP Contract Documents, the DP is fully responsible for all designs it provides for the Project.

Unless otherwise specified, DP will file all documents and obtain all approvals required for design approval by Governmental Agencies having jurisdiction over the Project and/or designated by COUNTY. COUNTY will cooperate with the DP in preparing applications for necessary approvals, sign applications, and pay applicable fees. The DP will also assure that the Project meets all applicable statutory requirements for public works of the nature of the Project.

2.3.6 DP's Construction Cost Estimates and CMAR's Construction Cost Estimates

The DP will cooperate and exchange information with CMAR in CMAR's development of its Construction Cost Estimates and the Guaranteed Maximum Price. The CMAR will cooperate and

exchange information with the DP in the development of DP's Construction Cost Estimates. Each DP Construction Cost Estimate, CMAR Construction Cost Estimate and CMAR Schedule of Values will include without duplication:

- a. All labor, materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other facilities and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Construction Work, whether temporary or permanent, and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Construction Work. All fixed equipment, site improvements, utility and utility relocations, and equipment installations will also be included.
- b. General Conditions;
- c. The Construction Phase Fee;
- d. All bond and insurance premiums;
- e. All applicable taxes, including, without limitation, applicable sales taxes and transaction privilege tax; and
- f. A CMAR Contingency.

The DP and CMAR Construction Cost Estimates will include the costs of the Construction Work and will not include the CMAR's Design Phase Services Fee, sums due the DP, costs of land, rights of way, financing, or other costs which are the responsibility of COUNTY.

The DP and the CMAR will base each of their Construction Cost Estimates on the latest Design Submissions Documents. The DP and CMAR will discuss the materials, equipment, component systems, and types of construction contemplated by the DP to the extent such items are not in the latest Design Submission Documents.

The CMAR will make any recommendations the CMAR determines necessary or appropriate for modifications in the latest Design Submission Documents or in the materials or items the DP proposes to use.

All DP and CMAR Construction Cost Estimates will use a consistent method of allocating costs of the Construction Work, will follow the standard construction format, and will otherwise be in a form agreed to by DP, CMAR, and COUNTY.

After COUNTY and CMAR agree on a Guaranteed Maximum Price and in any event during the Construction Documents sub-phase of the Design Phase, CMAR will continually monitor costs and develop cost estimates to help ensure that the cost of the Construction Work remains within both the COUNTY'S Construction Budget and the Guaranteed Maximum Price.

DP Construction Cost Estimates and CMAR Construction Cost Estimates will be independently prepared, will be based on quantitative takeoffs whenever possible, and will be in sufficient depth and organization to be used in preparing budgets based on the Schedule of Values.

CMAR will submit its Construction Cost Estimates to the DP for review prior to submission of the estimates to COUNTY. DP will submit its Construction Cost Estimates to CMAR for review before submission of the estimates to COUNTY. DP and CMAR will meet and reconcile their respective cost estimates not later than seven (7) days after exchanging Construction Cost Estimates and the respective Design Submission Documents and submit the reconciled Cost Estimates and Design Submission Documents to the COUNTY. If DP and CMAR cannot agree on any individual cost items, then the highest identified cost will be utilized and noted as such by the CMAR and the DP in their respective estimates submitted to the COUNTY.

In the event the reconciled Cost Estimates are not within the COUNTY'S Construction Budget or GMP, the DP and CMAR will:

- a. Notify COUNTY if it appears that the DP's Construction Cost Estimate or the CMAR's Construction Cost Estimate will exceed COUNTY'S Construction Budget or the GMP.
- b. Satisfactorily demonstrate the accuracy of its estimate in such detail as COUNTY may reasonably require.
- c. Make reasonable recommendations for corrective action to bring the estimates back within COUNTY'S Construction Budget or the GMP, if the estimates exceed COUNTY'S Construction Budget.

The overall design objective is to develop a design that can be constructed for an amount within COUNTY'S Construction Budget. If, in connection with any submission of Design Submission Documents and Cost Estimates, the Cost Estimates exceed COUNTY'S Construction Budget, then the costs of redesign and of revising the cost estimates will be allocated as follows:

- a. If the excess costs of the Design Submission Documents are attributable to COUNTYdirected design choices, unanticipated significant materials cost increases or other unforeseen market dislocations, or other causes beyond the control of DP and/or CMAR, then the costs of revision will be the responsibility of COUNTY.
- b. If the excess costs are attributable to unapproved deviations from COUNTY'S Final Schematic Design Report or unreasonable or negligent design choices, then the costs of revision will be the responsibility of DP.
- c. If the excess costs are attributable to the application of unsubstantiated deviations from the cost model by CMAR, then the costs of revising the costs estimates will be the responsibility of CMAR.
- d. If the excess costs are attributable to any combination of the causes identified above, then the costs of design and or cost estimate revision will be allocated to each party in the percentage by which their cause contributed to the excess.
- e. In the event the excess costs are attributable to an unanticipated cause not identified above, then the costs of revision will be the responsibility of COUNTY, unless the unanticipated cause arises from the error, omission, or negligence of the DP or CMAR, in which case the offending Party will bear the costs.
- f. If the Parties are unable to agree on causation or the allocation of costs, then COUNTY will make a determination with respect thereto and provide a copy of the determination in writing to each of the other parties. COUNTY'S determination will be final and conclusive unless, within seven (7) calendar days from delivery of the COUNTY'S determination, the party or parties objecting to COUNTY'S determination notifies each of the other parties in writing that they are initiating the Dispute Resolution procedure of the Countract. The notice will include a brief statement of the basis for the initiating party's objection to COUNTY'S determination.

2.3.7 BUDGETING AND GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE

- 2.3.7.1 The CMAR will provide its Pre-Construction Services for the Pre-construction Phase Fee identified in the Contract. That fee will be earned based upon the amount of Design Phase Work completed. That fee will be billed and payable monthly as a percentage of completion of Pre-Construction Services. The Construction Phase services of CMAR will be provided based upon an Open Book Cost of the Work, plus the separate Construction Phase Fee for CMAR identified in the Contract.
- 2.3.7.2 As provided for in the Contract and when the design has sufficiently progressed, COUNTY will require CMAR to propose a GMP for the construction that is to be based on the Cost of the Work. The GMP will be prepared in accordance with these Sections 2.3.7.2 and 2.3.7.3 and Appendix "B" Construction Costing of the CMAR Contract.
- 2.3.7.3 COUNTY will, at its sole discretion, have the option to accept the GMP submitted by CMAR, request that CMAR submit another GMP, or reject the GMP and terminate all contracts and agreements with the CMAR. In the event of such a termination, the CMAR will receive payment for services it

has provided to date. In this situation, there will be no amounts paid for any termination cost, lost profits, lost opportunity or any other reason.

- 2.3.7.4 Once accepted by COUNTY, the GMP may be revised only by an approved Change Order or Contract Amendment.
- 2.3.7.5 In the event the CMAR elects, in its sole discretion, to maintain a construction contingency within the GMP, the criteria for the development of that contingency must be acceptable to the COUNTY.

Thereafter, the CMAR must inform the COUNTY of any intended usage of the contingency, with supporting itemized schedule and pricing documentation, to maintain complete records and confirm its appropriate use for the Project.

2.3.8 COST ESTIMATES

- 2.3.8.1 Construction Cost: All estimates of GMP, and associated Schedule(s) of Values must include without duplication:
 - All labor, materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other facilities and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent, and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work;
 - b) The CMAR's Construction Phase Fee;
 - c) All bond and insurance premiums;
 - d) All applicable taxes, including without limitation, applicable sales taxes and transaction privilege tax;
 - e) A Contingency for bidding/construction;
 - f) Construction General Conditions;
 - g) Overhead
- 2.3.8.2 The CMAR's estimates of Construction Costs will not include sums due the DP, the CMAR's Pre-Construction Phase Fee, costs of land, rights of way, financing, or other costs that are the responsibility of COUNTY. CMAR's allowable labor rates within rates or part of Construction General Conditions are restricted to direct labor costs, *i.e.*, actual salaries/wages plus associated costs required by statute or regulation (social security, Medicare employee's match, unemployment, etc.) and employee benefits (vacations, health insurance, etc.). Non-Project specific training costs, bonuses, cost of living allowances, education, and training are not allowable labor costs and are not reimbursable. Promotional or celebratory expenses the CMAR incurs while performing and completing the Project are not reimbursable as part of Construction General Conditions and must be paid out of the CMAR Construction Phase fee.
- 2.3.8.3 The CMAR, prior to and in preparing its estimates of Construction Costs and providing the GMP, will consult with the DP to determine to the extent possible what materials, equipment, component systems, and types of construction are to be included in the Construction Documents and to make recommendations for reasonable adjustments in the Scope of Work, and to include in the Construction Documents such alternate items as COUNTY approves in writing.
- 2.3.8.4 The CMAR will take the lead in developing a cost model, preparing an estimate of Construction Cost as soon as major Project requirements have been identified, and updating the cost model and estimate for each submittal of the Design Submission Documents specified in 1.2.14 of the General Conditions. For all Bid Packages for Construction, the CMAR will prepare a quantity take-off cost estimate based on CSI formats within two weeks of receipt of applicable documents from the DP. All estimates of Construction Cost must make allowance for bidding and price escalation. During the Pre-construction Phase, the CMAR will continually monitor the cost estimates and develop a cost estimate to help assure that the Cost of the Work remains within the applicable portion of the

Project Budget or GMP, as applicable. No Construction Services or Work to be performed under the Contract will commence until a GMP is established by the CMAR, submitted and accepted by COUNTY, and incorporated into this Contract by Contract Amendment.

All CMAR cost estimates will be prepared separately and independently from DP estimates, will be 2.3.8.5 based on quantitative takeoffs whenever possible, and will be completed in sufficient depth and organization to be used in preparing budgets based on sub-trades, combinations of sub-trades, building systems (if any), and Bid Packages. Lump sum estimates are not acceptable.

- 2.3.8.6 CMAR will submit all applicable cost estimates to the DP and COUNTY for review, scope verification, and reconciliation with the DP's estimates of cost. If the DP and CMAR cannot agree on any individual cost items, then the highest identified cost of either will be utilized and noted as such by the CMAR in the submission of the cost estimate to COUNTY as part of the Design Submittal.
- After review and scope verification of the cost estimate done by the DP, the CMAR will a) notify 2.3.8.7 COUNTY if it appears that the DP estimate of Construction Costs will exceed the applicable portion of the projected Construction Cost Budget or GMP as may be applicable; b) satisfactorily demonstrate the accuracy of its estimate in such detail as COUNTY may reasonably require; and c) make reasonable recommendations for corrective action consistent with the Project Budget or GMP, as may be applicable. All such cost estimates must be within Project Budget or GMP as applicable, or include reasonable recommendations for bringing the estimates within the Project Budget or GMP, as applicable, prior to final submission to COUNTY for review and acceptance. CMAR will not bear any costs to correct Design Documents to bring the Project back within the Project Budget or GMP, as applicable, except for the CMAR's own costs incurred in re-estimating.
- DP/CMAR Cooperation: The DP, by the terms of its contract with COUNTY, is obligated to provide 2.3.8.8reasonable cooperation to the CMAR in the development of estimates of Construction Cost and the GMP. Conversely, the CMAR shall provide reasonable cooperation to the DP in the development of estimates of Construction Cost and the GMP. DP and CMAR shall reconcile their Cost estimates with each other and COUNTY not later than seven (7) days after the completion of CMAR's estimate or receipt of DP's estimate to assure COUNTY that the Project Cost is within the designated budget.

2.3.9 OTHER PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

- The CMAR will review the Drawings and Specifications as they are being prepared, recommending 2.3.9.1 alternative materials, alternatives, methods, means, constructability, and/or sequencing whenever design details affect construction feasibility, schedules, or cost. However, nothing contained in this section 2.3.9.1 requires the CMAR to provide design services.
- 2.3.9.2 The CMAR will make recommendations to COUNTY and the DP regarding the division of work in the Drawings and Specifications to facilitate the bidding and awarding of subcontracts, allowing for phased construction, if applicable, taking into consideration such factors as time of performance, availability of labor, overlapping trade jurisdictions, provisions for temporary facilities, and similar factors.
- Coordinating with the DP, the CMAR will provide a written Constructability Review of all Drawings 2.3.9.3 and Specifications, in a form acceptable to COUNTY. The Constructability Review will (a) minimize areas of conflict, errors, omissions, and overlapping of the Work to be performed by the various subcontractors; (b) confirm that the full Scope of Work has been included in the drawings; (c) endeavor to minimize cost and to Value Engineer where appropriate; and (d) allow for phased and/or fast-track bid packages and construction, as required. An acceptable and effective Constructability Review is a goal for the CMAR and the COUNTY.

- 2.3.9.4 The CMAR will attend all regular meetings with COUNTY and DP and such additional meetings as COUNTY may request. The DP will schedule all regular meetings with the prior agreement of the CMAR and approval of COUNTY. COUNTY will schedule all additional meetings.
- 2.3.9.5 The CMAR will investigate and recommend materials and equipment that COUNTY could purchase directly; consider long lead time procurement and mass purchasing power in making such recommendations; recommend a schedule for such purchases after coordination with the DP regarding the timetable for preparation of Construction Documents; and expedite and coordinate delivery of these purchases to facilitate their delivery by the required dates.
- 2.3.9.6 If COUNTY determines that Integrated Project Delivery (IPD) or Building Information Modeling (BIM) objectives will benefit the Project and it is or will be to the advantage of COUNTY or the Project to select certain subcontracting trades to participate in the design process during the Pre-Construction Phase, as well as provide Construction Services during the Construction Phase, then the following procedures will apply:
 - a. CMAR will prequalify Subcontractors from the trades needed in the Pre-Construction Phase.
 - b. Upon acceptance of COUNTY, a Request for Proposal (RFP) will be requested from prequalified Subcontractors. The RFP will request additional qualification information in addition to pricing information, such as labor rates and overhead and profit factors.
 - c. The Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) from the Subcontractors will be reviewed by a committee consisting of CMAR, COUNTY, and design team members. The qualification and pricing information will be scored by a pre-determined weighted scoring system.
 - d. The committee will develop a list of firms that will be interviewed.
 - e. The Subcontractors will be interviewed and ranked, and the highest ranked Subcontractor will be selected to provide the services.
 - f. All Subcontractor selections will be in accordance with A.R.S. 34-603(C)(2)(e)(i) and CMAR's subcontractor selection plan.
 - For Subcontractors selected in this manner, the CMAR must establish to COUNTY'S satisfaction that the Subcontractor's price submission is reasonable and appropriate by following the procedures outlined for the CMAR in Article 2.3.9.11 and 2.3.9.12.
- 2.3.9.7 The CMAR will: assist COUNTY and DP in the preparation of the necessary and appropriate bidding information, bidding forms, and pre-qualification criteria for bidders; develop subcontractor interest; establish bidding schedules; advertise for bids; and conduct pre-bid conferences to familiarize bidders with the bidding documents and management techniques and with any special systems, materials, or methods. The CMAR will review all potential subcontractors with COUNTY and DP and obtain COUNTY'S approval of the pre-qualification of any subcontractor. If the CMAR becomes aware prior to any bid date that fewer than three (3) pre-qualified subcontractors plan to bid any portion of any Bid Package or that anticipated bids from previously approved or pre-qualified subcontractors are likely to exceed the current Schedule of Values or estimate of Construction Cost, the CMAR will promptly notify COUNTY.
- 2.3.9.8 The CMAR's post-bid selection of any subcontractor must be based on qualifications alone, or on a combination of qualifications and price selection, but will not be based on price alone. The CMAR will receive and open bids when advertised, prepare a bid analysis, conduct pre-award conferences, and notify COUNTY and DP concerning which bids from pre-qualified subcontractors will be accepted and awarded. The CMAR will notify COUNTY and DP of the time and place of all bid

openings and will permit COUNTY and DP to attend such openings with their representatives and guests. CMAR will justify in writing any proposal to accept other than a low lump sum bid with sufficient detail to satisfy COUNTY, and the proposal will be subject to prior written approval by COUNTY, with no increase in the GMP. Once approved by COUNTY, CMAR may not replace any subcontractor without COUNTY'S prior approval and any change in cost to CMAR will not be a responsibility of COUNTY and there will be no increase in GMP or contract price by reason of such change of subcontractor. Within ten (10) days after award, CMAR will furnish one (1) fully executed subcontract for work or services on this Project to COUNTY together will all special or supplementary conditions applicable to the subcontract work.

2.3.9.9 The CMAR will provide COUNTY and DP with requirements and assignment of responsibilities for safety precautions and programs as required for the execution of the Work, temporary Project facilities and for equipment, materials and services for common use of subcontractors and verify that all such information is included in the Construction Documents.

2.3.9.10.1 If the project covered by this Contract is not "horizontal construction" as defined in A.R.S. § 34-101 and the CMAR indicates it desires to self-perform any portion of the Construction Work, the following procedures will be followed: The CMAR must submit its qualifications to do the listed portion(s) of the Construction Work to COUNTY and if COUNTY is satisfied with CMAR's qualifications as to that portion of the Construction Work, COUNTY will designate the CMAR as a pre-qualified Subcontractor for that portion of the Construction Work. A bid package for each portion of the Construction Work as to which CMAR is a pre-qualified Subcontractor will be prepared in the same manner and content as bid packages for Subcontractors in other trades. CMAR will submit a proposed price for each of these portions of the Construction Work. This proposed price will include labor rates, and certify that sub-sub trades and materials will be bid with a minimum of three pre-qualified bidders.

2.3.9.10.2 If the project covered by the Contract is "horizontal construction" as defined in A.R.S. § 34-101, CMAR's submitted GMP will clearly identify the Work the CMAR intends to self-perform and distinguish the costs thereof.

2.3.9.11 In order to evaluate the CMAR's Price Submission on self-performed Work, COUNTY may do any or all of the following at COUNTY'S discretion: (i) engage an estimator selected by COUNTY to prepare an independent estimate of this portion of the Construction Work; (ii) engage the DP, or other consultants to do a construction market study to confirm construction market impacts to the cost of this portion of the Construction Work; or (iii) take other action to evaluate the CMAR's Price Submission. In any event, CMAR is responsible to establish to COUNTY'S satisfaction that the CMAR's Price Submission is reasonable and appropriate. If COUNTY is satisfied that the CMAR price Submission is reasonable and appropriate, COUNTY will advise the CMAR that the CMAR is selected as Subcontractor for the respective portion of the Construction Work.

2.3.9.12.1 If the project covered by this Contract <u>is not</u> "horizontal construction" as defined in A.R.S. § 34-101 and at the conclusion of the review of the CMAR's proposed price, COUNTY is not satisfied that the CMAR's Price Submission is reasonable and appropriate, COUNTY will so advise the CMAR and the CMAR will conduct a normal Subcontractor bid competition for selection of the Subcontractor to perform this portion of the Construction Work, in accordance with the procedures in Section 2.3.9.7, except that, notwithstanding any other provision of the CMAR Design Phase Services Contract Documents to the contrary, (i) the CMAR's Price Submission will be the CMAR's bid for that portion of the Construction Work in the Subcontractor bidding process; (ii) the CMAR must obtain bids for that portion of the Construction Work from a minimum of two other pre-qualified Subcontractors; (iii) the Subcontractor bids for that portion of the CMAR; and (iv) COUNTY will decide which Subcontractor bid to accept, in accordance with Article 2.3.9.8.

2.3.9.12.2 If the project covered by this Contract is "horizontal construction" as defined in A.R.S. § 34-101 and at the conclusion of the review of CMAR's proposed price, COUNTY is not satisfied that CMAR's Price Submission is reasonable and appropriate, COUNTY may, at its sole discretion: 1) negotiate with CMAR to arrive at a more acceptable price; 2) negotiate with CMAR and request a best and final offer; 3) seek additional funding, if available; 4) terminate the Contract for convenience and acquire construction services by different means; or 5) any combination of these or such other actions as COUNTY deems appropriate within its sole discretion.

2.4 LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

CMAR will perform all Work in accordance with all applicable Legal Requirements as described in 1.2.20 and otherwise will provide all notices applicable to the Work. It is the responsibility of the CMAR during the Pre-Construction Phase to assist the DP and the COUNTY to ascertain that the Construction Documents under preparation are in compliance with all applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, building codes, rules, and regulations.

2.5 GOVERNMENT APPROVALS AND PERMITS

Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, CMAR has the responsibility to obtain and pay for all necessary permits, approvals, licenses, government charges, and inspection fees required for the prosecution of the Work by any Governmental Agency having jurisdiction over the Project.

2.6 CMAR'S CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

- 2.6.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents to be the responsibility of COUNTY or a separate Contractor(s), CMAR's construction phase services will include: team management and coordination, scheduling, cost controls and Change Order management, submittal process management, subcontracting, field management, safety program, closeout process, and warranty period services. This responsibility includes providing, through itself or its Subcontractors, all necessary supervision, labor, inspection, testing, start-up, material, equipment, machinery, temporary utilities, and other temporary facilities needed to complete construction of all Work consistent with the Construction Documents.
- 2.6.2 CMAR will perform all construction Work, services, and activities efficiently and with the requisite expertise, skill, quality, and competence necessary to satisfy the requirements of the Contract Documents. CMAR will at all times exercise complete and exclusive control over the means, methods, sequences, and techniques of construction.
- 2.6.3 CMAR will only employ Subcontractors (of any tier) who are properly licensed and fully able and committed to performing the Work in compliance with the Construction Documents and with the same degree of skill, quality and competence as CMAR.
- 2.6.4 CMAR is fully responsible for the work of its Subcontractors and any of their acts and omissions in connection with the performance of their work. Nothing in the Contract Documents creates any legal or contractual relationship between COUNTY and a Subcontractor (of any tier). In addition, nothing in the Contract Documents creates any third-party beneficiary rights.
- 2.6.5 CMAR is responsible for coordinating the activities and Work of all Subcontractors. If COUNTY is performing other work with separate Contractors under COUNTY'S control, CMAR agrees to cooperate and coordinate its Work with the work of COUNTY'S separate Contractors so that the Project can be completed in an orderly, efficient, and coordinated manner reasonably free of significant disruption to any party.
 - 2.6.5.1 COUNTY reserves the right to award other contracts related to the Project, or to perform certain portions of the Work itself. Any such other work may or may not be known to COUNTY or

disclosed to the CMAR prior to execution of the Contract. The CMAR will afford COUNTY and such other contractors reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of their materials and equipment and the execution of their work, and will properly coordinate its work with theirs in such manner as COUNTY or DP may direct. The CMAR will also assure at its own cost reasonable access of other contractors to their site and their work.

- 2.6.5.2 Upon request of CMAR, COUNTY will provide CMAR with a copy of Drawings, Specifications, Schedules or other needed data relating to such other contracts or work as may be necessary to meet CMAR's duty to coordinate. The CMAR will thoroughly examine these documents and within three (3) work days of completing such examination will notify COUNTY in writing of any conflicts with the Work to be performed by the CMAR. In no event will such notice be given by CMAR so late as to interfere with or delay the Work to be performed by the CMAR. Failure of the CMAR to request, review, or provide written notice as provided above constitutes a waiver of any objections or claims the CMAR may otherwise have as a result of the necessity to coordinate the CMAR's Work with other activities.
- 2.6.5.3 Should the CMAR sustain any damage through any act or omission of any other contractor or subcontractor, CMAR has no claim or cause of action against COUNTY for such damage and hereby waives any such claim. The CMAR does not waive any claim or cause of action against any other contractor or subcontractor to recover any and all damages sustained by reason of the acts or omissions of such other contractor or subcontractor. The phrase "act or omission" as used in this section includes, but is not limited to, any delay on the part of any such other contractor or subcontractor, whether due to negligence, gross negligence, inadvertence, or any other cause.
- 2.6.5.4 Should the CMAR cause damage to the work or property of any other contractor or subcontractor of COUNTY, the CMAR will upon receiving due notice of damage promptly attempt to settle with such other contractor by contract, repair, or otherwise to resolve the dispute. If any such separate contractor sues or initiates a proceeding against COUNTY on account of any damage alleged to have been caused by the CMAR or its subcontractors, COUNTY will notify the CMAR who will at its own cost indemnify and defend County in such proceedings, or pay the costs of COUNTY defending such proceedings, and if any judgment or award against the COUNTY arises therefrom, the CMAR will pay or satisfy it and will reimburse COUNTY for all attorney's fees and court or other costs which COUNTY has incurred in connection with the matter.
- 2.6.6 CMAR will keep the Site free from debris, trash, and construction waste to permit CMAR to perform its construction services efficiently, safely, and so as not to interfere with the use of any adjacent land areas, including the reasonable aesthetic appearance of the jobsite and all storage and staging areas. CMAR is also responsible for and will take precautions and measures to fully secure, safeguard, and protect the Work during the Construction Phase. Unless previously released of responsibility by COUNTY, CMAR's responsibility to secure, safeguard, and protect continues until final completion and acceptance.
- 2.6.7 Upon Substantial Completion of the Work, or a portion of the Work, CMAR will remove all debris, materials, waste, equipment, machinery, and tools from the Work so as to permit COUNTY to safely occupy the Work or a portion of the Work for the use for which it is intended.

2.6.8 CONTROL OF THE WORK

2.6.8.1 The CMAR will supervise and direct the work of its employees and Subcontractors and coordinate the work with the activities and responsibilities of COUNTY and the DP so as to complete the Work in accordance with COUNTY'S objectives of cost, time, and quality as set forth in the Contract Documents.

- 2.6.8.2 The CMAR will establish an on-site organization with lines of authority in order to carry out the overall plans for completion of the Work.
- 2.6.8.3 The CMAR will schedule, notice, conduct, and take and distribute minutes of weekly progress meetings at which COUNTY, DP, and CMAR can discuss jointly such matters as procedures, progress, and problems.

2.6.9 DAILY LOG

- 2.6.9.1 The CMAR will maintain a daily log of construction activities for each calendar day of the Contract Time, using a form pre-approved by the DP. In that log, the CMAR will document all activities at the Work site, including, but not limited to:
 - Weather conditions showing the high and low temperatures during work hours, the amount of precipitation received on the job site, and any other weather conditions which adversely affect work at the site;
 - b) Soil conditions which adversely affect work at the site;
 - c) The hours of operation by CMAR and individual Subcontractor personnel;
 - d) The number of CMAR and Subcontractor personnel present and working at the site, by subcontract and trade, and updated schedule activity number;
 - e) The equipment active or idle at the site;
 - f) A description of the work being performed at the site by updated schedule activity number,
 - g) Any delays, disruptions or unusual or special occurrences at the site;
 - Materials received at job site; and
 - i) A list of all visitors at the site.
 - j) Any other relevant information as to activities on the site that day.
- 2.6.9.2 The CMAR will provide copies of the daily logs to COUNTY on a weekly basis. The daily log does not constitute written notice to COUNTY of any event or occurrence when such notice is required by the Contract Documents.
- 2.6.9.3 Any changes affecting previously approved work requires prior written approval of COUNTY.

2.6.10 SUPERVISION AND CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES

- 2.6.10.1 The CMAR will supervise and direct the Work using the CMAR's best skill and attention. The CMAR is solely responsible for the coordination and accomplishment of all portions of the Work under the Contract Documents.
- 2.6.10.2 CMAR is responsible to COUNTY for the acts and omissions of CMAR's employees, Subcontractors of all tiers, their agents and employees, and any other persons performing any of the Work or furnishing materials under a contract with the CMAR.
- 2.6.10.3 The CMAR will not be relieved from its obligation to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents either by the activities or duties of the DP in its administration of this Contract, or by inspections, tests, or approvals required or performed by persons other than the CMAR. Nothing contained in this paragraph precludes the CMAR from asserting any rights it may have under this Contract in the event of unreasonable delays to the CMAR in the conduct of any inspections, test, approvals, or other actions by the DP upon which CMAR's schedule depends.
- 2.6.10.4 The CMAR will employ a competent COUNTY-approved Superintendent and necessary assistants, who will be in attendance at the Project site during the progress of the Work. The CMAR will also employ a COUNTY-approved Representative together with such additional engineering and clerical support as may be reasonably required and appropriate to the stage

of construction work. Once designated, the Superintendent and Representative of CMAR will not be changed except with the prior consent of COUNTY, unless the Superintendent or Representative proves to be unsatisfactory to the CMAR or ceases to be in its employ. The Superintendent and Representative will represent the CMAR and all communications given to the Representative are binding on the CMAR. All such communications will be confirmed in writing.

- 2.6.10.5 The CMAR will at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among its employees and its Subcontractors' employees, and will not allow employment on the Work of any unfit person or anyone not skilled in and capable of performing the task assigned to them.
- 2.6.10.6 The CMAR will at all times allow COUNTY, DP, or any other designated representatives access to the construction work to observe progress and inspect the quality of work and conformance to the Construction Documents.
- 2.6.10.7 Any Work required to be inspected by the DP or COUNTY prior to being covered, which is covered up without prior inspection or without prior consent of the DP or COUNTY, must be uncovered by the CMAR, if requested by the DP or the COUNTY, and then re-covered at no cost to COUNTY, notwithstanding the provisions of the following subsection.
- 2.6.10.8 CMAR will notify COUNTY and DP in writing at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the time at which COUNTY or DP must be present to perform an inspection. Failure to provide such notice makes the CMAR solely responsible for all consequences of non-inspection and any required access to or uncovering of such Work.

2.6.11 ADMINISTRATION

2.6.11.1 Except as may be expressly provided to the contrary in the Contract Documents, the CMAR's Representative will forward all communications in writing and all documents simultaneously to COUNTY'S Representative and the DP's Representative as listed below:

DP's	CMAR's	CMAR's	COUNTY'S
Representative:	Representative:	Superintendent:	Representative:
(NAME)	(NAME)	(NAME)	(NAME)

2.6.12 DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS

- 2.6.12.1 The CMAR will study and compare the Construction Documents prior to beginning Work on each phase or portion of the Work and immediately report any material error, inconsistency, conflict, ambiguity, or omission that is discovered to the DP and COUNTY.
- 2.6.12.2 The Construction Drawings are intended to show general arrangements, design, and extent of Work and are not intended to serve as Shop Drawings. Where required, the CMAR will perform no portion of the Work without having Shop Drawings, Product Data, or Samples approved; any Work performed in violation of this provision will be solely at the CMAR's risk regardless of DP's or COUNTY'S knowledge of such Work being performed.
 - 2.6.12.3 In the event of any conflict or ambiguity, the Construction Documents will be interpreted as being complementary, requiring delivery by CMAR of a complete Project, or designated portion thereof. Any requirement occurring in any one of the Construction Documents is as binding as though occurring in all Construction Documents. In the event of any conflict or ambiguity, perceived or real, the CMAR will request an interpretation by the DP before performing the Work. Generally, the Specifications address quality, types of materials, and contractual conditions while the Drawings show placement, sizes, and fabrication details of materials. In the event a conflict is discovered in the Construction Documents, the priorities stated below govern and control:

- a) Addenda govern over all other Construction Documents;
- b) Subsequent addenda govern over prior addenda, but only to the extent modified;
- c) In case of conflict between Drawings and Specifications, the Specifications govern;
- d) Conflicts within the Drawings:
 - (1) Schedules, when identified as such, govern over all other portions of the Drawings.
 - (2) Specific notes govern over all other notes and all other portions of the Drawings, except the schedules described in 2.6.12.3(d)(1) above.
 - (3) Larger scale drawings govern over smaller scale drawings.
 - (4) Figured or numerical dimensions govern over dimensions obtained by scaling.
- e) Conflicts within the Specifications: These General Conditions govern over all sections of the Specifications except for specific modifications thereto that may be stated in Special Conditions or addenda. No other section of the Specifications modifies these General Conditions; and
- f) In the event provisions of codes, safety orders, Construction Documents, referenced manufacturer's specifications or industry standards are in conflict, the more restrictive or higher quality governs.
- 2.6.12.4 In the event of conflict between COUNTY'S Technical Standards and the Drawings and Specifications, CMAR will promptly call the conflict to the attention of COUNTY and DP and will defer the use of such Drawing until resolution of the conflict to COUNTY'S satisfaction.
- 2.6.12.5 If the Construction Documents are not complete as to any minor detail of a required construction system or with regard to the manner of combining or installing of parts, materials, or equipment, but there exists an accepted trade standard for good and skillful construction, such detail will be an implied requirement of the Construction Documents in accordance with such standard. That is to say, a) "minor detail" includes the concept of substantially identical components, where the price of each such component is small even through the aggregate cost or importance is substantial, and includes a single component which is incidental, even though its cost or importance may be substantial; and b) the quality and quantity of the parts or materials so supplied will conform to trade standards and be compatible with the type, composition, strength, size, and profile of the parts or materials otherwise set forth in the Construction Documents.

2.6.13 SUBMITTALS, DRAWINGS AND SHOP DRAWINGS

- 2.6.13.1 The CMAR will maintain at the Site, for the use of COUNTY and of the DP, one copy of all Drawings, Specifications, bulletins, addenda, Change Orders, field orders, approved Shop Drawings, approved Submittals, supplementary instructions, requests for information, catalog data, manufacturers' operating and maintenance instructions, certificates, warranties, guarantees, and other contract-related documents and their modifications, if any, in good order and marked daily by the CMAR to record all approved changes made during construction. The CMAR will turn over all of these to the DP at the time of Substantial Completion for the purpose of the DP assembling and correlating the material for use by COUNTY.
- 2.6.13.2 The CMAR will submit to the DP, with such promptness as to cause no delay in its work or in the work of any other Contractor, all Submittals and Shop Drawings as are required by the Construction Documents, or are necessary to illustrate details of the Work.
- 2.6.13.3 Each Submittal and Shop Drawing must be accompanied by a CMAR transmittal letter containing a list of the titles and numbers of the Shop Drawings. Each series must be numbered consecutively for ready reference. Each Submittal and Shop Drawing will be marked with the following information:

- a) Date of Submission
- b) Name of Project
- c) Location of Project
- d) Branch of Work (Specification Section)
- e) Project Number
- f) Name of Submitting CMAR
- g) Name of Subcontractors
- h) Revision Number

Submittals identified by COUNTY will be submitted to COUNTY for its review concurrent with review of same by DP. During Construction Phase CMAR will promptly provide COUNTY with an electronic copy of all approved submittals.

- 2.6.13.4 The CMAR will review all Subcontractor Submittals and Shop Drawings prior to being submitted to the DP and each must bear a written statement by the CMAR that the Submittals and shop drawings are consistent with the Construction Documents and other Contract Documents or, if not totally consistent, they must bear a written statement indicating all variances from the Construction Documents and other applicable Documents. Any submittals or shop drawings submitted without the statements will be returned for resubmission; the submittals or shop drawings will be considered as not having been submitted; and any delay caused thereby is the CMAR's sole responsibility. This review by CMAR of Subcontractor submittals and shop drawings is not CMAR approval of the design therein except that it is a representation that the letter accompanying the submittal or shop drawings does indicate all variations from the Construction Documents and other Contract Documents as required by Section 2.6.13.5.
- 2.6.13.5 The CMAR will include with Submittals and Shop Drawings, a letter indicating all variances from the DP's Drawings and Specifications. Failure to so notify the DP of such variances will be grounds for subsequent rejection of the related Work or materials. If, in the opinion of the DP, the variances are not acceptable, the CMAR must furnish the item as specified or as indicated on the Construction Drawings.
- 2.6.13.6 The CMAR must check all of its Submittals and Shop Drawings and be fully responsible for them and for coordination with connecting Work. Submittals and Shop Drawings must indicate in detail all parts of an item of Work, including erection and setting instructions and engagements with work of other trades or other separate Contractors.
- 2.6.13.7 By the act of reviewing or submitting Submittals or Shop Drawings, the CMAR thereby represents to COUNTY and DP that it has determined and verified availability, field measurements, field construction criteria, materials, catalog numbers, and similar data, or will do so, and that it has checked and coordinated each Submittal and/or Shop Drawing with the requirements of the Work and of the Construction Documents. If any specified material item or part is not available, the CMAR must so indicate to the DP.
- 2.6.13.8 The DP will review and approve Submittals and Shop Drawings and return them to the CMAR within twenty (20) calendar days of receipt unless otherwise previously agreed in writing. For scheduling purposes, the CMAR must assume a 20-day review period for each Submittal or set of Shop Drawings, and ten (10) calendar days for resubmittals, except for complex submittals identified by the DP as having significant deficiencies, in which event the resubmittal turnaround time will be within twenty (20) calendar days. If review and approval are delayed beyond twenty (20) calendar days, the DP will notify the CMAR and COUNTY in writing stating the reason for the delay. Approval does not relieve the CMAR from the responsibility for variances from the drawings and specifications, unless it has been called to the DP's attention, in writing, at the time of submission. Any modification will be approved only if it is in the interest of COUNTY to effect an improvement in the Work

and does not increase the GMP or Contract Time. Any such modification is subject generally to all other provisions of the Construction Documents, and is without prejudice to any and all rights under any surety bond.

- 2.6.13.9 If the DP returns a Submittal or Shop Drawing to the CMAR with the notation "rejected", "revise and resubmit", or "approved as noted", the CMAR, so as not to delay the Work, will promptly resubmit a Submittal or Shop Drawing conforming to the requirements of the Construction Documents and indicating in writing on the Submittal or Shop Drawing and on the transmittal what portions of the resubmittal have been altered in order to meet with the approval of the DP. CMAR will also indicate any other differences between the resubmittal and the prior submittal on the Shop Drawing and on the resubmittal as a special note.
- 2.6.13.10 No extension of Contract Time will be granted to the CMAR because of its failure to submit Submittals or Shop Drawings in ample time to allow for review, possible resubmittals, and approval. Fabrication of Work will not commence until the CMAR has received written approval. The CMAR will furnish prints of its approved Submittals and Shop Drawings to all the Subcontractors whose work is in any way related to those Submittals or Drawings. Only prints bearing this approval will be allowed on the Site.

2.6.14 PRODUCT SAMPLES, TESTS, AND CERTIFICATES

2.6.14.1 The CMAR will furnish Product Samples of all items requested or required by the Specifications. Product Samples must be properly identified and submitted with such promptness as to cause no delay in Work or in the work of any other Contractor and to allow time for consideration by the DP and the COUNTY. The DP or COUNTY will review Product Samples in accordance with Sections 2.6.13.2 – 2.6.13.10 above.

- 2.5.14.2 Each Product Sample must be accompanied by a letter of transmittal containing the following information.
 - a) Date of Submission
 - b) Name of Project
 - c) Location of Project
 - d) Branch of Work (Specification Section Number)
 - e) Project Number
 - f) Name of Submitting CMAR
 - g) Name of Subcontractor
- 2.6.14.3 The CMAR will furnish the DP a certificate stating that material or equipment submitted by CMAR complies with Contract Documents. If a certificate originates with the manufacturer, the CMAR will endorse it and submit it to the DP together with a statement of compliance in its own name.
- 2.6.14.4 No tests, inspections or approvals performed or given by the COUNTY or the DP or others acting for COUNTY or any agency of Federal, State, or Local government nor any acts or omissions by COUNTY or the DP in administering this Contract relieve the CMAR from its duty to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and all applicable law or regulation or code.
- 2.6.14.5 Unless the DP is authorized at the time of submittal to return samples at the CMAR's expense, rejected samples will be destroyed.
- 2.6.14.6 After delivery of materials by CMAR, the DP may make such tests, as it deems necessary, with samples required for such tests being furnished by and at the cost of the CMAR. Any test is for the benefit of the COUNTY and does not relieve CMAR of the responsibility for

providing quality control measures to assure that the Work strictly complies with the Construction Documents. No test implies acceptance of materials, Work, workmanship, equipment, accessories or any other item or thing.

2.6.14.7 Materials, workmanship, equipment or accessories may be rejected on the basis of the test results even though general approval has been previously given. If items have been incorporated in the Work, the DP has the right to cause their removal and replacement by items meeting Construction Document requirements, with the cost therefor being borne by the CMAR and not COUNTY, or to demand and secure appropriate reparation to or price adjustment for the benefit of COUNTY from the <u>CMAR</u>.

2.6.15 AS-BUILT DRAWINGS

- 2.6.15.1 Prior to Final Payment, the CMAR will complete and turn over to the DP the Red Line Drawings kept current at the Project site by CMAR. Red Line Drawings will consist of a set of drawings that clearly indicate all field changes that were made during contract performance to adapt to field conditions, changes resulting from Change Orders and all buried and concealed installation of piping, conduit and utility services. All buried and concealed items both inside and outside the facility must be accurately located on the Red Line Drawings as to depth and in relationship to not less than two permanent features such as interior or exterior wall faces. The Red Line Drawings must be clean and all changes, corrections, and dimensions will be given in a neat and legible manner in a contrasting color. CMAR will also provide an electronic file of the Red Line Drawings to COUNTY in digital form pre-approved by COUNTY. The DP will use the CMAR Red Line Drawings to finalize and seal the As Built Drawings (Record Drawings) which, in turn, will be turned over to COUNTY at the end of construction.
- 2.6.15.2 With respect to any changes or corrections in the Work which are made subsequent to Substantial Completion, such revisions must be submitted to the DP for approval prior to Final Payment.

2.6.16 SCHEDULE AND COORDINATION

- 2.6.16.1 The CMAR will schedule and coordinate the Work of all of its Subcontractors on the Project including their use of the Site. The CMAR will keep the Subcontractors informed of the Project CPM Schedule to enable the Subcontractors to plan and perform their Work properly.
- 2.6.16.2 At the time of the submission of the GMP, the CMAR will submit to the DP a detailed CPM Schedule for the Work, which will provide for the expeditious and practicable execution of the Work. The CPM Schedule will be consistent with and build upon any previous schedules issued during the Pre-Construction Phase. The CPM Schedule is not to exceed time limits under the Contract Documents and must be related to the entire Work to the extent required by the Contract Documents.
- 2.6.16.3 The CPM Schedule required for the performance of the Work will include reasonable detail including a time scaled network and computer printout in accordance with the following requirements:
 - a) no activity may be longer than twenty-one (21) calendar days (i.e. task line item duration in the CPM Schedule) in length except fabrication and delivery activities;
 - b) each activity must be logically tied to another activity to show its interdependency with other activities;
 - c) installation activities must be logically tied to submittal/approval, fabrication and delivery;

- d) only a single critical path is allowed; and
- e) all activities on the schedule must be clearly designated.
- 2.6.16.4 The CMAR will prepare and keep current, for the DP's approval, a timetable for submittals which is coordinated with the CMAR's CPM Schedule for the Work and allows the DP the specified time to review submittals.
- 2.6.16.5 The CMAR will revise the CPM Schedule monthly to reflect actual conditions in the field and transmit it monthly to COUNTY and DP with a copy and a Narrative Report including a description of current and anticipated problem areas; delaying factors and their impact and corrective action taken or proposed. This update is to be submitted with each Application for Progress Payment. COUNTY'S review of the CPM Schedule update does not relieve CMAR of its complete and exclusive control over the means, methods, sequences, and techniques of construction. The monthly updated CPM Schedule will be the basis for the analysis and granting or rejection of time extensions in accordance with Article 9 of these General Conditions.
- 2.6.16.6 In addition to the monthly CPM Schedule update, the CMAR will also revise its schedule at appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the Work or as directed by COUNTY or DP with a printed and electronic copy of the revision submitted to COUNTY and DP in a format acceptable to COUNTY.
- 2.6.16.7 The CMAR will perform the Work at all times during the Construction Phase within the identified times of the most recent COUNTY-approved schedule and consistent with the established Contract Time.
- 2.6.16.8 If the CMAR submits an original or updated CPM schedule which shows the Project and/or individual Milestone(s) for the Project completing earlier than required by the adjusted contractual completion date(s), the differences between the forecasted early completion and the required completion will be considered Project-owned float available for use by both COUNTY and the CMAR.
- 2.6.16.9 Since float time within the CPM Schedule is jointly owned, COUNTY will grant no time extensions and will pay no delay damages until a critical path activity delay occurs which extends the Work beyond the adjusted contractual completion date. Since float time within the CPM Schedule is jointly owned, COUNTY-caused delays on the Project may be offset by COUNTY-caused time savings which result in a critical path activity savings of time to the CMAR. In that event, the CMAR is not entitled to receive a time extension or delay damages until all COUNTY-caused time savings are exhausted and the applicable contractual completion date or milestone date is also exceeded.
- 2.6.16.10 No time extensions will be granted or delay damages paid unless 1) the delay is clearly demonstrated by the updated CPM Schedule and the current and supporting narrative as of the month the change was issued or occurred, or the delay took place, and 2) the delay cannot be mitigated, offset, or eliminated through such actions as revising the intended sequence of Work or other reasonable or industry recognized means of mitigating schedule slippage.

2.7 CMAR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR PROJECT SAFETY

2.7.1 CMAR recognizes the importance of performing its Work in the safest manner possible so as to prevent damage, injury or loss to (a) all individuals at or in the vicinity of the Work, whether working or visiting the Project; (b) all Work, including materials and equipment incorporated or stored on or off site; and (c) all property adjacent to the site. On that basis CMAR assumes sole responsibility for implementing and monitoring all safety precautions and programs related to the performance of the Work and will submit a

Safety Plan in complete form to COUNTY and DP at the time of issuance of the Notice to Proceed with the Work. CMAR will, prior to commencing construction, designate a safety manager with the necessary qualifications and experience to supervise the implementation of the plan and the monitoring of all safety precautions and programs related to the Work. The safety manager will make routine daily inspections of the Work site, and will hold at least weekly safety meetings with CMAR's personnel and Subcontractors.

- 2.7.2 CMAR and its Subcontractors will comply with all legal requirements relating to safety, as well as any COUNTY specific safety requirements set forth in the Contract Documents. CMAR will immediately report, in writing, to COUNTY'S Representative and all government or quasi-government authorities having jurisdiction over matters involving the Work, any injury, loss, damage, or accident occurring at the site of the Work.
- 2.7.3 CMAR's responsibility for safety under this Section 2.7 is not intended to relieve CMAR's Subcontractors (of any tier) from applicable obligations and responsibilities for complying with all legal requirements, including those related to health and safety matters, and their taking all necessary measures to implement and monitor all safety precautions and programs to guard against injury, losses, damages, or accidents resulting from their performance of the Work.

2.8 WARRANTY

- 2.8.1 CMAR warrants to COUNTY that the construction, including all materials and equipment furnished as part of the Work, will be new, unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents; of good quality, in conformance with the Contract Documents; and free of defects in materials and workmanship. CMAR's warranty obligation excludes defects caused by abuse, alterations, or unreasonable failure to maintain the Work by persons other than CMAR, CMAR's subcontractors, or others under CMAR's control. Nothing in this warranty by CMAR limits any manufacturer's warranty which provides COUNTY with greater warranty rights than set forth in this Section 2.8 or the Contract Documents.
- 2.8.2 CMAR will provide COUNTY with all manufacturers' warranties and Operation and Maintenance Manuals upon the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. CMAR will provide COUNTY a two (2) year warranty for all portions of the Work, which warranty commences upon Substantial Completion and acceptance by the COUNTY of the final phase of the Project. All statutory or other warranties, express or implied, related to latent defects will remain in force and are not limited or superseded by this provision.
- 2.8.3 The Warranties identified herein do not limit or control other remedies available to COUNTY at law or their limitation periods, if any.

2.9 CORRECTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK

- 2.9.1 If any portion of the Work is covered over by CMAR or its subcontractor contrary to the request of the DP or COUNTY, or as required by the Construction Documents, or the applicable building standards or codes if requested in writing by the DP or COUNTY, that Work or portion thereof must be promptly uncovered for observation at the CMAR's own expense.
- 2.9.2 If any portion of the Work, other than those portions required to be inspected by the DP, COUNTY, or others, prior to being covered, has been covered over, the DP or COUNTY may request that it be uncovered for observation. If such portion of the Work is found to be in accordance with the requirements of the Construction Documents, the cost of uncovering it will be charged to COUNTY as a Change Order. If such portion of the Work is found not to be in compliance with the requirements of the CONTY as a Contract Documents, the CMAR shall bear such costs to uncover, to remove and replace, or to repair.
- 2.9.3 Unless a specific written waiver of such non-conformance has been provided to the CMAR, CMAR will promptly correct any Work that is found not to be in conformance with the Contract Documents, whether

previously inspected by COUNTY'S representatives or not. This obligation of CMAR continues for a period of two (2) years from the date of Substantial Completion. Nothing in this Section waives any other rights or remedies that COUNTY may have under applicable law.

- CMAR, upon receipt of written notice from COUNTY that the Work is not in conformance with the Contract Documents, will, within seven (7) days (except in the case of an emergency or an item on the schedule critical path, which will require immediate response) commence correction of such nonconforming Work, including the correction, removal, or replacement of the nonconforming Work and any damage caused to any other parts of the Work affected by the nonconforming Work. In the event CMAR fails to commence the necessary corrective steps within seven (7) days of the Notice, COUNTY, in addition to any other remedies provided under the Contract Documents, may at the end of the seven (7) day period commence to correct or cause the correction of such nonconforming Work with its own or other forces. CMAR is responsible for all costs and expenses that COUNTY incurs in remedying any such Work not in conformance with the Contract Documents, including at COUNTY'S sole discretion, any of its own staff time costs and all DP or other fees incurred. COUNTY will notify CMAR of its intent to make such corrections at or before the commencement of the corrective work;
- 2.9.5 The two-year warranty period referenced in Section 2.8.1 applies only to the CMAR's obligation to correct Work not in compliance with the Construction Documents, and does not constitute a period of limitations with respect to any other rights or remedies COUNTY may have with respect to CMAR's other obligations under the Contract Documents. CMAR acknowledges that, for purposes of statutes of climitations, COUNTY is a body politic and corporate of the State of Arizona acting in its governmental capacity for the general good.

ARTICLE 3 - DP'S SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

In addition to the DP Responsibilities outlined in Article 2,

- 3.1 The DP will be the initial interpreter of the intent and requirements of the Construction Documents. The DP will render written initial interpretations with reasonable promptness following a written request from COUNTY or the CMAR. These initial interpretations will be consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents.
- 3.2 The DP will timely review and approve or take other appropriate action upon the CMAR's submittals, such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, for conformance with the Construction Documents. The DP will take such action with reasonable promptness as specified so as to cause no delay. The DP's approval of a specific item or component does not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a component.
- 3.3 Following consultation with COUNTY, the DP will take appropriate action on issuance of Change Orders and may authorize minor changes in the Work as defined in Section 10.3.
- 3.4 The DP and COUNTY each have authority to reject Work which does not conform to the Contract Documents and to require special inspection or testing but may take such action only after consultation with the other. However, neither the authority to act given to the DP and COUNTY under this subparagraph nor any decision made by them in good faith either to exercise or not exercise such authority gives rise to any duty or responsibility by them to the CMAR, any Subcontractor, any of their agents or employees, or any other person performing any of the Work.
- 3.5 Based on its observations of the Work and evaluation of applications for payment, COUNTY or COUNTY'S designee will have the responsibility to approve the amounts owing the CMAR from time to time under and in accordance with Article 7 of these General Conditions and applicable law.

2.9.4

3.6 DESIGN SERVICES

- 3.6.1 Under separate contract with COUNTY, the DP will submit to COUNTY all required Design Submission Documents to describe the Project's essential elements. The Design Submissions required of the DP include Drawings, Specifications, cost estimates, and other documents as may be necessary to fully identify the Project scope and materials. The CMAR will submit detailed cost estimates as part of the design submission to COUNTY. At the time of the scheduled submissions, CMAR, DP, and COUNTY will meet and confer about the submission with CMAR and DP identifying during the meeting, among other things, the evolution of the design and any significant changes or variances from the requirements of the Contract Documents, or previously submitted design submissions, and, if any, changes in anticipated costs.
- 3.6.2 DP will maintain minutes of these milestone design review meetings and will provide them to all attendees for review. Following the design review meeting, COUNTY will review and approve or reject the Design Submission within three (3) weeks from receipt. COUNTY may reject full or partial design submittals which do not conform with COUNTY'S Project Criteria, overall Project concepts, and budgets, or for any other reasonable cause consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents. Upon such rejection, the DP will redesign or reengineer the rejected portion of the design. CMAR will revise the cost estimate at no additional cost, such that it meets COUNTY'S requirements. COUNTY must approve all variances from COUNTY'S Project Criteria in writing.
- 3:6.3 As necessary for the timely completion of the Work, the DP will submit to COUNTY for COUNTY'S review and approval or rejection, Construction Documents describing the requirements for construction of the Work. The COUNTY, DP and CMAR will have design review meetings to discuss Construction Documents consistent with Section 3.6.1 above, and COUNTY will review and approve or reject the Construction Documents within three (3) weeks of receipt from the DP.
- 3.7 The DP, if so stated through this Contract, or a third party Project Manager under a separate contract with COUNTY, will provide administration of this Contract on behalf of COUNTY as described throughout the Contract and these General Conditions and in COUNTY'S contract with the DP. DP is to copy COUNTY on all instructions and communications by the DP to the CMAR.

ARTICLE 4 COUNTY'S SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

In addition to its responsibilities outlined in Article 2,

- 4.1 COUNTY will, throughout the performance of the Contract, cooperate with CMAR and perform its responsibilities, obligations and services in a timely manner so as not to delay or interfere with CMAR's performance of its obligations under the Contract Documents.
- 4.2 COUNTY'S Representative is responsible for processing and delivery of COUNTY-supplied information and approvals or rejections in a timely manner to permit CMAR to fulfill its obligations under the Contract Documents. COUNTY'S Representative will also provide CMAR with reasonably prompt notice if and when it observes any failure on the part of CMAR to fulfill its contractual obligations, including errors, omissions, or defects in the CMAR's performance of its Work. Failure of COUNTY or its representatives to notify the CMAR hereunder will not alter the duties and obligations of CMAR under the Contract Documents.
- 4.3 COUNTY will provide reviews and approvals or rejections of the CMAR's cost estimate portion of the Design Submission within three (3) weeks of receipt of those documents. COUNTY will review documents submitted by the CMAR and render any decisions pertaining thereto without unreasonable delay.
- 4.4 COUNTY is responsible for all Work performed at the Project by parties under COUNTY'S control other than CMAR or DP. COUNTY will contractually require such parties to cooperate with and coordinate

their activities with CMAR so as not to unreasonably interfere with CMAR's ability to complete the Work in a timely manner, consistent with the Contract Documents.

- 4.5 COUNTY will interact and cooperate with the CMAR to keep the Work within the portions of the Project Budget or GMP, as may be applicable, including but not limited to giving appropriate and reasonable consideration to all reasonable recommendations of the CMAR, approving redesign, deductive alternatives or reductions in the Work, consideration of any requested additional Value Engineering, making modifications to the Contract Documents, or exercising such other rights or remedies as may be available elsewhere under this Contract including termination for convenience. If at any time, it is apparent that the cost of the Work cannot be kept within the Project Budget or GMP, COUNTY may terminate this Contract in accordance with the termination for convenience provisions set forth below.
- 4.6 COUNTY acting through the DP and consistent with COUNTY'S contract with the DP, will furnish the CMAR a sufficient quantity of documents and information required for the CMAR's performance of its Pre-Construction Services.

ARTICLE 5 - HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND UNFORESEEN PROJECT SITE CONDITIONS

5.1 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

- 5.1.1 It is the sole responsibility of the CMAR to properly remove and dispose of any Hazardous Materials in the Project identified as such in the Contract Documents by COUNTY. CMAR, upon encountering any Hazardous Materials not identified in the Contract Documents, will stop work immediately in the affected area and notify COUNTY and, if required by applicable rules, all governmental or quasi-governmental entities with jurisdiction over the Project. COUNTY has responsibility to take the necessary measures required to properly remove and dispose of Hazardous Materials not identified in the Contract Documents as being the responsibility of the CMAR.
- 5.1.2 CMAR will be entitled, in accordance with the provisions of these General Conditions, to an adjustment in the GMP or Contract Time(s) of performance, or both, to the extent that the CMAR's costs or time of performance have been adversely and materially impacted by the presence of unforeseen or undisclosed Hazardous Materials.
- 5.1.3 COUNTY is not responsible for Hazardous Materials introduced to the site by CMAR, CMAR's Subcontractors (at any tier), or anyone else for whom the CMAR is responsible unless the Contract Documents explicitly call for either the provision or removal of the specific Hazardous Materials.
- 5.1.4 CMAR will indemnify, defend, and hold harmless COUNTY and others under COUNTY'S control, and the officers, directors, employees and agents of each of them, from and against all claims, losses, liabilities, costs and expenses, including but not limited to attorney's fees and expenses, arising out of or resulting from CMAR's importation, improper handling, storage, abatement, removal, remediation, or disposal of any Hazardous Materials.
- 5.1.5 Releases of Hazardous Materials: Upon any release of any Hazardous Material in connection with the Work, whether relating to a pre-existing condition or to acts or omissions of CMAR, CMAR will take immediate action reasonably necessary to contain the release and if the Hazardous Material release is not a CMAR release, COUNTY will pay CMAR the reasonable costs incurred by CMAR in taking such containment action. COUNTY may elect to have CMAR control and carry out any removal and remediation activity needed, provided that if the release is not a CMAR release, COUNTY will be responsible to pay CMAR for such CMAR removal and remediation activities in accordance with the Change Order provision set forth in Section 10.4 of these General Conditions, including allowance of additional Contract Time.

5.2 UNFORESEEN PROJECT SITE CONDITIONS

- 5.2.1 If CMAR encounters, during the performance of the Work, concealed or latent physical conditions or subsurface conditions at the Project which (a) materially differ from the conditions indicated in the Contract Documents; or (b) are of an unusual nature which differ materially from the conditions ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in the sort of work provided for in the Contract Documents, CMAR will immediately provide written notice to COUNTY apprising COUNTY of the unforeseen conditions encountered. CMAR will not disturb or modify such conditions without COUNTY'S prior written consent. COUNTY will promptly investigate CMAR's notice of an unforeseen site condition and advise CMAR of its findings and determination.
- 5.2.2 If COUNTY determines that the conditions encountered by CMAR under Section 5.2.1 are an unforeseen Project site condition, CMAR will be entitled, in accordance with the provisions of these General Conditions, to an adjustment in its GMP or Contract Time(s) of performance, or both, to the extent that CMAR's cost or time of performance have been adversely impacted by the unforeseen conditions. Adjustments to GMP will be for the actual direct cost impact incurred by CMAR to address and resolve the unforeseen conditions.
- 5.2.3 COUNTY will not consider or allow any claim by the CMAR for an increase in the GMP or in Contract Time(s) without compliance with the advance notice requirement set forth above, submission of verifiable documentation of specific direct cost impact; and an adequate opportunity for COUNTY to investigate. Extensions of Contract Time(s) will be considered and allowed only when based upon submission of an updated CPM Schedule and supporting narrative showing an actual unavoidable delay to the Project Critical Path due to the unforeseen Project Site Conditions.
- 5.2.4 In no event will the Contract Time or GMP be adjusted for conditions that CMAR could or should have identified through past work or its investigations or survey of existing conditions prior to submission and establishment of the GMP and the GMP Schedule.
- 5.2.5 If COUNTY determines CMAR has no entitlement to an adjustment in GMP or Contract Time for what CMAR contends is an unforeseen Project Site Condition, CMAR may only proceed in pursuit of its position or claim in accordance with the Dispute Resolution provisions of the Contract.

5.3 ARCHEOLOGICAL CONDITIONS:

If in the course of performing the Work, the CMAR, any subcontractor, or other persons or entities under the control of CMAR, encounter any Native American burial site or other archeological artifacts, CMAR will immediately notify COUNTY and suspend any Work or activity in the vicinity of the burial site or artifact. COUNTY will determine with reasonable promptness what action, if any, needs to be taken and advise CMAR how to proceed or adjust the Work. Any claim for adjustment in Contract Time or GMP will be handled under 5.2.2 above.

ARTICLE 6 – RESERVED

<u>ARTICLE 7 – PAYMENT</u>

7.1 GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE; SAVINGS.

7.1.1 COUNTY will pay the CMAR for the CMAR's performance and the CMAR accepts the Preconstruction Phase Fee in full payment for Pre-construction services, and the Actual Cost of Work (as defined in Exhibit B hereto) plus the Construction Phase Fee for construction services, provided, however, that the amount paid to CMAR will not exceed the GMP as originally fixed or as adjusted from time to time as provided in these General Conditions. 7.1.2 Savings will be calculated and paid upon Final Completion of the Work. One hundred percent (100%) of all savings will be allocated to COUNTY. Savings returned to COUNTY will not include return of Construction Phase Fee for the amount of the savings, but will include an appropriate percentage of bonds and insurance premiums and taxes attributable to the savings amount. One hundred percent (100%) of allocations to GMP for allowance and contingency items that remain unused upon Final Completion will be returned to COUNTY.

7.2 SCHEDULE OF VALUES.

7.2.1 Before issuance of the Notice to proceed and commencement of the Work in the Construction Phase, the CMAR will submit to COUNTY, and COUNTY and the CMAR shall agree upon, a complete Schedule of Values on the items constituting the GMP following the sample outline in **Exhibit "B" of the CMAR Contract**, setting forth the various portions of the Work, and the portions of the GMP allocated to each portion of the Work. This Schedule of Values will also be the basis for payment as the Work progresses. Those portions of the Schedule of Values allocable to Work to be performed by Subcontractors of the CMAR will be finalized as and when the Subcontracts are executed. All estimated construction costs not specifically allocated to a Subcontract (including Work self-performed) or to Construction General Conditions will be allocated to "Bidding Contingency" and will, upon approval of COUNTY, be available for later use by the CMAR as Construction Contingency, for reallocation to other line items as provided for in these General Conditions.

7.3 APPLICATIONS FOR PROGRESS PAYMENTS.

- 7.3.1 CMAR will deliver to COUNTY (or such other person as is designated by COUNTY) on the last day of each month a sworn application for progress payment in the format specified by COUNTY. Each such application for payment will be based on the Schedule of Values and be in an amount determined by the percentage of completion of the Work in the month being billed. It will show the percentage of completion of each category of the Work performed in the billing period. The payment application must be accompanied (as separate documents) by (a) an updated CPM Schedule and narrative schedule update report as provided for herein; and (b) conditional lien waivers from each subcontractor or supplier entitled to progress payment thereunder. In addition, the CMAR will provide the following documentation upon specific request by COUNTY: a) a written accounting in a form agreed by CMAR and COUNTY of the actual cost of the Work completed; b) a report by CMAR on Subcontractor buy-out status, contract sums, and subcontractor pay applications; c) a copy of job cost ledger; d) a copy of timecards for all employees charged to the Project; and e) a copy each of Construction General Conditions invoices and purchase orders for the time periods periodically requested by COUNTY.
- 7.3.2 The CMAR Construction Phase Fee and the Construction General Conditions will be paid monthly in accordance with the percentage of completion of the Work. The amount approved and paid for progress achieved in the month billed for is not final acceptance of the Work and is subject to final adjustment at the time of Final Acceptance and Final Payment. At no time may the cumulative value of past progress payments plus the current requested progress payment on any pay application exceed the GMP as it may be adjusted under these General Conditions.
- 7.3.3 COUNTY, within seven (7) days after receipt of CMAR's application for progress payment, and no later, will either issue (a) a certificate of approval for payment of such amount as is invoiced in the payment application; or (b) specific written findings setting forth those items in detail in the estimate of the Work in the pay application that are not approved for payment under the Contract. All items in the payment application are considered approved that are not made the subject of the written detailed finding of non-approval.

7.3.4 COUNTY may withhold an amount from the progress payment to be made for the time period billed for a sufficient sum to pay the expenses that COUNTY reasonably expects to incur in correcting the deficiencies set forth in the written finding issued by the COUNTY as to the items not approved for payment.

7.4 PAYMENT AND RETAINAGE.

- 7.4.1 Within fourteen (14) days following the receipt of the DP certificate of approval for payment and the written detailed findings of items not approved, if any, COUNTY will pay the amount due on the progress payment application to the CMAR. Payment will be limited to ninety percent (90%) of the value approved of the Construction Work in place and for materials suitably stored in accordance with Section 7.6.1, below, of these General Conditions during the month being billed. COUNTY will retain the remaining ten percent (10%) until the Contract is fifty percent (50%) complete, at which time COUNTY may, in its sole discretion, reduce the retainage to five percent (5%); provided that: (a) the CMAR is making satisfactory progress on the Contract; and (b) in COUNTY'S sole judgment, there is no specific cause or claim requiring a greater amount than five percent (5%) to be retained. Thereafter, COUNTY will pay the CMAR ninety-five percent (95%) of the value of the Construction Work and materials on approved progress billings, unless and until COUNTY determines, in its sole discretion that satisfactory progress is not being made, at which time COUNTY may reinstate ten percent (10%) retainage. Such ten percent (10%) reinstatement is equal to ten percent (10%) of the total Contract value of Construction Work in place and materials stored. COUNTY'S determinations concerning the satisfactory progress of the Work for retainage adjustment purposes is final.
- 7.4.2 Within sixty (60) days after the issuance of the Certificate of Final Completion by the DP and receipt by COUNTY of all other documents required from CMAR by the Contract Documents, COUNTY will pay all retained amounts to CMAR as part of Final Payment, provided, however, a) the Final Payment is not due from COUNTY until the CMAR delivers full and final unconditional lien releases in statutory form from all Subcontractors and major Suppliers acknowledging their having received payment in full (Any claim filed thereafter is the responsibility of the CMAR);, and b) if any claim remains unsatisfied after all payments are made by COUNTY, the CMAR will immediately, upon demand, refund to COUNTY all monies that COUNTY may be compelled to pay in discharging such unsatisfied claims including all costs, interest, and attorneys' fees.

7.5 [•] EARLY RELEASE OF SUBCONTRACTOR RETAINAGE.

7.5.1 If a Subcontractor has completed its portion of the Work (including all Punch list items) pursuant to its Subcontract, the CMAR may request COUNTY to disburse the amount of Retainage allocable to such Subcontractor after delivering to COUNTY, when required by COUNTY, consent to such disbursement from such Subcontractor's surety, in a form satisfactory to COUNTY, and a final lien release from the Subcontractor. If COUNTY is satisfied that the Subcontractor's Work has been fully and finally completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, COUNTY may disburse said Retainage to CMAR for payment over to the Subcontractor. However, the two-year warranty period with respect to such Subcontractor Work will not commence until Substantial Completion of the entire Project.

7.6 PAYMENT FOR ON-SITE AND OFF-SITE MATERIALS.

7.6.1 COUNTY will make progress payments when due to CMAR on account of materials and equipment delivered and suitably stored at the Site for subsequent incorporation in the Work. COUNTY may similarly make payment to CMAR for materials and equipment suitably stored off the Site, conditioned upon the CMAR furnishing satisfactory evidence to COUNTY that (a) title to the materials and equipment will pass to COUNTY upon payment for same; (b) there are no claims of third parties; (c) the materials and equipment are adequately insured for full replacement value plus delivery; and (d) such other matters as COUNTY may reasonably request in order to protect its interests.
7.7 OWNERSHIP OF CONSTRUCTION WORK.

- 7.7.1 The CMAR warrants that title to all Construction Work included in an Application for Progress Payment will pass to COUNTY no later than the time of payment therefor. The CMAR further warrants and represents to COUNTY that upon submittal of an Application for Payment, all Construction Work for which Applications for Payment have been previously issued and payments received from COUNTY will, to the best of the CMAR's knowledge, information and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances in favor of the CMAR, its Subcontractors, material suppliers, or other persons or entities making a claim by reason of having provided labor, materials, and equipment relating to the Work.
- 7.7.2 As a condition precedent to Final Payment from COUNTY the CMAR will provide unconditional waivers of lien in statutory form from all Subcontractors, material suppliers, and other persons or entities having provided labor, materials and equipment relating to the Work.

7.8 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION.

7.8.1 When the CMAR believes the Work, or a portion thereof which the COUNTY wants and agrees to accept separately, is Substantially Complete, the CMAR will notify COUNTY and the DP and will submit to COUNTY and DP a comprehensive list of items to be completed or corrected as to that Work or all Work. Within five (5) working days of receipt of the CMAR's notice and list, COUNTY, the DP, and CMAR will jointly inspect the Project to determine whether Substantial Completion has in fact occurred. If COUNTY will issue the Punch List and the Certificate of Substantial Completion stating the date of Substantial Completion, which certificate will be executed by COUNTY, the DP, and the CMAR. The CMAR will thereupon proceed promptly to complete or correct Punch List items. Failure to include an item on the Punch List does not alleviate or alter the responsibility of the CMAR to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

7.9 FINAL COMPLETION AND FINAL PAYMENT

- 7.9.1 Completion of all outstanding Work items noted in the Substantial Completion "Punch List" for the entire Work, or relevant portion thereof, and other Contract requirements are necessary for COUNTY to certify Final Completion. Requirements for this certification also include, but are not limited to, completion of equipment operating training for COUNTY and the submission and approval by COUNTY of a) all Record and Close Out Documents; b) copies of all Construction General Conditions and Purchase Orders not previously provided; and c) all required reports.
- 7.9.2 Conditions Precedent to Final Payment. Neither Final Payment nor any final release of Retainage become due until such time as CMAR submits all of the following to COUNTY:
 - a) An affidavit that payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness connected with the Work for which COUNTY or COUNTY'S property might be responsible or encumbered (less amounts withheld by COUNTY) have been paid or otherwise satisfied by CMAR;
 - b) A certificate evidencing that insurance required by the Contract Documents to remain in force after Final Payment is currently in effect and will not be canceled or allowed to expire until at least sixty (60) days' prior written notice has been given to COUNTY;
 - c) Consent of Sureties to final payment;
 - d) Unconditional waivers of lien in statutory form from all Subcontractors, material suppliers, and other persons or entities having provided labor, materials, and equipment relating to the Work;
 - e) If required by COUNTY, other data establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts; releases; and waivers of liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances arising out of the Contract Documents;
 - f) All Project warranty documents;

- g) Final Subcontractor List;
- h) All approved Submittals and Shop Drawings (electronic copy);
- i) Schedule of Required Maintenance;
- j) Operation and Maintenance Manuals (electronic and hard copies);
- k) As-Builts (electronic copies, hard copies and BIM Model, if any);
- I) Any required COUNTY training provided by CMAR;
- m) State Fire Marshal and State Elevator Inspection approvals and certificates received, if applicable;
- n) Commissioning completed and reports received, if applicable; and
- Any other items identified by COUNTY, and agreed to by CMAR in Contract Documents, to be received by COUNTY.
- 7.9.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Project has been achieved, Final Completion is materially delayed through no fault of the CMAR, or by the issuance of additional Change Orders by COUNTY, COUNTY may at its sole discretion, upon request of the CMAR, and without terminating the Contract, make payment to CMAR of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed. If the remaining balance for Work not fully completed is less than the Retainage, and if bonds have been furnished, the written consent of surety to payment for that portion of the Work fully completed must be delivered by the CMAR to the COUNTY, and such payment will be made under the terms and conditions governing Final Payment, except that such payment does not constitute a waiver of claims by either the CMAR or COUNTY.
- 7.9.4 Acceptance of Final Payment by the CMAR constitutes a waiver of all affirmative claims by the CMAR in connection with the Contract and construction of the Project. Final Payment by COUNTY constitutes a waiver of claims by COUNTY, except those arising from (a) liens, claims, security interests, and encumbrances arising out of the Work after final payment; (b) latent defects which COUNTY becomes aware of after Final Payment; or (c) the terms of warranties required by the Contract Documents and other rights provided under applicable law.

7.10 ALLOWANCES.

- 7.10.1 The CMAR will include in the GMP all allowances required by the COUNTY. Items covered by allowances will be supplied for such amounts and by such persons or entities as the COUNTY may direct, but the CMAR is not required to employ persons or entities against which the CMAR makes reasonable objection. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents:
 - COUNTY will select materials and equipment under an Allowance within a reasonable time frame as defined in the COUNTY-approved Project CPM Schedule;
 - Allowances will cover the cost to the CMAR of materials and equipment delivered at the site and all required taxes, less applicable trade discounts;
 - Allowances will not include professional or construction fees. Construction General Conditions, bond and insurance premiums;
 - Allowances will cover CMAR's costs for unloading and handling at the Site, labor, installation costs and other expenses;
 - e) Whenever costs are more than or less than Allowances, the GMP may be adjusted accordingly by Change Order in accordance with provisions of Article 10. The amount of the Change Order will reflect the difference between Actual Costs and the Allowances plus Fee on such difference in accordance with Article 10 hereof if the Actual Costs are greater than the allowances.

7.11 CONTINGENCIES.

7.11.1 For Vertical Construction:

- 7.11.1.1 The GMP contains a line item for a "Bidding Contingency". The Bidding Contingency, upon approval of the COUNTY, is for the CMAR's use and will be increased by amounts not expended on other line item bid packages and will decrease by additional amounts required to be expended on other line item bid packages. Following completion of all contract execution by subcontractors (Project buy-out), Bidding Contingency becomes Construction (CMAR) Contingency and CMAR may use this Construction (CMAR) Contingency for legitimate unforeseen construction expenses, subject to COUNTY'S review and approval. CMAR will submit detailed monthly reports to COUNTY indicating how the Construction (CMAR) Contingency was used in the reporting period, and the status of the Construction (CMAR) Contingency. COUNTY has the authority to reject any use of the Construction (CMAR) Contingency after it has been submitted if COUNTY believes, in its reasonable judgment, that some or all of the amount included in the use of the Construction (CMAR) Contingency is not a legitimate expense for the Project. Upon COUNTY'S rejection of a Construction (CMAR) Contingency use, the CMAR will thereupon credit the Construction (CMAR) Contingency amount back to the Construction (CMAR) Contingency in the next subsequent payment request. Any amounts remaining in Bidding / Construction (CMAR) Contingency at Final Completion are Savings and will be allocated to COUNTY. Should the Bidding / Construction (CMAR) Contingency be exhausted prior to award of all the bid packages, any subsequent overruns in bid package costs will be the CMAR's sole responsibility, with no additional compensation due therefor from COUNTY.
- 7.11.1.2 Total Bidding Contingency will be determined pending mutual agreement by COUNTY and CMAR on GMP.
- 7.11.1.3 Upon award of each Bid Package, the difference between the CMAR's estimated Cost of the Work contained within the Bid Package, exclusive of contingency, versus the actual award cost thereof as determined by the bidding and award of the package will be promptly calculated. If the award cost exceeds the CMAR's estimated cost in the GMP, any necessary portion of the Bidding Contingency identified in subparagraph 7.11.1.2 above will be applied, subject to COUNTY'S approval, to cover any overrun, and any underrun amount will be used to increase the Bidding Contingency.

7.11.2 Non-Vertical and Horizontal Construction:

- 7.11.2.1 The GMP may contain a line item for "Construction Contingency" for CMAR's use as a bidding contingency and for legitimate unforeseen construction expenses, subject to COUNTY'S review. The amount of Construction Contingency represents CMAR's future risk from the point at which it is established. In establishing the amount of the initial Construction Contingency, CMAR will provide a description of the risks the Construction Contingency is intended to cover, including unresolved areas of concern identified in pre-construction, in such format as COUNTY may prescribe.
- 7.11.2.2 The amount of the Construction Contingency is not cumulative. At any given time, even if there are multiple GMPs, there will be only one Construction Contingency for the Work. The amount of the Construction Contingency may be adjusted by any Change Order, Contract Amendment, or subsequent GMP to reflect CMAR's future risk from that point. The value of the Construction Contingency will not exceed the value stated in the most recent Change Order, Contract Amendment, or GMP.

- 7.11.2.3 "Legitimate unforeseen construction expenses" does not include expenses arising from factors the existence of which CMAR knew or should have known at time of establishment of the value of the Construction Contingency. As an example, the expense of relocating utilities in an intersection of which CMAR was or should have been aware as a result of prior work or Blue Staking for prior work in the intersection is not a "legitimate unforeseen expense."
- 7.11.2.4 CMAR will submit detailed monthly reports to COUNTY indicating how the Construction (CMAR) Contingency was used in the reporting period, and the status of the Construction (CMAR) Contingency. COUNTY may reject any use of the Construction (CMAR) Contingency after it has been submitted if COUNTY believes in its reasonable judgment that some or all of the amount included in the use of the Construction (CMAR) Contingency is not a legitimate expense for the Project. Upon COUNTY'S rejection of a Construction (CMAR) Contingency use, the CMAR will thereupon credit the Construction (CMAR) Contingency amount back to the Construction (CMAR) Contingency in the next subsequent payment request. Any amounts remaining in the Construction (CMAR) Contingency at Final Completion are Savings and will be allocated to COUNTY. Should the Construction (CMAR) Contingency be exhausted prior to completion of the Work, any subsequent overruns are the CMAR's sole responsibility, with no additional compensation due therefor from COUNTY except for those items for which COUNTY is responsible under the Contract Documents.
- 7.11.3 CMAR will include in all subcontracts an explicit requirement that Change Orders between CMAR and the subcontractors will be priced consistently with the requirements of Article 10 of these General Conditions, with adequate itemized Change Order pricing regardless of whether or not there is a comparable Change Order between CMAR and COUNTY. In addition, CMAR will retain, and make available to COUNTY upon request, all bid documents including requests for proposals, requests for quotes, and bid responses from both successful and unsuccessful bidding subcontractors.

ARTICLE 8 - INDEMNIFICATION

8.1 PROPRIETARY RIGHTS, PATENT AND COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT

- 8.1.1 CMAR will defend any action or proceeding brought against COUNTY based on any assertion or claim that the Work, or any part thereof, or the operation thereof or use of the Work or any part thereof, constitutes infringement of any proprietary rights or United States patent or copyright, now or hereafter issued. COUNTY agrees to give prompt notice in writing to CMAR of any such action or proceeding and to provide authority, information and assistance in the defense of same. CMAR will indemnify and hold harmless COUNTY from and against all damages and costs, including attorney's fees, awarded against COUNTY or CMAR in any such action or proceeding. CMAR further agrees to keep COUNTY informed of all developments in the defense of such actions or proceedings.
- 8.1.2 In the event that COUNTY is enjoined from the operations or use of the Work, or any part thereof in connection with any proprietary rights, patent suit, claim, or proceeding, CMAR will at its sole expense take reasonable steps to procure the right or license to operate or use the Work. If CMAR cannot so procure the aforesaid right within a reasonable time, CMAR will then promptly, at CMAR's option and at CMAR's expense (a) modify the Work so to avoid infringement of any patents, or copyrights; or (b) replace said Work with Work that does not infringe or violate any such proprietary rights, patent, or copyright.
- 8.1.3 Sections 8.1.1 and 8.1.2 above do not apply to any action or proceeding based on infringement or violation of a proprietary right, patent, or copyright (a) relating solely to a particular process or the product of a particular manufacturer specified by COUNTY and such processes or products are

something other than that which has been offered or recommended by CMAR to COUNTY; or (b) arising from modifications to the Work by COUNTY or its agents after acceptance of the Work.

- 8.1.4 CMAR's warranty and indemnification obligations survive expiration or termination of this Contract unless otherwise specifically stated.
- 8.1.5 The obligations set forth in this "Proprietary Rights, Patent and Copyright Infringement" section constitute the sole agreement between the parties relating to liability for infringement or violation of any proprietary rights, patent or copyright.

8.2 GENERAL INDEMNITY

CMAR will indemnify, defend, save, and hold harmless COUNTY and its officers, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as "Indemnitees") from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys' fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as "Claims") for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of CMAR or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees, or subcontractors, arising out of performance of the Work or this Contract, or in connection with the Project or defects in the Work, or any materials supplied. This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers' Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such CMAR to conform to any federal, state, or local law, statute; ordinance, rule, regulation, or court decree. CMAR will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense, and judgment costs where this indemnification is applicable. In consideration of the award of this Contract, the CMAR waives all rights of subrogation against Indemnitees for losses arising from the Work performed by the CMAR for COUNTY.

8.3 Cumulative Rights

The rights of indemnification in this Article 8 are cumulative and in addition to any other rights of indemnification under this Contract. Nothing in this Article 8 limits or otherwise impairs any other right of indemnification in this Contract.

ARTICLE 9 - TIME AND DELAY

- 9.1.1 All time limits set forth in the Contract Documents for performance are of the essence of this Contract. CMAR agrees that it will commence performance of the Work, achieve Substantial and Final Completion of the entire Project, and achieve any interim Milestones for Substantial and Final Completion in compliance with all contractual time requirements.
- 9.1.2 Time is of the essence of each and every part of the Contract Documents and of the Specifications wherein a definite and certain length of time is fixed for the performance of any act or activity whatsoever. Where, under the Contract Documents, additional time is allowed for the completion of any Work, the new time limit fixed by such extension is also of the essence of this Contract.
- 9.1.3 Failure of the CMAR to achieve the completion dates for Substantial or Final Completion set forth in the Contract will result in the assessment of Liquidated Damages as required by the Contract. CMAR will pay the per diem amount for Liquidated Damages provided for in the Contract for each and every calendar day that the CMAR is not in full compliance with the time(s) stipulated in the Contract for completing the Work. The Liquidated Damages per diem amount is fixed and agreed upon by and between the CMAR and COUNTY because of the impracticality and extreme difficulty of fixing and ascertaining the actual damages the COUNTY would in such event sustain. COUNTY may withhold any such sums from Final Payment due hereunder or from retainage.

- 9.1.4 If CMAR is delayed in the performance of the Work and such delay actually and directly delays a timely achievement of a critical path activity, element, or component, based upon an analysis of the current CPM Schedule due to acts, omissions, conditions, events, or circumstances beyond its reasonable control or prevention and due to no legal fault of its own or those for whom CMAR is responsible under the terms of the Contract Documents, the time for Substantial Completion of the Work, and to the extent applicable, any interim milestones or Substantial Completion dates for portions of the Work will be extended by written Change Order for the amount of time attributable to such events or circumstances. By way of example only, such acts, omissions, conditions, events, and circumstances which would entitle CMAR to an extension of the Contract Time(s), include acts or omissions of COUNTY, or anyone under COUNTY'S control, including changes made by separate contractors in the Work by COUNTY, unforeseeable Project site conditions, wars, floods, labor disputes, unusual delay in transportation, and unusually adverse weather conditions.
- 9.1.5 The CMAR has included a specified number of days of weather related delays within the CPM Schedule which COUNTY has approved, and that number of days is incorporated herein by reference. If the Project experiences weather-related delays beyond the contractually specified number of weather days, the CMAR is entitled to a commensurate extension of time.
- 9.1.6 CMAR is entitled to an appropriate adjustment of its GMP for extended Construction General Conditions only for mutually determined delays directly caused by the actions, omissions, or inactions of the COUNTY and upon proof of the actual, direct additional cost to the CMAR for such delays.
- 9.1.7 CMAR will provide notice of any delay in performance of the Work that CMAR attributes to COUNTY in writing to the DP and COUNTY immediately but in no event later than twenty-four (24) hours after discovery of the event giving rise to the delay. The CMAR will then provide additional details concerning the delay in writing to the DP and COUNTY within seven (7) calendar days from the delay notice. Failure to satisfy each of these time requirements will absolutely bar any and all later delay claims. The detailed notice will indicate the cause of the delay, the anticipated length of the delay in reasonable detail, the probable effect of such delay upon the progress and Cost of the Work, and possible mitigation plans. If the cause of the delay is ongoing, the CMAR must give further detailed notice every month at the same time it submits the updated progress Narrative Report to COUNTY.
- 9.1.8 CMAR will, upon discovering an event giving rise to a delay, as promptly as possible, make all reasonable efforts to mitigate the impact of the delay.
- 9.1.9 Within fifteen (15) calendar days after elimination of any such delay, the CMAR will, unless the time is extended in a Change Order approved by COUNTY, submit further documentation concerning the delay and, if appropriate, a formal written request requesting an extension of time for such delay and any compensation sought for the delay. The written request for time extension will state the cause of the delay, the number of days of extension requested and the compensation sought and provide a fully documented analysis of the Progress Schedule, including any data demonstrating a delay in the critical path of the Work or individual milestone or the overall Project completion. If the CMAR does not timely comply with the notice and documentation requirements set forth in this Section 9.1.9, the CMAR's claim for delay is barred.
- 9.1.10 In the event the CMAR gives notice to COUNTY of compensable delay alleging that COUNTY is responsible for the delay as to which the notice was given and the delay is unreasonable under the circumstances and was not within the contemplation of COUNTY and CMAR when they entered into the Contract, COUNTY will enter into negotiations with CMAR as to CMAR's damages, if any.

<u>ARTICLE 10 – CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT PRICE AND TIME</u>

10.1 CHANGES

- 10.1.1 After the Contract is signed, modifications to the Contract, including any changes to GMP, the Contract Time(s) or Scope of Work, may only be made by a written Contract Amendment or written Change Order.
- 10.1.2 The CMAR will not proceed with the Work on any change involving an increase or decrease in cost or time without prior approval of the Change Order or Contract Amendment by the Board of Supervisors or the Procurement Director, as required by Section 11.16.010(C) of the Pima County Procurement Code. If the CMAR proceeds with any change involving an increase or decrease in cost or time without written authorization from COUNTY as required by this paragraph, the CMAR hereby waives all rights or claims CMAR may have in connection with or as a result of the change.
- 10.1.3 COUNTY'S right to make changes in the Work will not invalidate this Contract, relieve the CMAR of any responsibility, or require the COUNTY to give notice to the Surety. Any requirement of notice to the Surety of a change in the Work is the sole responsibility of CMAR.
- 10.1.4 A Contract Amendment or Change Order is a written instrument issued after execution of the Contract signed by COUNTY and CMAR, stating their agreement upon all of the following:
 - a) The scope of the change in the Work;
 - b) The amount of the adjustment, if any, to the GMP; and
 - c) The extent of the adjustment, if any, to the Contract Time(s) for performance set forth in the Contract Documents.
- 10.1.5 All changes in the Work authorized by an Contract Amendment or Change Order will be performed under the applicable terms of the Contract Documents, and COUNTY, and CMAR will negotiate in good faith and as expeditiously as possible on the appropriate adjustments, if any, in Contract Time or GMP. No GMP adjustment on account of a Change Order will include the CMAR's or Subcontractor's profit, fee, home office overhead, or a formula allocation of indirect costs except as allowed in Section 10.3.1 below unless otherwise specifically allowed under these General Conditions.

10.2 MINOR CHANGES IN THE WORK

10.2.1 DP may make minor changes in the Work consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents providing such changes do not involve an adjustment in the GMP or Contract Time(s) of performance and do not materially affect or alter the design, quality, or performance. The DP will promptly inform COUNTY, in writing, of any such changes, and verify that CMAR has recorded such changes on the As-Built Documents.

10.3 PRICE, TIME, OR SCOPE OF WORK ADJUSTMENT

- 10.3.1 The cost of or credit to COUNTY resulting from a change in the Work will be determined in one or more of the following ways:
 - a) By unit prices stated in the Contract Documents;
 - b) By cost, as defined below, and described in Exhibit C, properly itemized and supported by sufficient data reduced to meaningful unit prices for each assembled component of the Work in order to facilitate evaluation. Such costs will be itemized by crafts as defined within the Schedule of Values, submitted in a format approved by COUNTY, and limited to items directly allocable to the change in the Work:
 - 1) Cost of materials, including delivery;

Cost of labor, fully-burdened, including, but not limited to, payroll taxes, social security, old age and unemployment insurance, vacation and fringe benefits required by contract or routinely paid by CMAR, and workers' compensation insurance but excluding Subcontractor's labor;

Rental value of equipment and machinery to be established by rental receipts and not to exceed reasonable and customary rates for the locale of the Work. For owned equipment, CMAR must prove reasonable rental rate pursuant to actual ownership costs. County will not pay for equipment idle time unless the equipment is engaged in County-authorized force account or other time and materials work, and then only for the time it is engaged in such work. When the authorized force account or time and materials work is completed or the equipment ceases to be used for that work, payment for idle time stops;

As a guideline, on a not-to-exceed ("NTE") percentage of Direct Construction Cost only basis, the following overhead, general conditions and fee percentages will be utilized, and will be fixed as a dollar amount, unless otherwise established in the Contract, or otherwise mutually agreed upon and documented in the Change Order description:

Subcontractor Fee (profit): 5% Subcontractor Overhead & General Conditions, NTE: 10% Total Subcontractor Markups, NTE: 15%

CMAR Fee (profit), approximately or as per CMAR Contract: 5% CMAR Overhead & General Conditions, NTE or as per CMAR Contract: 5% Total CMAR Markups, NTE: 10%

The Contract may include provisions for some situations where larger amounts of Overhead and General Conditions are needed to address extenuating siterelated circumstances. However, the combined total fee, Profit, Overhead and General Conditions, including the CMAR and all levels or tiers of subcontractors, will not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the total direct costs of materials, labor, rental equipment, and subcontractor insurance and bonds.

- c. Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to facilitate evaluations; provided that such lump sum will not exceed that amount calculated under (b) above.
- 10.3.2 Any dispute regarding the pricing methodology or cost of a change does not relieve the CMAR of the obligation to proceed with work on the change. Any such dispute will be preserved by inclusion in the Change Order or Contract Amendment.
- 10.3.3 A COUNTY-approved written Contract Amendment or Change Order is full and final settlement of all entitlement claims for direct, indirect, delay, disruption, inefficiency, productivity, and any other consequential costs related to items covered or affected, as well as for related delays. CMAR irrevocably waives any such claim not presented for inclusion in the Contract Amendment or Change Order prior to signature.
- 10.3.4 In the event that COUNTY and the CMAR disagree upon whether CMAR is entitled to be paid for any Change Order services required of CMAR by COUNTY, or as to amount of compensation in the event of any other disagreement over the Scope of Work or proposed changes to the Work, COUNTY and CMAR will resolve all such disagreements consistent

2)

3)

4)

5)

initially with Article 10 of these General Conditions and thereafter if not resolved, in accordance with the Dispute Resolution provisions of the Contract. As part of the negotiation process, CMAR will furnish COUNTY and DP with a good faith estimate of the costs to perform the disputed services or Work in accordance with COUNTY'S interpretations. If the parties are unable to agree, and COUNTY expects CMAR to promptly perform the services in accordance with COUNTY'S or DP's interpretations of the documents, CMAR will proceed to perform the disputed services, conditioned upon COUNTY issuing a written order to CMAR directing CMAR to proceed and specifying COUNTY'S or DP's interpretation of the services that are to be performed.

10.3.5 The requirements set forth above as to CMAR providing detailed, itemized pricing on subcontractor Change Orders is fully applicable to Change Orders from CMAR to subcontractor where there is no comparable Change Order between COUNTY and CMAR.

10.4 EMERGENCIES

In any emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, CMAR will promptly act, at its discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. Any increase in the Guaranteed Maximum Price or Contract Time(s) of performance or both claimed by CMAR on account of emergency work will be determined as provided in this Article.

ARTICLE 11 - STOP WORK AND TERMINATION

11.1 COUNTY'S RIGHT TO STOP WORK OR TERMINATE FOR CONVENIENCE

- 11.1.1 COUNTY at any time may, without cause and for its convenience, order CMAR in writing to stop or suspend the Work, for a period not to exceed sixty (60) calendar days. In that event, CMAR may seek an adjustment of the GMP or Contract Time(s) of performance or both under Article 10 of the General Conditions to the extent that its Work has been adversely impacted by any such suspension or stoppage of the Work by COUNTY, unless actions, omissions or inactions of the CMAR are the cause of the COUNTY stopping or suspending the Work.
- 11.1.2 Upon seven (7) days written notice to CMAR, COUNTY may, without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy of COUNTY, elect to terminate the Contract for convenience of the COUNTY. In such case CMAR will be paid (without duplication of any items): a) for completed and accepted Work executed in accordance with Contract Documents prior to the effective date of the termination, including fair and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such Work; b) for expenses sustained prior to termination in performing services and furnishing labor, materials, and equipment as required by the Contract Documents in connection with uncompleted Work, plus fair and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such expenses; c) for all claims, costs, losses, and damages incurred in settlement of terminated contracts with subcontractors, suppliers, and others; and d) for reasonable expenses directly attributable to termination.
- 11.1.3 Upon receiving a Notice of Termination for Convenience, the CMAR will proceed as follows: a) stop Work as specified in the Notice; b) place no further subcontracts on purchase orders; c) terminate all subcontracts to the extent they relate to the Work terminated; d) assign to COUNTY all rights of the CMAR under terminated subcontracts, in which case COUNTY has the right to settle or to pay any termination settlement proposal arising out of these terminations; and e) submit complete termination inventory schedules to COUNTY no later than one hundred twenty (120) days from date of the Notice of Termination.

11.2 COUNTY'S RIGHT TO TERMINATE FOR DEFAULT AND PERFORM

11.2.1 If CMAR persistently fails to (a) provide a sufficient number of skilled workers, the materials required by the Construction Documents, or both; (b) comply with applicable legal requirements; (c) pay, without cause, its Subcontractors or suppliers; (d) prosecute the Work with promptness and diligence to ensure that the Work is completed by the Contract Time(s) as may be from time to time adjusted; (e) maintain contractor, business, or other required licenses or authority; (f) otherwise perform the Work and its obligations in compliance with the Contract Documents; or (g) if, for any reason, CMAR curtails or ceases business or business operations to a degree that would substantially impair or preclude CMAR's performance of this Contract, COUNTY has the right, in addition to any other rights and remedies provided in the Contract Documents or by law, after seven (7) days' written notice of default to CMAR and its surety and CMAR's (or its surety's) failure to cure within that seven day period, to (i) perform and furnish through itself or through others it selects any such labor, materials, or Work, and to deduct the cost thereof from any monies due or to become due to CMAR under the Contract Documents; or (ii) terminate the Contract with CMAR for all or any portion of the Work, enter upon the premises and take possession, for the purpose of completing the Work, of all materials, equipment scaffolds, tools, appliances, and other items thereon, all of which CMAR hereby transfers, assigns, and sets over to COUNTY for such purpose, and to employ any person or persons to complete the Work and provide all of the required labor, services, materials, equipment, and other items; or (iii) both (i) and (ii) above. Upon exercising its right to Terminate for Default for any reason set forth above, COUNTY, at its discretion, may also exercise the right to have each or any of CMAR's. subcontractor and supply contracts assigned to COUNTY, or COUNTY'S nominee, provided however, COUNTY will have no responsibility or liability for acts or omission of CMAR under such Contracts and the sole recourse of subcontractors on pre-termination events will be against CMAR. CMAR will ensure that a clause providing for this conditional assignment on the foregoing terms is included in each subcontract.

11.2.2 In the event of such termination for default:

- 11.2.2.1 CMAR is not entitled to recover any further payment until the Work is completed and will then only be entitled to be paid for all acceptable Work performed prior to its date of default minus costs incurred by COUNTY to complete the Project exceeding the GMP as described below. In the event COUNTY'S cost and expense of completing CMAR's Work exceeds the GMP, then CMAR or its surety will promptly pay the difference to COUNTY. Such costs and expense will include not only the cost of completing the Work to the satisfaction of COUNTY and of performing and furnishing all labor, services, tools, equipment and other items required in the Contract Documents, but also losses, damages, costs and expense, including consultant and attorney's fees and expenses incurred in connection with any additional procurement and the defending of claims, if any, arising from or related to CMAR's default.
- 11.2.2.2 All finished and unfinished As-Builts, shop drawings, documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, photographs, reports, and other information in whatever form, including electronic, acquired, or prepared by CMAR for this project become COUNTY'S property and will be delivered to COUNTY not later than five (5) business days after the effective date of the termination.
- 11.2.2.3 COUNTY may withhold payments to CMAR arising under this or any other Contract for the purpose of set-off until such time as the exact amount of damage due COUNTY from CMAR is determined
- 11.2.3 In the event that COUNTY terminates the Contract for default and such termination is ultimately determined to be improper or wrongful, the termination for default will be automatically converted to a termination for convenience and the provisions of 11.1 of these General Conditions will apply.

11.2.4 If CMAR institutes or has instituted against it a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code, such event is a default that may impair or frustrate CMAR's performance of its obligations under the Contract Documents. Accordingly, if such event of default occurs, COUNTY is entitled to request CMAR, its trustee, or other successor, to provide adequate assurance of future performance. If CMAR or CMAR's trustee, or other successor fails to comply with such request within ten (10) days after receiving notice of the request, COUNTY, in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by the Contract Documents, or by law, is entitled to terminate the Contract. COUNTY will thereupon be entitled to perform and furnish through itself or through others any such labor, materials, or equipment necessary for the completion of the Work and necessary to maintain the Contract Time(s) of performance, and to deduct the costs from any monies due or to become due CMAR under the Contract Documents pending receipt of adequate assurances of performance and actual performance in accordance herewith. In the event of any such bankruptcy proceedings, the Contract will terminate if CMAR rejects the Contract or if there has been a default under the Contract Documents, and CMAR is unable to give adequate assurances that it will perform as provided in the Contract Documents or otherwise is unable to comply with the requirements for assuming the Contract under the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code.

11.3 CMAR'S RIGHT TO STOP WORK AND TERMINATE FOR CAUSE

11.3.1 CMAR may, in addition to any other rights afforded it under the Contract Documents or by applicable law, either stop Work or terminate the Contract for cause upon COUNTYs failure to timely pay an amount in excess of one hundred thousand dollars (\$100,000,00) properly due to CMAR under any CMAR Application for Payment. In this regard CMAR will provide COUNTY with written notice indicating that such non-payment condition has occurred, and that it is CMAR's intention to stop Work or terminate the Contract only if the non-payment condition is not cured within seven (7) days from COUNTY'S receipt of CMAR's notice. In the event that CMAR elects to only stop Work, it may nonetheless later indicate its intention to terminate the Contract by providing COUNTY with written notice that CMAR will terminate the Contract within seven (7) days from receipt of CMAR's notice; unless the alleged cause of termination is cured in the interim.

11.3.2 In the event CMAR properly and lawfully elects to stop Work under section 11.3.1 for nonpayment and then resumes Work, CMAR will be entitled to make a claim for adjustment to the GMP and Contract Time(s) of performance to the extent CMAR has been adversely impacted by the stoppage of Work. In the event that CMAR elects to terminate the Contract on the basis permitted under Section 11.3.1, CMAR will be entitled to recover the same costs it would be permitted to recover had COUNTY terminated this Contract for convenience under Section 11.1 of these General Conditions.

If the Contract is terminated for any of the reasons set forth above, CMAR's contracts with its subcontractors and suppliers, at COUNTY'S option and without further action by CMAR, will be assigned to COUNTY; provided however, that COUNTY will have no liability for any pre-existing acts or omissions or default by CMAR under such contracts and the sole recourse of such subcontractors and suppliers for any such events will be against CMAR.

End of Exhibit "C" – General Conditions

11.4



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 12/19/2017

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PROL	UCE	२				·	CONTACT CopperPoint Insurance Companies								
Coc	perF	Point Insurance Compar	nies			ľ	HONE (A/C, No. Ext): 602.631.2300 or 866.284.2694 [A/C, No): 602.631.2599								
,		3rd Street					ADDRESS:								
							INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE						NAIC #		
Pho	enix					AZ 85012-3068	INSURER A : COPPERPOINT MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY 14216								
INSURED								INSURER B ;							
		Mc Gann & Associate	es inc			,	INSURER C :								
		6814 N Oracle Rd Ste	e 210	Ē				RD:							
				Γ				INSURER E :							
		Tucson	,			AZ 85704	INSURER F :								
CO	/ER	AGES	CER	TIFIC	ATE	NUMBER: 621				REVISION NU					
T٢	IIS II	S TO CERTIFY THAT TH	HE POLICIES	OF I	INSUE	RANCE LISTED BELOW HA	WE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PER OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH T								
CE	ЕРТИ	FICATE MAY BE ISSUE	D OR MAY F	PFRT	'AIN. '	THE INSURANCE AFFORD	ED BY	THE POLICIE	S Describei	D HEREIN IS S	UBJECT T	O ALL	THE TERMS,		
E	CLU	ISIONS AND CONDITION	IS OF SUCH F	POLIC	CIES.	LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE	DED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.								
INSR LTR	******	TYPE OF INSURANCE		ADDL INSD	SUBR	POLICY NUMBER		POLICY EFF (MM/DD/YYYY)	POLICY EXP (MM/DD/YYYY)		LIMITS	3			
		COMMERCIAL GENERAL LI								EACH OCCURREN	.+	\$			
			OCCUR							DAMAGE TO REN PREMISES (Ea oc	CUMENCE)	\$			
		(.•				MED EXP (Any on	e person)	\$			
		gray market in diele menseen Western Lander W. Might geben die seinen die seinen versionen								PERSONAL & AD	/ INJURY	\$			
	GEN	LAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIE	ES PER:							GENERAL AGGR	EGATE	\$			
		POLICY PRO-	LOC			· •				PRODUCTS - CO	NP/OP AGG	\$			
		OTHER:				·						5			
	AUT	OMOBILE LIABILITY								COMBINED SING (Ea accident)	LE LIMIT	\$			
		ANY AUTO								BODILY INJURY (Per parson)	\$			
			HEDULED							BODILY INJURY (\$			
		HIRED AUTOS	N-OWNED							PROPERTY DAM/ (Per accident)	AGE	\$			
						·						\$			
		UMORELLA LIAB	OCCUR							EACH OCCURRE	NCE	\$			
l	ļļ		CLAIMS-MADE							AGGREGATE		\$			
		DED RETENTION \$										\$			
		KERS COMPENSATION									OTH- ER				
ANY		ID EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N IY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE				1011104		01/01/2017	01/01/2019	E.L. EACH ACCID			00,000		
A	OFF	FICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?				1011124		01/01/2017	01/01/2018	E.L. DISEASE - E		\$ 1.0	00,000		
1.	If ve:	s, describe under CRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I							E.L. DISEASE - P			00,000			
	1				Γ										
						· · · · ·									
	1	· .				· · · · ·									
DES	CRIP	TION OF OPERATIONS / LOCA	ATIONS / VEHICI	LE5 (4	CORD	101, Additional Remarks Schedu	le, may b	e attached if mor	e space is requir	ed)					
		ion: Design Servic													
86	03-1	ARCHITECTURAL OR E	ENGINEERIN	IG F	IRM	- CLERICAL, 8601-ARC	CHITEC	TURAL OR E	SNGINEERING	S FIRM - INC	STODING :	SALESI	PLASONS		
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION								·····							
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFO															
Pima County Procurement									DESCRIBED PO IEREOF, NOTIC						
Matthew Sage								CY PROVISIONS							
130 W Congress St															
1	-					AZ 85701	Dan House								
		Tucson					<u> </u>		·~~	ri fran	$\underline{\nabla}$				
								ര 1	088.701A & C	CORD CORPC	NRATION	All ria	hts reserved.		

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Ĩ	ć	and a second				-				TE OF IN			12/18/20			
C B R	erti Elov Epri	FICA N. 1 ESEI	TE DOES	S NOT AFFIR TIFICATE OF DR PRODUCE	MATIVELY OF INSURANCE R, AND THE C	R NEGATIVEL DOES NOT (ERTIFICATE H	Y AMEI CONSTI IOLDER	ND, EXTEND TUTE A CON G	or Tra	ALTER THE C CT BETWEEN	OVERAG	THE CERTIFIC 3E AFFORDED SUING INSURE	BY THE R(S), AU	E POLICIES		
This form is used to report coverages provided to a single specific vehicle or equipment. Do not use this form to report liability coverage provided to multiple vehicles under a single policy. Use ACORD 25 for that purpose.																
_	NICES	-						CONTACT NAME:		b Witt		(PAX				
269	StateFarm Bob Witt									PHONE (AC. No. Ext): 520-825-3232 [AC. No): 520-825-0464						
() (j);	Bob Witt	Oracle Rd Ste	444		E-MAL ADDRESS: PRODUCER	ADDRESS: bob.wilt.mkct@statefarm.com PRODUCER CUSTOMER ID #:								
				Unicie rui oa	7 2 1 3	A7 85		CUSTOMER ID #: INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #								
Tucson AZ 85739-9523									INSURER A : State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company 25178							
								INSURER B :								
			McGann,	Donald & Joa	n			INSURER G :								
			495 W V	aloro Dr				INSURER D :								
-			Tucson	THE REAL PROPERTY AND INCOME.		AZ B	5737	INSURER E :								
	A DESCRIPTION OF A DESC			HICLE OR E		~~~~				r	UELINY	IDENTIFICATION N	MARD			
	EAR		WAKE/M/	NUFACTURER	F150	ODEL.	Pickup	BOOY TYPE		1FTFW1ET1E						
	014 CRIPT		-010				h	LEÆQUIPMENT VA	U DF		Urreat	SERIAL NUMBER				
DEG							S			л. Г.						
co	VER	AGF	S	*****	CERTIFICATE	E NUMBER:	1	******		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	REVIS	ION NUMBER:		·		
	PINT	15 T	O CERTIEY	THAT THE PO	ICY/IES) OF INS	SURANCE LISTE	D BELO	W HAS/HAVE BE	EENI	ISSUED TO THE I	NSURED	NAMED ABOVE	OR THE	POLICY		
	WHIC	Ъ	HIS CERTIF	ICATE MAY BE	ISSUED OR MA	REQUIREMENT, AY PERTAIN, THI OF SUCH POLIC	e insur/	R CONDITION O ANCE AFFORDE	DF AN ED BI	IY CONTRACT OF THE POLICY(IE:	R OTHER S) DESCF	DOCUMENT WIT RIBED HEREIN IS	H RESPEC	JECT TO		
INS8 LTR			TYPE OF D			LICY NUMBER	F	POLICY EFFECTIV	Æ P	OLICY EXPIRATION ATE (MM/DD/YYYY)		LIM	 T9			
LIK	UNE BATCH	_	VEHICLE LIA					AN 10 (MANUSINAL 1 1 1 1			COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT \$ 1,000,000			.000		
		[]	VEHICLE LO	A HRJIY					BODILY INJURY (Per person) \$							
A	Y				, 277 4170-B15	7 4170-B15-03		08/15/2017		02/15/2018	BODILY	NJURY (Per accident)	(Per accident) \$			
										-	PROPERTY DAMAGE \$					
		GEN	IERAL LIADI	γ π ,							}		\$ 1,000			
			OCCURREN	CE '							GENERA	LAGGREGATE	\$ 1,000	,000		
			CLAIMS MAI	Œ					_	OLICY EXPIRATION			\$			
INSR LTR	LØBS PAYEE		TYPE OF IN	SURANCE	PO	LICY NUMBER		POLICY EFFECTIV		ATE (MM/DD/VYYY)		limits / de				
A		X	VEH COLLIS	ION LOSS	277 4170-815	5.03	ŀ	08/15/2017		02/15/2018		AGREED AMT		LIMIT		
			ar (1947) i su anna a fuidh a fuidh a fuidh an							-		STATED ANT	\$ 200 \$	DED LIMIT		
А		X	VEH COMP	VEHIOTO	277 4170 B15	5-03		08/15/2017		02/15/2018	<u> </u>	AGREED AMT	*0	DED		
		50										AGREED AMT	40			
		EUL	BASIC	BROAD							Пкс		\$	LIMIT		
			SPECIAL									<u> </u>	\$	DED		
										an na na ngaga galan A Alina A Alina Angalan Katalan Katalan Katalan Katalan Katalan Katalan Katalan Katalan Ka						
					<u> </u>								<u> </u>			
REM	ARKS	(INC).	UDING SPEC	IAL CONDITIONS	OTHER COVERAG	ES) (Allach ACORD) 101, Addi	itional Remarks Sch	nadula	, if more space is rec	(beniu					
				· /•. ##					<u>мав</u> :	CELLATION						
******	****		L INTERE							CELLATION		Program of				
Select one of the following: The additional interest described below has been added to the policy(iss) listed herein by policy number(s). A request has been submitted to add the additional interest described below to the policy(iss) (stad herein by policy number(s).									SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.							
	listed CLF /	erein ECKIII	by colicy num MENT INTER	ber(s). EST:	CASED	FINANCED			DESCI	RIPTION OF THE AD	DITIONAL	NTEREST				
				DITIONAL INTERES			·		X A	DDITIONAL INSURE	o 🗌	LOSS PAYEE				
								1	L	ENDER'S LOSS PAY	ēe 👘					
			Pima Cou	inty				Ţ.	LDAN	/ LEASE NUMBER						
				ongress St									Ally successive and a successive of the	CR. XXX VOID AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AN		
			Tucson				AZ.	85701	5701 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE							
						*******		and a second	1	© 1997-2015 A		ORPORATION	. All righ	ts reserved.		

ACORD 23 (2016/03)

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

1004361 142937.3 01-28-2018



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 12/11/2017

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES. BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODU				CONTACT NAME:	Contact Karen Bronson					
	CorRisk Solution			PHONE (AC. No, Uni)	PHONE OF A COLLAGE A COLLAGE FRA					
	225 W. Washington St. S		560	RAMAL ADDRESS:						
	Chicago, IL 6060	00 O			INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE					
				INSURER	A: New Hamy	oshire Insu	irance Company	23841		
INSURE	D _			INSURER	B:			·		
	McGann & Associates,			INSURER	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			······································		
	6814 North Oracle F	load,		INSURER						
	Suite 210			INSURER						
	Tucson, AZ 8570	4		INSURER	*****	mannananan manina da kada (kada 1997)				
COV	ERAGES	CERT	IFICATE	NUMBER:	• •	REVISIO	ON NUMBER:			
THIS	S TO CERTIEY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSUE	ANCE 11	STED BEL	OW HAVE BEEN ISS	UED TO THE IN	SURED NAMED	ABOVE FOR THE POLICY	PERIOD		
INDIC. CERT	TED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMEN FICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, T JSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES	NT, TERM HE INSUI S. LIMITS	I OR CONI RANCE AF SHOWN N	DITION OF ANY CON FORDED BY THE PO	TRACT OR OTH DLICIES DESCR DUCED BY PAIL	IER DOCUMEN IBED HEREIN I CLAIMS.	T WITH RESPECT TO WHIC	CHITHIS		
INSR LTR	TYPE OF INSURANCE	ADD'L INSRD	SUBR	POLICY NUMBER	POLICY EFF (MM/DD/YYYY)	POLICY EXP (MM/DD/YYYY)	Limits			
<u>(R</u>	GENERAL LIABILITY		1			-	EACH OCCURANCE			
							DAMAGE TO RENTED			
							PREMISES (Ea occurance)			
		DOES		DOES NOT APPLY		•	MED EXP (Any one person)	······		
	GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:						PERSONAL & AND INJURY			
							GENERAL AGGREGATE			
							PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG			
		}			· ·		•			
			1	•			COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea accident)			
	ANY AUTO	1					BODILY INJURY (Per person)			
	ALL OWNED SCHEDULED	DOESN		DOES NOT APPLY			BODILY INJURY (Per accident)			
	AUTOS AUTOS HIRED AUTOS			DOLONGINATIL			PROPERTY DAMAGE (Per accident)			
	HIRED AUTOS	-	1				STRANK BILLY			
	UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR	1		<u> </u>	<u>}</u>		EACH OCCURANCE			
1				DOES NOT APPLY			AGGREGATE			
ļ	DED RETENTION \$	1		DOLS NOT AFPLI						
	WORKERS COMPENSATION		+				WC STATU- OTHER			
	AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE						TORY LIMITS			
ļ	OFFICE/MEMBER EXCLUDED? Y/N (Mandatory in NH)		N/A DOLE N				E.L. EACH ACCIDENT	·		
				DOES NOT APPLY			EMPLOYEE	ļ		
	If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF				1		E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT	l		
A	Professional Liability			064990765-	12/07/17	12/07/18	1	0,000		
	-		<u> </u>	02		1		0,000		
	CRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIO .gn Services: Kino South Spor			Attach ACCORD	101, Addition	al Remarks S	Schedule, if more spac	e is required)		

 CERTIFICATE HOLDER
 CANCELLATION

 Pima County Procurement
 SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

 Tucson, AZ 05701
 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

								MCGAN-1	OP ID: 21			
A	CORD CERI	ΓIF	IC	ATE OF LIA	BIL	ITY IN	SURA		ATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 12/19/17			
T T	HIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A	ΜΔΤΤ	FR	OF INFORMATION ONLY		CONFERS N	IO RIGHTS	UPON THE CERTIFICATE	HOLDER. THIS			
C B	ERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATI	URA	(OF NCE	NEGATIVELY AMEND, DOES NOT CONSTITU	EXTE	nd or alti	ER THE CO	VERAGE AFFORDED BY	The Policies			
R	EPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AN	ID TH	E CE	RTIFICATE HOLDER.								
tt	IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the											
<u>с</u>	certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).											
PRODUCER Phone: 520-795-8511 CONTACT THE MAHONEY GROUP - TUCSON Fax 520 705 8542 PHONE												
15330 N. La Cholla Bivd Fax: 520-795-i						o, Ext):		FAX (A/C, No):	··· ·			
	son, AZ 85741-3815					E-MAIL ADDRESS:						
SBL	J House Account					INS	NAIC #					
					INSURE	RA:Hartfor	rance Co.	19682				
INS	JRED McGann & Associates				INSUR							
	 Attn: Joan McGann 	_		• •	INSUR	ERC:						
	6814 N. Oracle Rd Ste 21	U			INSUR			······				
	Tucson, AZ 85704				INSURE				·			
					INSUR							
5	VERAGES CER	TIFIC		NUMBER:	- MOURI			REVISION NUMBER:				
<u>т</u>	LIC IS TO CERTIEN THAT THE BOUCHES			ANCE LISTED BELOW HA		N ISSUED TO	THE INSURE	ED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE	POLICY PERIOD			
	IDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY RE ERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY XCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH	EQUIR PERT	EME	NT, TERM OR CONDITION THE INSURANCE AFFORD	OF AN ED BY	Y CONTRACT THE POLICIE:	OR OTHER S DESCRIBEI	DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT	TO WHICH THIS			
						POLICY EFF	POLICY EXP	LINUTO				
INSR LTR		ADDL	wvo	POLICY NUMBER		(MM/DD/YYYY)	(MM/DD/YYY)	1 1	2,000,000			
						10/10/10	40/14/40	EACH OCCURRENCE \$	300,000			
Α	COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY	X	Х	59SBACM7753		12/14/17	12/14/18	PREMISES (Ea occurrence) \$				
	CLAIMS MADE OCCUR							MED EXP (Any one person) \$	10,000			
	X Business Owners							PERSONAL & ADV INJURY \$	2,000,000			
		. 1						GENERAL AGGREGATE \$	4,000,000			
	GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:	[PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG \$	4,000,000			
								\$				
								COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea accident) \$				
	<u> </u>	x		*				BODILY INJURY (Per person) \$				
		^						BODILY INJURY (Per accident) \$				
	AUTOS AUTOS							PROPERTY DAMAGE				
	X HIRED AUTOS X AUTOS							(Per accident) \$				
								EACH OCCURRENCE \$				
	EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE							AGGREGATE \$				
	DED RETENTION \$							WC STATU- OTH-				
	WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/N											
	ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE	N/A						E.L. EACH ACCIDENT \$	<u> </u>			
	OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?	"'``						E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE \$				
	If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below							E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT \$				
								PROPERTY	99,900			
								· · · · ·				
DEC	CRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHIC	LES //	ttach	ACORD 101. Additional Remarks	Schedule	e, if more space is	required)					
	oject: Kino South Sports Co					-,p	, ,					
Cor	tificate holder includes:	-the	∋ C(OUNTY, its departm	ents,	, district	:5,					
h	and commissions officers		ffid	ials, agents, and	lemo]	lovees.						
Add	litional Insured, Waiver of m SS 0008	Su	orog	Jation and Frimary	NOI	CONCLEDUC	ory ber					
101	m 35 0008											
CF	RTIFICATE HOLDER				CAN	CELLATION						
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			P	I							
				•	SHO	ULD ANY OF	THE ABOVE D	ESCRIBED POLICIES BE CAN	CELLED BEFORE			
					THE		DATE THE	EREOF, NOTICE WILL BE	DELIVERED IN			
	Pima County Procureme	nt			ACC							
1	Matthew Sage, Contract		er									
	130 W. Congress St.				AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE							
1	Tucson, AZ 85701				1918	uma t	1. Kros	+				
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				1				<u> </u>			
_						© 1988	2010 ACOR	D CORPORATION. All rig	hts reserved.			

.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

QUICK REFERENCE BUSINESS LIA BILITY COVERAGE FORM READ YOUR POLICY CAREFULLY

BUS		Beginning on Page
А.	COVERAGES Business Liability Medical Expenses Coverage Extension - Supplementary Payments	1 1 2 2
В.	EXCLUSIONS	3
C.	WHO IS AN INSURED	10
D.	LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES LIMITS OF INSURANCE	14
E.	LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES GENERAL CONDITION	S 15
	1. Bankruptcy	15
	2. Duties In The Event Of Occurrence, Offense, Claim Or Suit	15
	3. Financial Responsibility Laws	16
	4. Legal Action Against Us	16
	5. Separation Of Insureds	16
	6. Representations	16
	7. Other Insurance	16
	8. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us	17
F. [.]	OPTIONAL ADDITIONAL INSURED COVERAGES	18
	Additional Insureds	18
G.	LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES DEFINITIONS	20



Various provisions in this policy restrict coverage. Read the entire policy carefully to determine rights, duties and what is and is not covered.

Throughout this policy the words "you" and "your" refer to the Named Insured shown in the Declarations. The words "we", "us" and "our" refer to the stock insurance company member of The Hartford providing this insurance.

The word "insured" means any person or organization qualifying as such under Section C. - Who Is An Insured.

Other words and phrases that appear in quotation marks have special meaning. Refer to Section G. - Liability And Medical Expenses Definitions.

A. COVERAGES

1. BUSINESS LIABILITY COVERAGE (BODILY INJURY, PROPERTY DAMAGE, PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING INJURY)

Insuring Agreement

a. We will pay those sums that the insured becomes legally obligated to pay as damages because of "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" to which this insurance applies. We will have the right and duty to defend the insured against any "suit" seeking those damages. However, we will have no duty to defend the insured against any "suit" seeking damages for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" to which this insurance does not apply.

We may, at our discretion, investigate any "occurrence" or offense and settle any claim or "suit" that may result. But:

- (1) The amount we will pay for damages is limited as described in Section D. -Liability And Medical Expenses Limits Of Insurance; and
- (2) Our right and duty to defend ends when we have used up the applicable limit of insurance in the payment of judgments, settlements or medical expenses to which this insurance applies.

No other obligation or liability to pay sums or perform acts or services is covered unless explicitly provided for under Coverage Extension - Supplementary Payments.

- **b.** This insurance applies:
 - (1) To "bodily injury" and "property damage" only if:

- (a) The "bodily injury" or "property damage" is caused by an "occurrence" that takes place in the "coverage territory";
- (b) The "bodily injury" or "property damage" occurs during the policy period; and
- (c) Prior to the policy period, no insured listed under Paragraph 1. of Section C. - Who is An insured and no "employee" authorized by you to give or receive notice of an "occurrence" or claim, knew that the "bodily injury" or "property damage" had occurred, in whole or in part. If such a listed insured or authorized "employee" knew, prior to the policy period, that the "bodily injury" or "property damage" occurred, then anv continuation, change or resumption of such "bodily injury" or "property damage" during or after the policy period will be deemed to have been known prior to the policy period.
- (2) To "personal and advertising injury" caused by an offense arising out of your business, but only if the offense was committed in the "coverage territory" during the policy period.
- c. "Bodily injury" or "property damage" will be deemed to have been known to have occurred at the earliest time when any insured listed under Paragraph 1. of Section
 C. Who Is An Insured or any "employee" authorized by you to give or receive notice of an "occurrence" or claim:
 - Reports all, or any part, of the "bodily injury" or "property damage" to us or any other insurer;

Form SS 00 08 04 05

- (2) Receives a written or verbal demand or claim for damages because of the "bodily injury" or "property damage"; or
- (3) Becomes aware by any other means that "bodily injury" or "property damage" has occurred or has begun to occur.
- d. Damages because of "bodily injury" include damages claimed by any person or organization for care, loss of services or death resulting at any time from the "bodily injury".
- e. Incidental Medical Malpractice
 - (1) "Bodily injury" arising out of the rendering of or failure to render professional health care services as a physician, dentist, nurse, emergency medical technician or paramedic shall be deemed to be caused by an "occurrence", but only if:
 - (a) The physician, dentist, nurse, emergency medical technician or paramedic is employed by you to provide such services; and
 - (b) You are not engaged in the business or occupation of providing such services.
 - (2) For the purpose of determining the limits of insurance for incidental medical malpractice, any act or omission together with all related acts or omissions in the furnishing of these services to any one person will be considered one "occurrence".

2. MEDICAL EXPENSES

Insuring Agreement

- a. We will pay medical expenses as described below for "bodily injury" caused by an accident:
 - (1) On premises you own or rent;
 - (2) On ways next to premises you own or rent; or
 - (3) Because of your operations;

provided that:

- (1) The accident takes place in the "coverage territory" and during the policy period;
- (2) The expenses are incurred and reported to us within three years of the date of the accident; and
- (3) The injured person submits to examination, at our expense, by physicians of our choice as often as we reasonably require.

- b. We will make these payments regardless of fault. These payments will not exceed the applicable limit of insurance. We will pay reasonable expenses for:
 - (1) First aid administered at the time of an accident;
 - (2) Necessary medical, surgical, x-ray and dental services, including prosthetic devices; and
 - (3) Necessary ambulance, hospital, professional nursing and funeral services.

3. COVERAGE EXTENSION -SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS

- a. We will pay, with respect to any claim or "suit" we investigate or settle, or any "suit" against an insured we defend:
 - (1) All expenses we incur.
 - (2) Up to \$1,000 for the cost of bail bonds required because of accidents or traffic law violations arising out of the use of any vehicle to which Business Liability Coverage for "bodily injury" applies. We do not have to furnish these bonds.
 - (3) The cost of appeal bonds or bonds to release attachments, but only for bond amounts within the applicable limit of insurance. We do not have to furnish these bonds.
 - (4) All reasonable expenses incurred by the insured at our request to assist us in the investigation or defense of the claim or "suit", including actual loss of earnings up to \$500 a day because of time off from work.
 - (5) All costs taxed against the insured in the "suit".
 - (6) Prejudgment interest awarded against the insured on that part of the judgment we pay. If we make an offer to pay the applicable limit of insurance, we will not pay any prejudgment interest based on that period of time after the offer.
 - (7) All interest on the full amount of any judgment that accrues after entry of the judgment and before we have paid, offered to pay, or deposited in court the part of the judgment that is within the applicable limit of insurance.

Any amounts paid under (1) through (7) above will not reduce the limits of insurance.

- **b.** If we defend an insured against a "suit" and an indemnitee of the insured is also named as a party to the "suit", we will defend that indemnitee if all of the following conditions are met:
 - (1) The "suit" against the indemnitee seeks damages for which the insured has assumed the liability of the indemnitee in a contract or agreement that is an "insured contract";
 - (2) This insurance applies to such liability assumed by the insured;
 - (3) The obligation to defend, or the cost of the defense of, that indemnitee, has also been assumed by the insured in the same "insured contract";
 - (4) The allegations in the "suit" and the information we know about the "occurrence" are such that no conflict appears to exist between the interests of the insured and the interest of the indemnitee;
 - (5) The indemnitee and the insured ask us to conduct and control the defense of that indemnitee against such "suit" and agree that we can assign the same counsel to defend the insured and the indemnitee; and
 - (6) The indemnitee:
 - (a) Agrees in writing to:
 - (i) Cooperate with us in the investigation, settlement or defense of the "suit";
 - (ii) Immediately send us copies of any demands, notices, summonses or legal papers received in connection with the "suit";
 - (iii) Notify any other insurer whose coverage is available to the indemnitee; and
 - (iv) Cooperate with us with respect to coordinating other applicable insurance available to the indemnitee; and
 - (b) Provides us with written authorization to:
 - (i) Obtain records and other information related to the "suit"; and
 - (ii) Conduct and control the defense of the indemnitee in such "suit".

So long as the above conditions are met, attorneys' fees incurred by us in the defense of that indemnitee, necessary litigation expenses incurred by us and necessary litigation expenses incurred by the indemnitee at our request will be paid as Supplementary Payments.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Paragraph **1.b.(b)** of Section **B.** – Exclusions, such payments will not be deemed to be damages for "bodily injury" and "property damage" and will not reduce the Limits of Insurance.

Our obligation to defend an insured's indemnitee and to pay for attorneys' fees and necessary litigation expenses as Supplementary Payments ends when:

- (1) We have used up the applicable limit of insurance in the payment of judgments or settlements; or
- (2) The conditions set forth above, or the terms of the agreement described in Paragraph (6) above, are no longer met.

B. EXCLUSIONS

1. Applicable To Business Liability Coverage

This insurance does not apply to:

- a. Expected Or Intended Injury
 - (1) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" expected or intended from the standpoint of the insured. This exclusion does not apply to "bodily injury" or "property damage" resulting from the use of reasonable force to protect persons or property; or
 - (2) "Personal and advertising injury" arising out of an offense committed by, at the direction of or with the consent or acquiescence of the insured with the expectation of inflicting "personal and advertising injury".

b. Contractual Liability

- (1) "Bodily injury" or "property damage"; or
- (2) "Personal and advertising injury"

for which the insured is obligated to pay damages by reason of the assumption of liability in a contract or agreement.

This exclusion does not apply to liability for damages because of:

(a) "Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" that the insured would have in the absence of the contract or agreement; or

- (b) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" assumed in a contract or agreement that is an "insured contract". provided the "bodily injury" or "property damage" occurs subsequent to the execution of the contract or agreement. Solely for the purpose of liability assumed in an "insured contract", reasonable attorneys' fees and necessary litigation expenses incurred by or for a party other than an insured are deemed to be damages because of "bodily injury" or "property damage" provided:
 - (i) Liability to such party for, or for the cost of, that party's defense has also been assumed in the same "insured contract", and
 - (ii) Such attorneys' fees and litigation expenses are for defense of that party against a civil or alternative dispute resolution proceeding in which damages to which this insurance applies are alleged.

c. Liquor Liability

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" for which any insured may be held liable by reason of:

- (1) Causing or contributing to the intoxication of any person;
- (2) The furnishing of alcoholic beverages to a person under the legal drinking age or under the influence of alcohol; or
- (3) Any statute, ordinance or regulation relating to the sale, gift, distribution or use of alcoholic beverages.

This exclusion applies only if you are in the business of manufacturing, distributing, selling, serving or furnishing alcoholic beverages.

d. Workers' Compensation And Similar Laws

Any obligation of the insured under a workers' compensation, disability benefits or unemployment compensation law or any similar law.

e. Employer's Liability

"Bodily injury" to:

- (1) An "employee" of the insured arising out of and in the course of:
 - (a) Employment by the insured; or

- (b) Performing duties related to the conduct of the insured's business, or
- (2) The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of that "employee" as a consequence of (1) above.

This exclusion applies:

- (1) Whether the insured may be liable as an employer or in any other capacity; and
- (2) To any obligation to share damages with or repay someone else who must pay damages because of the injury.

This exclusion does not apply to liability assumed by the insured under an "insured contract".

- f. Pollution
 - (1) "Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of the actual, alleged or threatened discharge, dispersal, seepage, migration, release or escape of "pollutants":
 - (a) At or from any premises, site or location which is or was at any time owned or occupied by, or rented or loaned to any insured. However, this subparagraph does not apply to:
 - (i) "Bodily injury" if sustained within a building and caused by smoke, fumes, vapor or soot produced by or originating from equipment that is used to heat, cool or dehumidify the building, or equipment that is used to heat water for personal use, by the building's occupants or their guests;
 - (ii) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" for which you may be held liable, if you are a contractor and the owner or lessee of such premises, site or location has been added to your policy as an additional insured with respect to your ongoing operations performed for that additional insured at that premises, site or location and such premises, site or location is not and never was owned or occupied by, or rented or loaned to, any insured, other than that additional insured; or

Page 4 of 24

- (iii) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of heat, smoke or fumes from a "hostile fire";
- (b) At or from any premises, site or location which is or was at any time used by or for any insured or others for the handling, storage, disposal, processing or treatment of waste;
- (c) Which are or were at any time transported, handled, stored, treated, disposed of, or processed as waste by or for:
 - (i) Any insured; or
 - (ii) Any person or organization for whom you may be legally responsible;
- (d) At or from any premises, site or location on which any insured or any contractors or subcontractors working directly or indirectly on insured's anv behalf are performing operations if the "pollutants" are brought on or to the premises, site or location in connection with such operations by such insured, contractor or subcontractor. However, this subparagraph does not apply to:
 - (i) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of the escape of fuels, lubricants or other operating fluids which are needed to perform the normal hvdraulic electrical. or mechanical functions necessary for the operation of "mobile equipment" or its parts, if such fuels, lubricants or other operating fluids escape from a vehicle part designed to hold, store or receive them. This exception does not apply if the "bodily injury" or "property damage" arises out of the intentional discharge, dispersal or release of the fuels, lubricants or other operating fluids, or if such fuels, lubricants or other operating fluids are brought on or to the premises, site or location with the intent that they be discharged, dispersed or

released as part of the operations being performed by such insured, contractor or subcontractor;

- (ii) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" sustained within a building and caused by the release of gases, fumes or vapors from materials brought into that building in connection with operations being performed by you or on your behalf by a contractor or subcontractor; or
- (iii) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of heat, smoke or fumes from a "hostile fire"; or
- (e) At or from any premises, site or location on which any insured or any contractors or subcontractors working directly or indirectly on any insured's behalf are performing operations if the operations are to test for, monitor, clean up, remove, contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize, or in any way respond to, or assess the effects of, "pollutants".
- (2) Any loss, cost or expense arising out of any:
 - (a) Request, demand, order or statutory or regulatory requirement that any insured or others test for, monitor, clean up, remove, contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize, or in any way respond to, or assess the effects of, "pollutants"; or
 - (b) Claim or suit by or on behalf of a governmental authority for damages because of testing for, monitoring, cleaning up, removing, containing, treating, detoxifying or neutralizing, or in any way responding to, or assessing the effects of, "pollutants".

However, this paragraph does not apply to liability for damages because of "property damage" that the insured would have in the absence of such request, demand, order or statutory or regulatory requirement, or such claim or "suit" by or on behalf of a governmental authority.

g. Aircraft, Auto Or Watercraft

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of the ownership, maintenance, use or entrustment to others of any aircraft, "auto" or watercraft owned or operated by or rented or loaned to any insured. Use includes operation and "loading or unloading".

This exclusion applies even if the claims against any insured allege negligence or other wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring, employment, training or monitoring of others by that insured, if the "occurrence" which caused the "bodily injury" or "property damage" involved the ownership, maintenance, use or entrustment to others of any aircraft, "auto" or watercraft that is owned or operated by or rented or loaned to any insured.

This exclusion does not apply to:

- (1) A watercraft while ashore on premises you own or rent;
- (2) A watercraft you do not own that is:
 - (a) Less than 51 feet long; and
 - (b) Not being used to carry persons for a charge;
- (3) Parking an "auto" on, or on the ways next to, premises you own or rent, provided the "auto" is not owned by or rented or loaned to you or the insured;
- (4) Liability assumed under any "insured contract" for the ownership, maintenance or use of aircraft or watercraft;
- (5) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of the operation of any of the equipment listed in Paragraph f.(2) or f.(3) of the definition of "mobile equipment"; or
- (6) An aircraft that is not owned by any insured and is hired, chartered or loaned with a paid crew. However, this exception does not apply if the insured has any other insurance for such "bodily injury" or "property damage", whether the other insurance is primary, excess, contingent or on any other basis.

h. Mobile Equipment

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of:

(1) The transportation of "mobile equipment" by an "auto" owned or operated by or rented or loaned to any insured; or (2) The use of "mobile equipment" in, or while in practice or preparation for, a prearranged racing, speed or demolition contest or in any stunting activity.

i. War

"Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury", however caused, arising, directly or indirectly, out of:

- (1) War, including undeclared or civil war;
- (2) Warlike action by a military force, including action in hindering or defending against an actual or expected attack, by any government, sovereign or other authority using military personnel or other agents; or
- (3) Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped power, or action taken by governmental authority in hindering or defending against any of these.

j. Professional Services

"Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of the rendering of or failure to render any professional service. This includes but is not limited to:

- (1) Legal, accounting or advertising services;
- (2) Preparing, approving, or failing to prepare or approve maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports, surveys, field orders, change orders, designs or drawings and specifications;
- (3) Supervisory, inspection, architectural or engineering activities;
- (4) Medical, surgical, dental, x-ray or nursing services treatment, advice or instruction;
- (5) Any health or therapeutic service treatment, advice or instruction;
- (6) Any service, treatment, advice or instruction for the purpose of appearance or skin enhancement, hair removal or replacement or personal grooming;
- (7) Optical or hearing aid services including the prescribing, preparation, fitting, demonstration or distribution of ophthalmic lenses and similar products or hearing aid devices;

- (8) Optometry or optometric services including but not limited to examination of the eyes and the prescribing, preparation, fitting,demonstration or distribution of ophthalmic lenses and similar products;
- (9) Any:
 - (a) Body piercing (not including ear piercing);
 - (b) Tattooing, including but not limited to the insertion of pigments into or under the skin; and
 - (c) Similar services;
- (10) Services in the practice of pharmacy; and
- (11) Computer consulting, design or programming services, including web site design.

Paragraphs (4) and (5) of this exclusion do not apply to the Incidental Medical Malpractice coverage afforded under Paragraph **1.e.** in Section **A.** - Coverages.

k. Damage To Property

"Property damage" to:

- Property you own, rent or occupy, including any costs or expenses incurred by you, or any other person, organization or entity, for repair, replacement, enhancement, restoration or maintenance of such property for any reason, including prevention of injury to a person or damage to another's property;
- (2) Premises you sell, give away or abandon, if the "property damage" arises out of any part of those premises;
- (3) Property loaned to you;
- (4) Personal property in the care, custody or control of the insured;
- (5) That particular part of real property on which you or any contractors or subcontractors working directly or indirectly on your behalf are performing operations, if the "property damage" arises out of those operations; or
- (6) That particular part of any property that must be restored, repaired or replaced because "your work" was incorrectly performed on it.

BUSINESS LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

Paragraphs (1), (3) and (4) of this exclusion do not apply to "property damage" (other than damage by fire) to premises, including the contents of such premises, rented to you for a period of 7 or fewer consecutive days. A separate Limit of Insurance applies to Damage To Premises Rented To You as described in Section **D**. – Limits Of Insurance.

Paragraph (2) of this exclusion does not apply if the premises are "your work" and were never occupied, rented or held for rental by you.

Paragraphs (3) and (4) of this exclusion do not apply to the use of elevators.

Paragraphs (3), (4), (5) and (6) of this exclusion do not apply to liability assumed under a sidetrack agreement.

Paragraphs (3) and (4) of this exclusion do not apply to "property damage" to borrowed equipment while not being used to perform operations at a job site.

Paragraph (6) of this exclusion does not apply to "property damage" included in the "products-completed operations hazard".

I. Damage To Your Product

"Property damage" to "your product" arising out of it or any part of it.

m. Damage To Your Work

"Property damage" to "your work" arising out of it or any part of it and included in the "products-completed operations hazard".

This exclusion does not apply if the damaged work or the work out of which the damage arises was performed on your behalf by a subcontractor.

n. Damage To Impaired Property Or Property Not Physically Injured

"Property damage" to "impaired property" or property that has not been physically injured, arising out of:

- A defect, deficiency, inadequacy or dangerous condition in "your product" or "your work"; or
- (2) A delay or failure by you or anyone acting on your behalf to perform a contract or agreement in accordance with its terms.

This exclusion does not apply to the loss of use of other property arising out of sudden and accidental physical injury to "your product" or "your work" after it has been put to its intended use.

o. Recall Of Products, Work Or Impaired Property

Damages claimed for any loss, cost or expense incurred by you or others for the loss of use, withdrawal, recall, inspection, repair, replacement, adjustment, removal or disposal of:

- (1) "Your product";
- (2) "Your work"; or
- (3) "Impaired property";

if such product, work or property is withdrawn or recalled from the market or from use by any person or organization because of a known or suspected defect, deficiency, inadequacy or dangerous condition in it.

p. Personal And Advertising Injury

"Personal and advertising injury":

- (1) Arising out of oral, written or electronic publication of material, if done by or at the direction of the insured with knowledge of its falsity;
- (2) Arising out of oral, written or electronic publication of material whose first publication took place before the beginning of the policy period;
- (3) Arising out of a criminal act committed by or at the direction of the insured;
- (4) Arising out of any breach of contract, except an implied contract to use another's "advertising idea" in your "advertisement";
- (5) Arising out of the failure of goods, products or services to conform with any statement of quality or performance made in your "advertisement";
- (6) Arising out of the wrong description of the price of goods, products or services;
- (7) Arising out of any violation of any intellectual property rights such as copyright, patent, trademark, trade name, trade secret, service mark or other designation of origin or authenticity.

However, this exclusion does not apply to infringement, in your "advertisement", of

- (a) Copyright;
- (b) Slogan, unless the slogan is also a trademark, trade name, service mark or other designation of origin or authenticity; or

- (c) Title of any literary or artistic work;
- (8) Arising out of an offense committed by an insured whose business is:
 - (a) Advertising, broadcasting, publishing or telecasting;
 - (b) Designing or determining content of web sites for others; or
 - (c) An Internet search, access, content or service provider.

However, this exclusion does not apply to Paragraphs **a.**, **b.** and **c.** under the definition of "personal and advertising injury" in Section **G.** – Liability And Medical Expenses Definitions.

For the purposes of this exclusion, placing an "advertisement" for or linking to others on your web site, by itself, is not considered the business of advertising, broadcasting, publishing or telecasting;

- (9) Arising out of an electronic chat room or bulletin board the insured hosts, owns, or over which the insured exercises control;
- (10) Arising out of the unauthorized use of another's name or product in your e-mail address, domain name or metatags, or any other similar tactics to mislead another's potential customers;
- (11) Arising out of the violation of a person's right of privacy created by any state or federal act.

However, this exclusion does not apply to liability for damages that the insured would have in the absence of such state or federal act;

- (12) Arising out of:
 - (a) An "advertisement" for others on your web site;
 - (b) Placing a link to a web site of others on your web site;
 - (c) Content from a web site of others displayed within a frame or border on your web site. Content includes information, code, sounds, text, graphics or images; or
 - (d) Computer code, software or programming used to enable:
 - (i) Your web site; or
 - (ii) The presentation or functionality of an "advertisement" or other content on your web site;

- (13) Arising out of a violation of any antitrust law;
- (14) Arising out of the fluctuation in price or value of any stocks, bonds or other securities; or
- (15) Arising out of discrimination or humiliation committed by or at the direction of any "executive officer", director, stockholder, partner or member of the insured.

q. Electronic Data

Damages arising out of the loss of, loss of use of, damage to, corruption of, inability to access, or inability to manipulate "electronic data".

r. Employment-Related Practices

"Bodily injury" or "personal and advertising injury" to:

- (1) A person arising out of any:
 - (a) Refusal to employ that person;
 - (b) Termination of that person's employment; or
 - (c) Employment-related practices, policies, acts or omissions, such as coercion, demotion, evaluation, reassignment, discipline, defamation, harassment, humiliation or discrimination directed at that person: or
- (2) The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of that person as a consequence of "bodily injury" or "personal and advertising injury" to the person at whom any of the employment-related practices described in Paragraphs (a), (b), or (c) above is directed.

This exclusion applies:

- (1) Whether the insured may be liable as an employer or in any other capacity; and
- (2) To any obligation to share damages with or repay someone else who must pay damages because of the injury.
- s. Asbestos
 - (1) "Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of the "asbestos hazard".
 - (2) Any damages, judgments, settlements, loss, costs or expenses that:

- (a) May be awarded or incurred by reason of any claim or suit alleging actual or threatened injury or damage of any nature or kind to persons or property which would not have occurred in whole or in part but for the "asbestos hazard";
- (b) Arise out of any request, demand, order or statutory or regulatory requirement that any insured or others test for, monitor, clean up, remove, encapsulate, contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize or in any way respond to or assess the effects of an "asbestos hazard"; or
- (c) Arise out of any claim or suit for damages because of testing for, monitoring, cleaning up, removing, encapsulating, containing, treating, detoxifying or neutralizing or in any way responding to or assessing the effects of an "asbestos hazard".
- t. Violation Of Statutes That Govern E-Mails, Fax, Phone Calls Or Other Methods Of Sending Material Or Information

"Bodily injury", "property damage", or "personal and advertising injury" arising directly or indirectly out of any action or omission that violates or is alleged to violate:

- (1) The Telephone Consumer Protection Act (TCPA), including any amendment of or addition to such law;
- (2) The CAN-SPAM Act of 2003, including any amendment of or addition to such law; or
- (3) Any statute, ordinance or regulation, other than the TCPA or CAN-SPAM Act of 2003, that prohibits or limits the sending, transmitting, communicating or distribution of material or information.

Damage To Premises Rented To You – Exception For Damage By Fire, Lightning or Explosion

Exclusions c. through h. and k. through o. do not apply to damage by fire, lightning or explosion to premises rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner. A separate Limit of Insurance applies to this coverage as described in Section D. - Liability And Medical Expenses Limits Of Insurance.

2. Applicable To Medical Expenses Coverage

We will not pay expenses for "bodily injury":

a. Any Insured

To any insured, except "volunteer workers".

b. Hired Person

To a person hired to do work for or on behalf of any insured or a tenant of any insured.

c. Injury On Normally Occupied Premises

To a person injured on that part of premises you own or rent that the person normally occupies.

d. Workers' Compensation And Similar Laws

To a person, whether or not an "employee" of any insured, if benefits for the "bodily injury" are payable or must be provided under a workers' compensation or disability benefits law or a similar law.

e. Athletics Activities

To a person injured while practicing, instructing or participating in any physical exercises or games, sports or athletic contests.

- f. Products-Completed Operations Hazard Included with the "products-completed operations hazard".
- g. Business Liability Exclusions

Excluded under Business Liability Coverage.

C. WHO IS AN INSURED

- 1. If you are designated in the Declarations as:
 - a. An individual, you and your spouse are insureds, but only with respect to the conduct of a business of which you are the sole owner.
 - **b.** A partnership or joint venture, you are an insured. Your members, your partners, and their spouses are also insureds, but only with respect to the conduct of your business.
 - c. A limited liability company, you are an insured. Your members are also insureds, but only with respect to the conduct of your business. Your managers are insureds, but only with respect to their duties as your managers.

d. An organization other than a partnership, joint venture or limited liability company, you are an insured. Your "executive officers" and directors are insureds, but only with respect to their duties as your officers or directors. Your stockholders are also insureds, but only with respect to their liability as stockholders.

- e. A trust, you are an insured. Your trustees are also insureds, but only with respect to their duties as trustees.
- 2. Each of the following is also an insured:

a. Employees And Volunteer Workers

Your "volunteer workers" only while performing duties related to the conduct of your business, or your "employees", other than either your "executive officers" (if you are an organization other than a partnership, joint venture or limited liability company) or your managers (if you are a limited liability company), but only for acts within the scope of their employment by you or while performing duties related to the conduct of your business.

However, none of these "employees" or "volunteer workers" are insureds for:

- (1) "Bodily injury" or "personal and advertising injury":
 - (a) To you, to your partners or members (if you are a partnership or joint venture), to your members (if you are a limited liability company), or to a co-"employee" while in the course of his or her employment or performing duties related to the conduct of your business, or to your other "volunteer workers" while performing duties related to the conduct of your business;
 - (b) To the spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of that co-"employee" or that "volunteer worker" as a consequence of Paragraph (1)(a) above;
 - (c) For which there is any obligation to share damages with or repay someone else who must pay damages because of the injury described in Paragraphs (1)(a) or
 (b) above; or
 - (d) Arising out of his or her providing or failing to provide professional health care services.

If you are not in the business of providing professional health care services, Paragraph (d) does not apply to any nurse, emergency medical technician or paramedic employed by you to provide such services.

- (2) "Property damage" to property:
 - (a) Owned, occupied or used by,

(b) Rented to, in the care, custody or control of, or over which physical control is being exercised for any purpose by you, any of your "employees", "volunteer workers", any partner or member (if you are a partnership or joint venture), or any member (if you are a limited liability company).

b. Real Estate Manager

Any person (other than your "employee" or "volunteer worker"), or any organization while acting as your real estate manager.

c. Temporary Custodians Of Your Property

Any person or organization having proper temporary custody of your property if you die, but only:

- (1) With respect to liability arising out of the maintenance or use of that property; and
- (2) Until your legal representative has been appointed.

d. Legal Representative If You Die

Your legal representative if you die, but only with respect to duties as such. That representative will have all your rights and duties under this insurance.

e. Unnamed Subsidiary

Any subsidiary and subsidiary thereof, of yours which is a legally incorporated entity of which you own a financial interest of more than 50% of the voting stock on the effective date of this Coverage Part.

The insurance afforded herein for any subsidiary not shown in the Declarations as a named insured does not apply to injury or damage with respect to which an insured under this insurance is also an insured under another policy or would be an insured under such policy but for its termination or upon the exhaustion of its limits of insurance.

3. Newly Acquired Or Formed Organization

Any organization you newly acquire or form, other than a partnership, joint venture or limited liability company, and over which you maintain financial interest of more than 50% of the voting stock, will qualify as a Named Insured if there is no other similar insurance available to that organization. However:

a. Coverage under this provision is afforded only until the 180th day after you acquire or form the organization or the end of the policy period, whichever is earlier; and

- **b.** Coverage under this provision does not apply to:
 - (1) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" that occurred; or
 - (2) "Personal and advertising injury" arising out of an offense committed

before you acquired or formed the organization.

4. Operator Of Mobile Equipment

With respect to "mobile equipment" registered in your name under any motor vehicle registration law, any person is an insured while driving such equipment along a public highway with your permission. Any other person or organization responsible for the conduct of such person is also an insured, but only with respect to liability arising out of the operation of the equipment, and only if no other insurance of any kind is available to that person or organization for this liability. However, no person or organization is an insured with respect to:

- a. "Bodily injury" to a co-"employee" of the person driving the equipment; or
- b. "Property damage" to property owned by, rented to, in the charge of or occupied by you or the employer of any person who is an insured under this provision.

5. Operator of Nonowned Watercraft

With respect to watercraft you do not own that is less than 51 feet long and is not being used to carry persons for a charge, any person is an insured while operating such watercraft with your permission. Any other person or organization responsible for the conduct of such person is also an insured, but only with respect to liability arising out of the operation of the watercraft, and only if no other insurance of any kind is available to that person or organization for this liability.

However, no person or organization is an insured with respect to:

- a. "Bodily injury" to a co-"employee" of the person operating the watercraft; or
- **b.** "Property damage" to property owned by, rented to, in the charge of or occupied by you or the employer of any person who is an insured under this provision.
- 6. Additional Insureds When Required By Written Contract, Written Agreement Or Permit

The person(s) or organization(s) identified in Paragraphs **a.** through **f.** below are additional insureds when you have agreed, in a written

contract, written agreement or because of a permit issued by a state or political subdivision, that such person or organization be added as an additional insured on your policy, provided the injury or damage occurs subsequent to the execution of the contract or agreement, or the issuance of the permit.

A person or organization is an additional insured under this provision only for that period of time required by the contract, agreement or permit.

However, no such person or organization is an additional insured under this provision if such person or organization is included as an additional insured by an endorsement issued by us and made a part of this Coverage Part, including all persons or organizations added as additional insureds under the specific additional insured coverage grants in Section **F.** – Optional Additional Insured Coverages.

a. Vendors

Any person(s) or organization(s) (referred to below as vendor), but only with respect to "bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of "your products" which are distributed or sold in the regular course of the vendor's business and only if this Coverage Part provides coverage for "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the "products-completed operations hazard".

(1) The insurance afforded to the vendor is subject to the following additional exclusions:

This insurance does not apply to:

- (a) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" for which the vendor is obligated to pay damages by reason of the assumption of liability in a contract or agreement. This exclusion does not apply to liability for damages that the vendor would have in the absence of the contract or agreement;
- (b) Any express warranty unauthorized by you;
- (c) Any physical or chemical change in the product made intentionally by the vendor;
- (d) Repackaging, except when unpacked solely for the purpose of inspection, demonstration, testing, or the substitution of parts under instructions from the manufacturer, and then repackaged in the original container;

- (e) Any failure to make such inspections, adjustments, tests or servicing as the vendor has agreed to make or normally undertakes to make in the usual course of business, in connection with the distribution or sale of the products;
- (f) Demonstration, installation, servicing or repair operations, except such operations performed at the vendor's premises in connection with the sale of the product;
- (g) Products which, after distribution or sale by you, have been labeled or relabeled or used as a container, part or ingredient of any other thing or substance by or for the vendor; or
- (h) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of the sole negligence of the vendor for its own acts or omissions or those of its employees or anyone else acting on its behalf. However, this exclusion does not apply to:
 - (i) The exceptions contained in Subparagraphs (d) or (f); or
 - (ii) Such inspections, adjustments, tests or servicing as the vendor has agreed to make or normally undertakes to make in the usual course of business, in connection with the distribution or sale of the products.
- (2) This insurance does not apply to any insured person or organization from whom you have acquired such products, or any ingredient, part or container, entering into, accompanying or containing such products.

b. Lessors Of Equipment

(1) Any person or organization from whom you lease equipment; but only with respect to their liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your maintenance, operation or use of equipment leased to you by such person or organization. (2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to any "occurrence" which takes place after you cease to lease that equipment.

c. Lessors Of Land Or Premises

- (1) Any person or organization from whom you lease land or premises, but only with respect to liability arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of that part of the land or premises leased to you.
- (2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to:
 - (a) Any "occurrence" which takes place after you cease to lease that land or be a tenant in that premises; or
 - (b) Structural alterations, new construction or demolition operations performed by or on behalf of such person or organization.

d. Architects, Engineers Or Surveyors

- (1) Any architect, engineer, or surveyor, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf:
 - (a) In connection with your premises; or
 - (b) In the performance of your ongoing operations performed by you or on your behalf.
- (2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following additional exclusion applies:

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of the rendering of or the failure to render any professional services by or for you, including:

- (a) The preparing, approving, or failure to prepare or approve, maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports, surveys, field orders, change orders, designs or drawings and specifications; or
- (b) Supervisory, inspection, architectural or engineering activities.

- e. Permits Issued By State Or Political Subdivisions
 - (1) Any state or political subdivision, but only with respect to operations performed by you or on your behalf for which the state or political subdivision has issued a permit.
 - (2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to:
 - (a) "Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of operations performed for the state or municipality; or
 - (b) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the "productscompleted operations hazard".
- f. Any Other Party
 - (1) Any other person or organization who is not an insured under Paragraphs a. through e. above, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf:
 - (a) In the performance of your ongoing operations;
 - (b) In connection with your premises owned by or rented to you; or
 - (c) In connection with "your work" and included within the "productscompleted operations hazard", but only if
 - (i) The written contract or written agreement requires you to provide such coverage to such additional insured; and
 - (ii) This Coverage Part provides coverage for "bodlly injury" or "property damage" included within the "productscompleted operations hazard".
 - (2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to:

"Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of the rendering of, or the failure to render, any professional architectural, engineering or surveying services, including: (a) The preparing, approving, or failure to prepare or approve, maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports, surveys, field orders, change orders, designs or drawings and specifications; or

(b) Supervisory, inspection, architectural or engineering activities.

The limits of insurance that apply to additional insureds are described in Section D_{\cdot} – Limits Of Insurance.

How this insurance applies when other insurance is available to an additional insured is described in the Other Insurance Condition in Section E. – Liability And Medical Expenses General Conditions.

No person or organization is an insured with respect to the conduct of any current or past partnership, joint venture or limited liability company that is not shown as a Named Insured in the Declarations.

D. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES LIMITS OF INSURANCE

1. The Most We Will Pay

The Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations and the rules below fix the most we will pay regardless of the number of:

- a. Insureds;
- b. Claims made or "suits" brought; or
- c. Persons or organizations making claims or bringing "suits".

2. Aggregate Limits

The most we will pay for:

- a. Damages because of "bodily injury" and "property damage" included in the "products-completed operations hazard" is the Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit shown in the Declarations.
- **b.** Damages because of all other "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury", including medical expenses, is the General Aggregate Limit shown in the Declarations.

This General Aggregate Limit applies separately to each of your "locations" owned by or rented to you.

"Location" means premises involving the same or connecting lots, or premises whose connection is interrupted only by a street, roadway or right-of-way of a railroad. This General Aggregate limit does not apply to "property damage" to premises while rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner, arising out of fire, lightning or explosion.

3. Each Occurrence Limit

Subject to **2.a.** or **2.b** above, whichever applies, the most we will pay for the sum of all damages because of all "bodily injury", "property damage" and medical expenses arising out of any one "occurrence" is the Liability and Medical Expenses Limit shown in the Declarations.

The most we will pay for all medical expenses because of "bodily injury" sustained by any one person is the Medical Expenses Limit shown in the Declarations.

4. Personal And Advertising Injury Limit

Subject to **2.b.** above, the most we will pay for the sum of all damages because of all "personal and advertising injury" sustained by any one person or organization is the Personal and Advertising Injury Limit shown in the Declarations.

5. Damage To Premises Rented To You Limit

The Damage To Premises Rented To You Limit is the most we will pay under Business Liability Coverage for damages because of "property damage" to any one premises, while rented to you, or in the case of damage by fire, lightning or explosion, while rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner.

In the case of damage by fire, lightning or explosion, the Damage to Premises Rented To You Limit applies to all damage proximately caused by the same event, whether such damage results from fire, lightning or explosion or any combination of these.

6. How Limits Apply To Additional Insureds

The most we will pay on behalf of a person or organization who is an additional insured under this Coverage Part is the lesser of:

- a. The limits of insurance specified in a written contract, written agreement or permit issued by a state or political subdivision; or
- **b.** The Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

Such amount shall be a part of and not in addition to the Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations and described in this Section.

If more than one limit of insurance under this policy and any endorsements attached thereto applies to any claim or "suit", the most we will pay under this policy and the endorsements is the single highest limit of liability of all coverages applicable to such claim or "suit". However, this paragraph does not apply to the Medical Expenses limit set forth in Paragraph **3**. above.

The Limits of Insurance of this Coverage Part apply separately to each consecutive annual period and to any remaining period of less than 12 months, starting with the beginning of the policy period shown in the Declarations, unless the policy period is extended after issuance for an additional period of less than 12 months. In that case, the additional period will be deemed part of the last preceding period for purposes of determining the Limits of Insurance.

E. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES GENERAL CONDITIONS

1. Bankruptcy

Bankruptcy or insolvency of the insured or of the insured's estate will not relieve us of our obligations under this Coverage Part.

2. Duties In The Event Of Occurrence, Offense, Claim Or Suit

a. Notice Of Occurrence Or Offense

You or any additional insured must see to it that we are notified as soon as practicable of an "occurrence" or an offense which may result in a claim. To the extent possible, notice should include:

- (1) How, when and where the "occurrence" or offense took place;
- (2) The names and addresses of any injured persons and witnesses; and
- (3) The nature and location of any injury or damage arising out of the "occurrence" or offense.

b. Notice Of Claim

If a claim is made or "suit" is brought against any insured, you or any additional insured must:

- Immediately record the specifics of the claim or "suit" and the date received; and
- (2) Notify us as soon as practicable.

You or any additional insured must see to it that we receive a written notice of the claim or "suit" as soon as practicable.

c. Assistance And Cooperation Of The Insured

You and any other involved insured must:

BUSINESS LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

- (1) Immediately send us copies of any demands, notices, summonses or legal papers received in connection with the claim or "suit";
- (2) Authorize us to obtain records and other information;
- (3) Cooperate with us in the investigation, settlement of the claim or defense against the "suit"; and
- (4) Assist us, upon our request, in the enforcement of any right against any person or organization that may be liable to the insured because of injury or damage to which this insurance may also apply.

d. Obligations At The Insured's Own Cost

No insured will, except at that insured's own cost, voluntarily make a payment, assume any obligation, or incur any expense, other than for first aid, without our consent.

e. Additional Insured's Other Insurance

If we cover a claim or "suit" under this Coverage Part that may also be covered by other insurance available to an additional insured, such additional insured must submit such claim or "suit" to the other insurer for defense and indemnity.

However, this provision does not apply to the extent that you have agreed in a written contract, written agreement or permit that this insurance is primary and non-contributory with the additional insured's own insurance.

f. Knowledge Of An Occurrence, Offense, Claim Or Suit

Paragraphs **a.** and **b.** apply to you or to any additional insured only when such "occurrence", offense, claim or "suit" is known to:

- (1) You or any additional insured that is an individual;
- (2) Any partner, if you or an additional insured is a partnership;
- (3) Any manager, if you or an additional insured is a limited liability company;
- (4) Any "executive officer" or insurance manager, if you or an additional insured is a corporation;
- (5) Any trustee, if you or an additional insured is a trust; or
- (6) Any elected or appointed official, if you or an additional insured is a political subdivision or public entity.

This Paragraph **f.** applies separately to you and any additional insured.

3. Financial Responsibility Laws

- a. When this policy is certified as proof of financial responsibility for the future under the provisions of any motor vehicle financial responsibility law, the insurance provided by the policy for "bodily injury" liability and "property damage" liability will comply with the provisions of the law to the extent of the coverage and limits of insurance required by that law.
- b. With respect to "mobile equipment" to which this insurance applies, we will provide any liability, uninsured motorists, underinsured motorists, no-fault or other coverage required by any motor vehicle law. We will provide the required limits for those coverages.

4. Legal Action Against Us

No person or organization has a right under this Coverage Form:

- To join us as a party or otherwise bring us into a "suit" asking for damages from an insured; or
- **b.** To sue us on this Coverage Form unless all of its terms have been fully complied with.

A person or organization may sue us to recover on an agreed settlement or on a final judgment against an insured; but we will not be liable for damages that are not payable under the terms of this insurance or that are in excess of the applicable limit of insurance. An agreed settlement means a settlement and release of liability signed by us, the insured and the claimant or the claimant's legal representative.

5. Separation Of Insureds

Except with respect to the Limits of Insurance, and any rights or duties specifically assigned in this policy to the first Named Insured, this insurance applies:

- a. As if each Named Insured were the only Named Insured; and
- **b.** Separately to each insured against whom a claim is made or "suit" is brought.

6. Representations

a. When You Accept This Policy

By accepting this policy, you agree:

- (1) The statements in the Declarations are accurate and complete;
- (2) Those statements are based upon representations you made to us; and
- Page 16 of 24

(3) We have issued this policy in reliance upon your representations.

b. Unintentional Failure To Disclose Hazards

If unintentionally you should fail to disclose all hazards relating to the conduct of your business at the inception date of this Coverage Part, we shall not deny any coverage under this Coverage Part because of such failure.

7. Other Insurance

If other valid and collectible insurance is available for a loss we cover under this Coverage Part, our obligations are limited as follows:

a. Primary Insurance

This insurance is primary except when **b**. below applies. If other insurance is also primary, we will share with all that other insurance by the method described in **c**. below.

b. Excess Insurance

This insurance is excess over any of the other insurance, whether primary, excess, contingent or on any other basis:

(1) Your Work

That is Fire, Extended Coverage, Builder's Risk, Installation Risk or similar coverage for "your work";

(2) Premises Rented To You

That is fire, lightning or explosion insurance for premises rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner;

(3) Tenant Liability

That is insurance purchased by you to cover your liability as a tenant for "property damage" to premises rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner;

(4) Aircraft, Auto Or Watercraft

If the loss arises out of the maintenance or use of aircraft, "autos" or watercraft to the extent not subject to Exclusion **g.** of Section **A.** – Coverages.

(5) Property Damage To Borrowed Equipment Or Use Of Elevators

If the loss arises out of "property damage" to borrowed equipment or the use of elevators to the extent not subject to Exclusion k. of Section A. – Coverages.

(6) When You Are Added As An Additional Insured To Other Insurance

That is other insurance available to you covering liability for damages arising out of the premises or operations, or products and completed operations, for which you have been added as an additional insured by that insurance; or

(7) When You Add Others As An Additional Insured To This Insurance

That is other insurance available to an additional insured.

However, the following provisions apply to other insurance available to any person or organization who is an additional insured under this Coverage Part:

(a) Primary Insurance When Required By Contract

This insurance is primary if you have agreed in a written contract, written agreement or permit that this insurance be primary. If other insurance is also primary, we will share with all that other insurance by the method described in **c.** below.

(b) Primary And Non-Contributory To Other Insurance When Required By Contract

If you have agreed in a written contract, written agreement or permit that this insurance is primary and non-contributory with the additional insured's own insurance, this insurance is primary and we will not seek contribution from that other insurance.

Paragraphs (a) and (b) do not apply to other insurance to which the additional insured has been added as an additional insured.

When this insurance is excess, we will have no duty under this Coverage Part to defend the insured against any "suit" if any other insurer has a duty to defend the insured against that "suit". If no other insurer defends, we will undertake to do so, but we will be entitled to the insured's rights against all those other insurers. When this insurance is excess over other insurance, we will pay only our share of the amount of the loss, if any, that exceeds the sum of:

- (1) The total amount that all such other insurance would pay for the loss in the absence of this insurance; and
- (2) The total of all deductible and selfinsured amounts under all that other insurance.

We will share the remaining loss, if any, with any other insurance that is not described in this Excess Insurance provision and was not bought specifically to apply in excess of the Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations of this Coverage Part.

c. Method Of Sharing

If all the other insurance permits contribution by equal shares, we will follow this method also. Under this approach, each insurer contributes equal amounts until it has paid its applicable limit of insurance or none of the loss remains, whichever comes first.

If any of the other insurance does not permit contribution by equal shares, we will contribute by limits. Under this method, each insurer's share is based on the ratio of its applicable limit of insurance to the total applicable limits of insurance of all insurers.

8. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us

a. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery

If the insured has rights to recover all or part of any payment, including Supplementary Payments, we have made under this Coverage Part, those rights are transferred to us. The insured must do nothing after loss to impair them. At our request, the insured will bring "suit" or transfer those rights to us and help us enforce them. This condition does not apply to Medical Expenses Coverage.

b. Waiver Of Rights Of Recovery (Waiver Of Subrogation)

If the insured has waived any rights of recovery against any person or organization for all or part of any payment, including Supplementary Payments, we have made under this Coverage Part, we also waive that right, provided the insured waived their rights of recovery against such person or organization in a contract, agreement or permit that was executed prior to the injury or damage.

F. OPTIONAL ADDITIONAL INSURED COVERAGES

If listed or shown as applicable in the Declarations, one or more of the following Optional Additional Insured Coverages also apply. When any of these Optional Additional Insured Coverages apply, Paragraph 6. (Additional Insureds When Required by Written Contract, Written Agreement or Permit) of Section C., Who Is An Insured, does not apply to the person or organization shown in the Declarations. These coverages are subject to the terms and conditions applicable to Business Liability Coverage in this policy, except as provided below:

1. Additional Insured - Designated Person Or Organization

WHO IS AN INSURED under Section **C.** is amended to include as an additional insured the person(s) or organization(s) shown in the Declarations, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf:

- a. In the performance of your ongoing operations; or
- b. In connection with your premises owned by or rented to you.

2. Additional Insured - Managers Or Lessors Of Premises

- a. WHO IS AN INSURED under Section C. is amended to include as an additional insured the person(s) or organization(s) shown in the Declarations as an Additional Insured -Designated Person Or Organization; but only with respect to liability arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of that part of the premises leased to you and shown in the Declarations.
- **b.** With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following additional exclusions apply:

This insurance does not apply to:

- (1) Any "occurrence" which takes place after you cease to be a tenant in that premises; or
- (2) Structural alterations, new construction or demolition operations performed by or on behalf of such person or organization.

3. Additional Insured - Grantor Of Franchise

WHO IS AN INSURED under Section **C.** is amended to include as an additional insured the person(s) or organization(s) shown in the Declarations as an Additional Insured -Grantor Of Franchise, but only with respect to their liability as grantor of franchise to you.

4. Additional Insured - Lessor Of Leased Equipment

- a. WHO IS AN INSURED under Section C. is amended to include as an additional insured the person(s) or organization(s) shown in the Declarations as an Additional Insured – Lessor of Leased Equipment, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your maintenance, operation or use of equipment leased to you by such person(s) or organization(s).
- **b.** With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to any "occurrence" which takes place after you cease to lease that equipment.
- 5. Additional Insured Owners Or Other Interests From Whom Land Has Been Leased
 - a. WHO IS AN INSURED under Section C. is amended to include as an additional insured the person(s) or organization(s) shown in the Declarations as an Additional Insured – Owners Or Other Interests From Whom Land Has Been Leased, but only with respect to liability arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of that part of the land leased to you and shown in the Declarations.
 - **b.** With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following additional exclusions apply:

This insurance does not apply to:

- (1) Any "occurrence" that takes place after you cease to lease that land; or
- (2) Structural alterations, new construction or demolition operations performed by or on behalf of such person or organization.
- 6. Additional Insured State Or Political Subdivision – Permits
 - a. WHO IS AN INSURED under Section C. is amended to include as an additional insured the state or political subdivision shown in the Declarations as an Additional

Insured – State Or Political Subdivision -Permits, but only with respect to operations performed by you or on your behalf for which the state or political subdivision has issued a permit.

b. With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following additional exclusions apply:

This insurance does not apply to:

- (1) "Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of operations performed for the state or municipality; or
- (2) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" included in the "product-completed operations" hazard.

7. Additional Insured – Vendors

- a. WHO IS AN INSURED under Section C. is amended to include as an additional insured the person(s) or organization(s) (referred to below as vendor) shown in the Declarations as an Additional Insured -Vendor, but only with respect to "bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of "your products" which are distributed or sold in the regular course of the vendor's business and only if this Coverage Part provides coverage for "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the "products-completed operations hazard".
- **b.** The insurance afforded to the vendor is subject to the following additional exclusions:
 - (1) This insurance does not apply to:
 - (a) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" for which the vendor is obligated to pay damages by reason of the assumption of liability in a contract or agreement. This exclusion does not apply to liability for damages that the vendor would have in the absence of the contract or agreement;
 - (b) Any express warranty unauthorized by you;
 - (c) Any physical or chemical change in the product made intentionally by the vendor;
 - (d) Repackaging, unless unpacked solely for the purpose of inspection, demonstration, testing, or the substitution of parts under instructions from the manufacturer, and then repackaged in the original container;

- (e) Any failure to make such inspections, adjustments, tests or servicing as the vendor has agreed to make or normally undertakes to make in the usual course of business, in connection with the distribution or sale of the products;
- (f) Demonstration, installation, servicing or repair operations, except such operations performed at the vendor's premises in connection with the sale of the product;
- (g) Products which, after distribution or sale by you, have been labeled or relabeled or used as a container, part or ingredient of any other thing or substance by or for the vendor; or
- (h) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of the sole negligence of the vendor for its own acts or omissions or those of its employees or anyone else acting on its behalf. However, this exclusion does not apply to:
 - (i) The exceptions contained in Subparagraphs (d) or (f); or
 - (ii) Such inspections,
 - adjustments, tests or servicing as the vendor has agreed to make or normally undertakes to make in the usual course of business, in connection with the distribution or sale of the products.
- (2) This insurance does not apply to any insured person or organization from whom you have acquired such products, or any ingredient, part or container, entering into, accompanying or containing such products.

8. Additional Insured – Controlling Interest

WHO IS AN INSURED under Section **C.** is amended to include as an additional insured the person(s) or organization(s) shown in the Declarations as an Additional Insured – Controlling Interest, but only with respect to their liability arising out of:

- a. Their financial control of you; or
- **b.** Premises they own, maintain or control while you lease or occupy these premises.

This insurance does not apply to structural alterations, new construction and demolition operations performed by or for that person or organization.

- 9. Additional Insured Owners, Lessees Or Contractors – Scheduled Person Or Organization
 - a. WHO IS AN INSURED under Section C. is amended to include as an additional insured the person(s) or organization(s) shown in the Declarations as an Additional Insured – Owner, Lessees Or Contractors, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf:
 - (1) In the performance of your ongoing operations for the additional insured(s); or
 - (2) In connection with "your work" performed for that additional insured and included within the "productscompleted operations hazard", but only if this Coverage Part provides coverage for "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the "products-completed operations hazard".
 - b. With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal an advertising injury" arising out of the rendering of, or the failure to render, any professional architectural, engineering or surveying services, including:
 - (1) The preparing, approving, or failure to prepare or approve, maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports, surveys, field orders, change orders, designs or drawings and specifications; or
 - (2) Supervisory, inspection, architectural or engineering activities.

10. Additional Insured – Co-Owner Of Insured Premises

WHO IS AN INSURED under Section **C.** is amended to include as an additional insured the person(s) or Organization(s) shown in the Declarations as an Additional Insured – Co-Owner Of Insured Premises, but only with respect to their liability as co-owner of the premises shown in the Declarations. The limits of insurance that apply to additional insureds are described in Section D. – Limits Of Insurance.

How this insurance applies when other insurance is available to an additional insured is described in the Other Insurance Condition in Section E. – Liability And Medical Expenses General Conditions.

G. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES DEFINITIONS

- "Advertisement" means the widespread public dissemination of information or images that has the purpose of inducing the sale of goods, products or services through:
 - a. (1) Radio;
 - (2) Television;
 - (3) Billboard;
 - (4) Magazine;
 - (5) Newspaper;
 - b. The Internet, but only that part of a web site that is about goods, products or services for the purposes of inducing the sale of goods, products or services; or
 - c. Any other publication that is given widespread public distribution.

However, "advertisement" does not include:

- The design, printed material, information or images contained in, on or upon the packaging or labeling of any goods or products; or
- **b.** An interactive conversation between or among persons through a computer network.
- 2. "Advertising idea" means any idea for an "advertisement".
- 3. "Asbestos hazard" means an exposure or threat of exposure to the actual or alleged properties of asbestos and includes the mere presence of asbestos in any form.
- "Auto" means a land motor vehicle, trailer or semi-trailer designed for travel on public roads, including any attached machinery or equipment. But "auto" does not include "mobile equipment".
- 5. "Bodily injury" means physical:
 - a. Injury;
 - b. Sickness; or

c. Disease

sustained by a person and, if arising out of the above, mental anguish or death at any time.

6. "Coverage territory" means:

- BUSINESS LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM
- a. The United States of America (including its territories and possessions), Puerto Rico and Canada:
- b. International waters or airspace, but only if the injury or damage occurs in the course of travel or transportation between any places included in a. above;
- c. All other parts of the world if the injury or damage arises out of:
 - (1) Goods or products made or sold by you in the territory described in **a**. above;
 - (2) The activities of a person whose home is in the territory described in a. above, but is away for a short time on your business; or
 - (3) "Personal and advertising injury" offenses that take place through the Internet or similar electronic means of communication

provided the insured's responsibility to pay damages is determined in the United States of America (including its territories and possessions), Puerto Rico or Canada, in a "suit" on the merits according to the substantive law in such territory, or in a settlement we agree to.

- 7. "Electronic data" means information, facts or programs:
 - a. Stored as or on;
 - **b.** Created or used on; or
 - c. Transmitted to or from

computer software, including systems and applications software, hard or floppy disks, CD-ROMS, tapes, drives, cells, data processing devices or any other media which are used with electronically controlled equipment.

- "Employee" includes a "leased worker".
 "Employee" does not include a "temporary worker".
- 9. "Executive officer" means a person holding any of the officer positions created by your charter, constitution, by-laws or any other similar governing document.
- **10.** "Hostile fire" means one which becomes uncontrollable or breaks out from where it was intended to be.
- **11.** "Impaired property" means tangible property, other than "your product" or "your work", that cannot be used or is less useful because:
 - a. It incorporates "your product" or "your work" that is known or thought to be defective, deficient, inádequate or dangerous; or

b. You have failed to fulfill the terms of a contract or agreement;

if such property can be restored to use by:

- The repair, replacement, adjustment or removal of "your product" or "your work"; or
- **b.** Your fulfilling the terms of the contract or agreement.
- 12. "Insured contract" means:
 - a. A contract for a lease of premises. However, that portion of the contract for a lease of premises that indemnifies any person or organization for damage by fire, lightning or explosion to premises while rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner is subject to the Damage To Premises Rented To You limit described in Section D. – Liability and Medical Expenses Limits of Insurance.
 - b. A sidetrack agreement;
 - c. Any easement or license agreement, including an easement or license agreement in connection with construction or demolition operations on or within 50 feet of a railroad;
 - **d.** Any obligation, as required by ordinance, to indemnify a municipality, except in connection with work for a municipality;
 - e. An elevator maintenance agreement; or
 - f. That part of any other contract or agreement pertaining to your business (including an indemnification of a municipality in connection with work performed for a municipality) under which you assume the tort liability of another party to pay for "bodily injury" or "property damage" to a third person or organization, provided the "bodily injury" or "property damage" is caused, in whole or in part, by you or by those acting on your behalf. Tort liability means a liability that would be imposed by law in the absence of any contract or agreement.
 - Paragraph f. includes that part of any contract or agreement that indemnifies a railroad for "bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of construction or demolition operations within 50 feet of any railroad property and affecting any railroad bridge or trestle, tracks, road-beds, tunnel, underpass or crossing.

However, Paragraph **f**. does not include that part of any contract or agreement:

- (1) That indemnifies an architect, engineer or surveyor for injury or damage arising out of:
 - (a) Preparing, approving or failing to prepare or approve maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports, surveys, field orders, change orders, designs or drawings and specifications; or
 - (b) Giving directions or instructions, or failing to give them, if that is the primary cause of the injury or damage; or
- (2) Under which the insured, if an architect, engineer or surveyor, assumes liability for an injury or damage arising out of the insured's rendering or failure to render professional services, including those listed in (1) above and supervisory, inspection, architectural or engineering activities.
- 13. "Leased worker" means a person leased to you by a labor leasing firm under an agreement between you and the labor leasing firm, to perform duties related to the conduct of your business. "Leased worker" does not include a "temporary worker".
- 14. "Loading or unloading" means the handling of property:
 - After it is moved from the place where it is accepted for movement into or onto an aircraft, watercraft or "auto";
 - **b.** While it is in or on an aircraft, watercraft or "auto"; or
 - While it is being moved from an aircraft, watercraft or "auto" to the place where it is finally delivered;

but "loading or unloading" does not include the movement of property by means of a mechanical device, other than a hand truck, that is not attached to the aircraft, watercraft or "auto".

15. "Mobile equipment" means any of the following types of land vehicles, including any attached machinery or equipment:

- Bulldozers, farm machinery, forklifts and other vehicles designed for use principally off public roads;
- **b.** Vehicles maintained for use solely on or next to premises you own or rent;
- c. Vehicles that travel on crawler treads;
- d. Vehicles, whether self-propelled or not, on which are permanently mounted:

- (1) Power cranes, shovels, loaders, diggers or drills; or
- (2) Road construction or resurfacing equipment such as graders, scrapers or rollers;
- e. Vehicles not described in a., b., c., or d. above that are not self-propelled and are maintained primarily to provide mobility to permanently attached equipment of the following types:
 - (1) Air compressors, pumps and generators, including spraying, welding, building cleaning, geophysical exploration, lighting and well servicing equipment; or
 - (2) Cherry pickers and similar devices used to raise or lower workers;
- f. Vehicles not described in a., b., c., or d. above maintained primarily for purposes other than the transportation of persons or cargo.

However, self-propelled vehicles with the following types of permanently attached equipment are not "mobile equipment" but will be considered "autos":

- (1) Equipment, of at least 1,000 pounds gross vehicle weight, designed primarily for:
 - (a) Snow removal;
 - (b) Road maintenance, but not construction or resurfacing; or
 - (c) Street cleaning;
- (2) Cherry pickers and similar devices mounted on automobile or truck chassis and used to raise or lower workers; and
- (3) Air compressors, pumps and generators, including spraying, welding, building cleaning, geophysical exploration, lighting and well servicing equipment.
- **16.** "Occurrence" means an accident, including continuous or repeated exposure to substantially the same general harmful conditions.
- "Personal and advertising injury" means injury, including consequential "bodily injury", arising out of one or more of the following offenses:
 - a. False arrest, detention or imprisonment;
 - b. Malicious prosecution;

- c. The wrongful eviction from, wrongful entry into, or invasion of the right of private occupancy of a room, dwelling or premises that the person occupies, committed by or on behalf of its owner, landlord or lessor:
- Oral, written or electronic publication of material that slanders or libels a person or organization or disparages a person's or organization's goods, products or services;
- Oral, written or electronic publication of material that violates a person's right of privacy;
- f. Copying, in your "advertisement", a person's or organization's "advertising idea" or style of "advertisement";
- g. Infringement of copyright, slogan, or title of any literary or artistic work, in your "advertisement"; or
- **h.** Discrimination or humiliation that results in injury to the feelings or reputation of a natural person.
- 18. "Pollutants" means any solid, liquid, gaseous or thermal irritant or contaminant, including smoke, vapor, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, chemicals and waste. Waste includes materials to be recycled, reconditioned or reclaimed.
- 19. "Products-completed operations hazard";
 - a. Includes all "bodily injury" and "property damage" occurring away from premises you own or rent and arising out of "your product" or "your work" except:
 - Products that are still in your physical possession; or
 - (2) Work that has not yet been completed or abandoned. However, "your work" will be deemed to be completed at the earliest of the following times:
 - (a) When all of the work called for in your contract has been completed.
 - (b) When all of the work to be done at the job site has been completed if your contract calls for work at more than one job site.
 - (c) When that part of the work done at a job site has been put to its intended use by any person or organization other than another contractor or subcontractor working on the same project.

Work that may need service, maintenance, correction, repair or replacement, but which is otherwise complete, will be treated as completed.

The "bodily injury" or "property damage" must occur away from premises you own or rent, unless your business includes the selling, handling or distribution of "your product" for consumption on premises you own or rent.

- b. Does not include "bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of:
 - (1) The transportation of property, unless the injury or damage arises out of a condition in or on a vehicle not owned or operated by you, and that condition was created by the "loading or unloading" of that vehicle by any insured; or
 - (2) The existence of tools, uninstalled equipment or abandoned or unused materials.
- 20. "Property damage" means:
 - a. Physical injury to tangible property, including all resulting loss of use of that property. All such loss of use shall be deemed to occur at the time of the physical injury that caused it; or
 - b. Loss of use of tangible property that is not physically injured. All such loss of use shall be deemed to occur at the time of "occurrence" that caused it.

As used in this definition, "electronic data" is not tangible property.

- 21. "Suit" means a civil proceeding in which damages because of "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" to which this insurance applies are alleged. "Suit" includes:
 - a. An arbitration proceeding in which such damages are claimed and to which the insured must submit or does submit with our consent; or
 - **b.** Any other alternative dispute resolution proceeding in which such damages are claimed and to which the insured submits with our consent.
- 22. "Temporary worker" means a person who is furnished to you to substitute for a permanent "employee" on leave or to meet seasonal or short-term workload conditions.
- 23. "Volunteer worker" means a person who:
 - a. Is not your "employee";

- b. Donates his or her work;
- c. Acts at the direction of and within the scope of duties determined by you; and
- **d.** Is not paid a fee, salary or other compensation by you or anyone else for their work performed for you.
- 24. "Your product":
 - a. Means:
 - (1) Any goods or products, other than real property, manufactured, sold, handled, distributed or disposed of by:
 - (a) You;
 - (b) Others trading under your name; or
 - (c) A person or organization whose business or assets you have acquired; and
 - (2) Containers (other than vehicles), materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such goods or products.
 - b. Includes:
 - (1) Warranties or representations made at any time with respect to the fitness, quality, durability, performance or use of "your product"; and

- (2) The providing of or failure to provide warnings or instructions.
- c. Does not include vending machines or other property rented to or located for the use of others but not sold.
- 25. "Your work":
 - a. Means:
 - (1) Work or operations performed by you or on your behalf; and
 - (2) Materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations.
 - b. Includes:
 - (1) Warranties or representations made at any time with respect to the fitness, quality, durability, performance or use of "your work"; and
 - (2) The providing of or failure to provide warnings or instructions.